01 July 2024
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

8/F SEC Headquarters, 7907 Makati Avenue
Bel-Air, Makati City 1209

Attention: Director Rachel Esther J. Gumtang-Remalante
Corporate Governance and Finance Department

Re: Annual Corporate Governance Report for 2023

Ladies / Gentlemen:

In accordance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 13, Series of 2021, we hereby submit the Annual
Corporate Governance Report (ACGR) of PAMI Horizon Fund Inc. for the year 2023.

The attached ACGR provides an accurate and comprehensive overview of our company's corporate
governance practices throughout the year 2023, with all other required directors’ and officers’ signatures
included as mandated.

Thank you.

ATTY. MA. ADELINA S. GATDULA
Corporate Secretary
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ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR PUBLIC COMPANIES AND REGISTERED ISSUERS

COMPLIANT/

RECOMMENDATION NON-COMPLIANT

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION EXPLANATION

THE BOARD’S GOVERNANCE RESPONSIBILITIES

Principle 1. ESTABLISHING A COMPETENT BOARD

The company should be headed by a competent, working Board to foster the long-term success of the corporation, and to sustain its competitiveness and growth in a manner
consistent with its corporate objectives and the long-term best interests of its shareholders/members and other stakeholders.

Recommendation 1.1
1 | The Board is composed of directors with collective Compliant Provide information or link/reference to a

working knowledge, experience or expertise that is document  containing  information on  the

s following:

relevant to the company’s industry/sector. 1. Academic qualifications, industry knowledge,
2 | The Board has an appropriate mix of competence and Compliant professional experience, expertise, and relevant
expertise trainings of directors.
_p - - — - — - 2. Qualification standards for directors to
3 | Directors remain qualified for their positions Compliant facilitate the selection of potential nominees and
individually and collectively to enable them to fulfill to serve as benchmark for the evaluation of its

their roles and responsibilities and respond to the performance.

needs of the organization. As of December 31, 2023, the Directors are the

following:

1. Roberto F. De Ocampo
Reynaldo G. Geronimo
Ramon Paulo L. Tayag
Tomas S. Chuidian
Fernando J. Sison, 111
Simon R. Paterno
Lee Longa

Nk w

For the detailed profile of the Directors,
including academic qualifications, industry,
knowledge, professional experience, expertise,
and relevant trainings. Please refer to pages 13
to 15 of SEC Form 17-A filed on April 16, 2024
(“SEC Form 17-A”), the attached General
Information Sheet of the Fund for the Year
2023, and in the Company’s website:

e  https://www.pamifunds.com/

The directors remain qualified for their
positions individually and collectively to



https://www.pamifunds.com/

1

1

The Board is headed by a competent and qualified
Chairperson.

Recommendation 1.3

Compliant

Compliant

enable them to fulfill their roles and
responsibilities and respond to the needs of the
organization.

Recommendation 1.2

Provide information or reference to a document
containing information of the Chairperson,
including his/her name, qualifications, and
expertise.

The chairperson during the 2023 term was
Roberto F. De Ocampo.

The Board is headed by a competent and
qualified Chairperson. His qualification
showing his competence is detailed in:
e Annex1-SEC17-A, Page 13
e  https://pamifunds.com/board-of-
directors

Provide link or reference to the company’s Board

Charter and Manual on Corporate Governance
relating to its policy on training of directors.

For the orientation and continuing training
program, please refer to:
e Annex2-MOCG, Page 12

The company has an orientation program for first-time
directors.

Compliant

The company has relevant annual continuing training for
all directors.

Recommendation 1.4

Compliant

Provide information or link/reference to a
document containing information of the
orientation program and trainings of directors
for the covered year, including the number of
hours attended and topics covered.

For the orientation program, please refer to:
e Annex 2 - MOCG, Page 5

For the annual continuing training for the
directors, please refer to:
e Annex 2 - MOCG, Page 12




1 | The Board has a policy on board diversity. Compliant Provide information or link/reference to a
document containing the company’s board

diversity policy.

Indicate  gender, age, and competence
composition of the board.

Please refer to:
e Annex 2 - MOCG, Page4to 5

Recommendation 1.5
1 | The Board is assisted by a Corporate Secretary. Compliant Provide information or link/reference to a

- T - document containing information of the
2 | The Corporate Secretary is a separate individual from Compliant Corporate Secretary, including his/her name,

the Compliance Officer. qualifications, duties and functions.

3 | The Corporate Secretary is not a member of the Board of Compliant
Directors.

The Board is assisted by Atty. Ma. Adelina S.
Gatdula, as Corporate Secretary, who is a
separate individual from the Compliance
Officer, and is not a member of the Board of
Directors. Please refer to:

e Annex1-SEC17-A, Page 15

e Annex 2 - MOCG, Page 23 to 24

e  https://pamifunds.com/board-of-

directors

The Corporate Secretary is not a member of the
Board.

4 | The Corporate Secretary attends annual training/s on Compliant Provide information or link/reference to a

corporate governance. document containing mfo.rr.natlon of the
corporate governance training/s attended,

including the date of training, number of hours
and topics covered.

In 2023, the Compliance Officer attended the
2023 Insurance Institute for Asia and the

Pacific, Inc. Seminar on Corporate Governance.
Recommendation 1.6

1 | The Board is assisted by a Compliance Officer. Compliant Provide information or link/reference to a

2 | The Compliance Officer has a rank of Senior Vice- Non-compliant document  containing  information of ~ the
Compliance Officer, including his/her name,

President or an equivalent position with adequate position, qualifications, duties, and functions.
stature and authority in the corporation.

Considering the size and limited scope of operations of
the company, the Manager/Senior Manager officer rank
of the Compliance Officer gives him adequate stature and
authority.

The Compliance Officer of 2023 was Glenn Noel
L. Llaneta. Please refer to Annex 1 - SEC 17-A,
Page 15.

3 | The Compliance Officer is not a member of the board. Compliant



https://pamifunds.com/board-of-directors
https://pamifunds.com/board-of-directors

4 | The Compliance Officer attends annual training/s on
corporate governance.

Compliant

Hany Mae V. Dureza assumed the function of
the Compliance Officer for the Fund last March
2024.

The Compliance Officer is not a member of the
Board.

Provide information or link/reference to a
document containing information of the
corporate governance training/s attended,
including the date of the training, number of
hours and topics covered.

In 2023, the Compliance Officer attended the
2023 Ayala Integrated Corporate Governance,
Risk Management and Sustainability Summit
training.

Principle 2. ESTABLISHING CLEAR ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The fiduciary roles, responsibilities, and accountabilities of the Board, as provided under the law, the company’s articles of incorporation and bylaws, and other legal
pronouncements and guidelines should be clearly made known to all directors as well as to shareholders/members and other stakeholders.

RED R GETTD A

1 | The Directors act on a fully informed basis, in good faith,
with due diligence and care, and in the best interest of
the company, shareholders and stakeholders.

Compliant

1 | The Board oversees the development and approval of Compliant
the company’s business objectives and strategy.
2 | The Board oversees and monitors the implementation of Compliant

the company’s business objectives and strategy.

Recommendation 2.3

1 | The Board ensures and adopts an effective succession
planning program for directors, key officers, and
management.

Compliant

Provide information or reference to a document
containing information on how the directors
performed their duties (this can include board
resolutions and minutes of meetings).

This is one of the responsibilities, duties, and
functions of the Board. Please refer to:

e Annex 2 - MOCG, Pages 4 and 10
Recommendation 2.2

Provide information or link/reference to a
document containing information on how the
directors performed this function (this can
include board resolutions and minutes of
meetings).

Indicate frequency of development of business
objectives and strategy.

This is one of the responsibilities, duties, and
functions of the Board. Please refer to:
e Annex 2 - MOCG, Pages 10

Disclose and  provide information or
link/reference to a document containing the




The Board adopts a policy for the retirement of directors
and key officers.

Recommendation 2.4

Compliant

The Board aligns the remuneration of key officers and Compliant
board members with the long-term interests of the

company.

The Board adopts a policy specifying the relationship Compliant
between remuneration and performance.

The Directors do not participate in discussions or Compliant

deliberations involving his/her own remuneration.

Recommendation 2.5

The Board has a formal and transparent board Compliant
nomination and election policy.

The Board nomination and election policy is disclosed in Compliant
the company’s Manual on Corporate Governance.

The Board nomination and election policy includes how Compliant
the company accepted nominations from
shareholders/members.

The Board nomination and election policy includes how Compliant

the board reviews the qualifications of nominated
candidates.

company’s succession planning policies and
programs and its implementation.

This is one of the responsibilities, duties, and
functions of the Corporate Governance
Committee. Please refer to:

e Annex2-MOCG, Pages 17 to 18

The Nomination Process is also detailed in the
MOCG.
e Annex 2 - MOCG, Pages 9 to 10

Included in the Shareholders’ Rights and
Protection in the MOCG are the details of the
Voting Rights and the process of these shall be
executed during Shareholders’ Meetings.

e  Annex 2 - MOCG, Page 26

Provide information or link/reference to a
document containing the company’s
remuneration policy and its implementation,
including the relationship between
remuneration and performance.

Please refer to pages 16 of SEC Form 17- A for
a detailed discussion on the Compensation of
Directors and Officers.

The recommendations are reflected in the
MOCG. Please refer to:
e Annex 2 - MOCG, Pa

e 13 to 14

Provide information or reference to a document
containing information on the company’s
nomination and election policy and process and
its implementation, including the criteria used in
selecting new directors, how the candidates are
shortlisted and how it encourages nominations
from shareholders.

Provide proof if minority shareholders have a
right to nominate candidates to the board.

Provide information if there was an assessment



directors/trustees that is aligned with the strategic
direction of the company.

Recommendation 2.6

5 | The Board nomination and election policy includes an Compliant
assessment of the effectiveness of the Board’s processes
in the nomination, election or replacement/removal of a
director.

6 | The Board has a process for identifying the quality of Compliant

approval of material RPTs, which guarantee fairness and
transparency of the transactions.

1 | The Board has overall responsibility in ensuring that Compliant
there is a policy and system governing related party
transactions (RPTs) and other unusual or infrequently
occurring transactions.

2 | The RPT policy includes appropriate review and Compliant

of the effectiveness of the Board’s processes in
the nomination, election or replacement of a
director.

For the Board nomination and election policy,
please refer to:
e Annex 2 - MOCG, Pages 9, 26, 27 and
28

The above policy outlines the process for
accepting nominations from shareholders and
conducting a board review of the qualifications
of nominees. Additionally, the policy includes
an assessment of the effectiveness of relevant
Board processes, with a focus on ensuring the
quality of directors aligns with the company’s
strategic direction.

Provide information or reference to a document
containing the company’s policy on related party
transaction, including policy on review and
approval of significant RPTs.

Identify transactions that were approved
pursuant to the policy.

The policy on Related Policy Transactions
(RPT) can be found on:

e Annex 2, MOCG, Page 18
Recommendation 2.7

performance of Management, led by the CEO or his/her
equivalent and the heads of the other control functions
(Chief Risk Officer, Chief Compliance Officer and Chief
Audit Executive, as may be applicable).

1 | The Board is primarily responsible for approving the Compliant Provide information or reference to a document
selection of Management, led by the Chief Executive 521’:;‘22:1"9 the Boar ij policy on ‘zl’é’; ‘;"’:ﬁégf
Officer (CEO) or his/her equivalent, and the heads of the 9 '
other control functions (Chief Risk Officer, Chief Identify the Management team appointed.
Compliance Officer and Chief Audit Executive, as may be
applicable). The Board’s responsibility to approve the

selection of the management is found in the
following:
e  Annex2 - MOCG, Page 11
2 | The Board is primarily responsible for assessing the Compliant Provide information or reference to a document

containing the Board’s policy on assessing the
performance of management.

Provide information on the assessment process
and indicate frequency of assessment of
performance.




Recommendation 2.8

evaluation framework that includes a standard or
criteria for assessment and ensures that personnel’s
performance is on par with the standards set by the
Board and Senior Management.

Recommendation 2.9

1 | The Board establishes an effective performance Compliant
evaluation framework that includes a standard or
criteria for assessment and ensures that Management’s
performance is on par with the standards set by the
Board and Senior Management.
2 | The Board establishes an effective performance Compliant

The Board’s responsibility to approve the
selection of the management is found in the
following:

e Annex2 - MOCG, Page 11

Provide information or link/reference to a
document containing the Board’s performance
evaluation framework for management and
personnel.

Attached is a copy of the Board Self-Assessment
Form which is made available to the members
of the Board and the relevant Board-level
committees annually.

e  Annex 4 - Self-Assessment Form

1

The Board ensures that the company has in place a sound
enterprise risk management (ERM) framework to
effectively identify, monitor, assess and manage key
business risks.

Compliant

Provide reference or link to the company’s
Internal Audit Charter.

Provide information or link/reference to a
document showing the Board’s oversight
responsibility on the establishment of a sound
enterprise risk management framework and

1 | The Board ensures that an appropriate internal control Compliant Provide information or link/reference to a
system is in place. document showing the Boqrds 'responszbllzty in
ensuring that an appropriate internal control
2 | The internal control system includes a mechanism for Compliant system is in place, and what comprises the
monitoring and managing potential/actual conflicts of internal control system.
interest of the board members/trustees, management .
d shareholders /members The responsibility of the Board to ensure that
and shareho : internal control system is in place and include
a mechanism for monitoring and managing
conflicts of interest of the Board members,
management, and shareholders is in the
following:
e Annex2 - MOCG, Page 12
3 | The Board adopts an Internal Audit Charter. Non-compliant While it is provided in the MOCG that the Audit

Committee is responsible to ensure a reliable and strong
Internal Audit Control system with the duly
appointed/registered investment managers own
internal corporate set up, due to the size and limited
scope of internal audit function at the fund, adoption of
the Internal Audit Charter is not applicable.

Please refer to:

e Annex 2 - MOCG, Page 15
Recommendation 2.10




2 | The risk management framework guides the Board in Compliant how the board was guided by the framework.
identifying units/business lines and enterprise-level risk
exposures, as well as the effectiveness of risk
management strategies.

Provide proof of effectiveness of risk
management strategies, if any.

The MOCG specifies that the Board is
responsible for implementing an Enterprise
Risk Management (ERM) framework that
enables the identification of risk exposures at
both the unit and enterprise level, as well as the
evaluation of risk management strategies for
their effectiveness. Please refer to:

e  Annex 2 - MOCG, Page 19

Recommendation 2.11

1 | The Board has a Board Charter that formalizes and Compliant Provide link to the company’s website where the
clearly states its roles, responsibilities and Board Charter is disclosed and/or other proof
accountabilities in carrying out its fiduciary duties. that it is publicly available.

2 | The Board Charter serves as a guide to the Compliant The responsibilities, duties, and functions of
the Directors are set out in the MOCG. Please
refer to: Annex 2 - MOCG, Page 10 or to the
3 | The Board Charter is publicly available. Compliant Fund’s website: https://pamifunds.com/

directors/trustees in the performance of their functions.

Principle 3. ESTABLISHING BOARD COMMITTEES

The board committees should be set up to the extent possible to support the effective performance of the Board’s functions, particularly with respect to audit, risk management,
compliance and other key corporate governance concerns, such as nomination and remuneration. The composition, functions and responsibilities of all the board committees
should be contained in their respective board committee charters.

Recommendation3.1

1 | The Board establishes board committees that focus on Compliant Provide information or link/reference to a
specific board functions to aid in the optimal document containing information of all board

. o ses committees established by the company.
performance of its roles and responsibilities.

Please refer to:

e Annex 2 - MOCG, Page 14
Recommendation 3.2

1 | The Board establishes an Audit Committee to enhance its Compliant Provide information or link/reference to a

oversight capability over the company’s financial document containing information of the Audit

: . . Committee, including its functions.
reporting, internal control system, internal and external

audit processes, and compliance with applicable laws Indicate if it is the Audit Committee’s

and regulations. responsibility to recommend the appointment

and removal of the company’s external auditor.




The responsibilities, duties, and functions of
the Audit Committee are set out in the
following:

e Annex 2 - MOCG, Page 15

1

Chairperson of the Board or of any other committee.

The Board establishes a Corporate Governance
Committee tasked to assist the Board in the performance
of its corporate governance responsibilities, including
the functions that were formerly assigned to a
Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Non-compliant

2 | The Audit Committee is composed of at least three (3) Compliant Provide information or link/reference to a
qualified non-executive directors, the majority of whom, document containing  information of the
including the Chairperson, are independent directors members of the Audit Committee, including their
inciuding p ’ p : qualifications and type of directorship.

Members of the Audit Committee as of
December 31, 2023:
Chairman:
e Fernando ]. Sison III
Members:
e Simon R. Paterno
e  Roberto de Ocampo
3 | All the members of the committee have relevant Compliant Provide information or link/reference to a
background, knowledge, skills, and/or experience in the document  containing information on the
£ ti diti d fi background,  knowledge,  skills,  and/or
areas ot accounting, auditing and finance. experience of the members of the Audit
Committee.
Please refer to:
e Annex1-SEC17-A, Pages 12 to 14
4 | The Chairperson of the Audit Committee is not the Compliant Provide information or link/reference to a

document containing information
Chairperson of the Audit Committee.

of the

Please refer to:

Provide information or reference to a document
containing information of the Corporate
Governance Committee, including its functions.

Indicate if the Committee undertook the process
of identifying the quality of directors aligned
with the company’s strategic direction, if
applicable.

The Corporate Governance Committee is composed of at
least three (3) members, majority of whom, including the
Chairperson, should be independent directors.

Non-compliant

Provide information or link/reference to a
document containing information of the
members of the Corporate Governance
Committee, including their qualifications and
type of directorship.

e Annex1-SEC17-A, Pages 12 to 13
Recommendation 3.3

While this is provided in the MOCG (Page 16), the
establishment of a separate Corporate Governance
Committee (CGC) is not necessary considering the size
and limited scope function of the company and the
regulatory guidance on governance such as the
establishment of an IOE. All corporate governance
matters are presented and discussed in the Fund’s Board
meetings.




Recommendation 3.4

The Board establishes a separate Board Risk Oversight
Committee (BROC) that should be responsible for the
oversight of a company’s Enterprise Risk Management
system to ensure its functionality and effectiveness.

Non-compliant

Provide information or link/reference to a
document containing information of the Board
Risk Oversight Committee (BROC), including its
functions

While this is provided in the MOCG (Page 16), the
establishment of a separate Board Risk Oversight
Committee is not necessary, considering the size and
limited scope function of the company and the
regulatory guidance on governance such as the

establishment of an IOE. Furthermore, most of the duties
of the Fund are delegated to the Fund Manager which has
its own Risk Management Committee.

Provide information or link/reference to a
document containing information of the
members of the BROC, including their
qualifications and type of directorship.

Provide information or link/reference to a
document containing information on the
background, skills, and/or experience of the
members of the BROC.

2 | The BROC is composed of at least three (3) members, the
majority of whom should be independent directors,
including the Chairperson.

Non-compliant

3 | Atleast one member of the BROC has relevant thorough
knowledge and experience on risk and risk management.

Non-compliant

Recommendation 3.5

1 | All established committees have a Committee Charter Compliant o . .

. . . . . Provide information or link/reference to the
stating in plain terms their respective purposes, company’s committee charters, containing all
memberships, structures, operations, reporting process, the required information, particularly the
resources and other relevant information. functions of the Committee that is necessary for

performance evaluation purposes.
2 | The Committee Charters provide standards for Compliant

evaluating the performance of a committee and its The duties and responsibilities of the
members Committees, as applicable, are set forth in the

MOCG. Please refer to:
e Annex 2 - MOCG, Pages 14 to 19

Principle 4. FOSTERING COMMITMENT

To show full commitment to the company, the directors should devote the time and attention necessary to properly and effectively perform their duties and responsibilities,
including sufficient time to be familiar with the corporation’s business.

Recommendation 4.1
1 | The Directors attend and actively participate in all

k ) Compliant Provide information or link/reference to a
meetings of  the Board, Committees and document containing the process and procedure
shareholders/members in person or through tele- for  tele/videoconferencing board and/or
/videoconferencing conducted in accordance with the committee meetings.

rules and regulations of the Commission.




The Directors review meeting materials for all Board and
Committee meetings.

Compliant

Provide information or link/reference to a
document containing the attendance and
participation of directors to Board, Committee
and shareholders’ meetings.

The process and procedure of Board,
Committee and shareholder meetings are set
out in the MOCG. Please refer to:

e Annex 2 - MOCG, Pages 13 and 28

For 2023, Board meetings were held in
February, August, and October 2023 while the
Audit Committee met once to approve the
audited Financial Statement. The meetings
were conducted physically and online, and all
directors attended the aforementioned
meetings.

1

1

The Directors ask the necessary questions or seek
clarifications and explanations during the Board and
Committee meetings.

Recommendation 4.2

Non-executive directors concurrently serve in not more
than ten (10) public companies and/or registered
issuers. If concurrently sitting in at least three (3)
publicly listed companies, the maximum concurrent
directorships shall be five (5) public companies and/or
registered issuers.

Recommendation 4.3

The Directors notify the company’s board before
accepting a directorship in another company.

Compliant

Compliant

Compliant

Provide information or link/reference to a
document containing information on any
questions raised or clarification/explanation
sought by the directors

Please refer to:
e Annex 2 - MOCG, Page 13

Disclose if the company has a policy setting the
limit of board seats that a non-executive director
can hold simultaneously.

Provide information or reference to a document
containing information on the directorships of
the company’s directors in listed companies,
registered issuers and public companies.

Non-executive directors are compliant with the
maximum concurrent directorships in public
companies and/or registered issuers. Please
refer to:

e Annex1-SEC17-A, Paie 11

Provide copy of/reference to the written
notification to the board or minutes of board
meeting wherein the matter was discussed.

Please refer to:

® Annex 2 - MOCG, Paie 12




Principle 5. REINFORCING BOARD INDEPENDENCE

1

Re

Re

Re

The Board is composed of a majority of non-executive
directors who possess the necessary qualifications.

commendation 5.2

The Board has at least two (2) independent directors or
such number as to constitute one-third (1/3) of the
board, whichever is higher.

commendation 5.3

The independent directors possess all the qualifications
and none of the disqualifications to hold the position.

commendation 5.4

The company perpetually bars an independent director
from serving in such capacity after the term limit of nine
(9) years.

Compliant

Compliant

Compliant

Compliant

The Board should endeavor to exercise an objective and independent judgment on all corporate affairs.
Recommendation 5.1

Identify or provide link/reference to a document
identifying the directors, the type of their
directorships and their qualifications.

The Board is composed of six (6) non-executive
directors.

Roberto F. De Ocampo

Ramon Paulo L. Tayag

Tomas S. Chuidian

Fernando J. Sison, II1

Simon R. Paterno

Lee Longa

A s e

Please refer to:
® Annex1-SEC17-A, Page 11

® General Information Sheet for the
Year 2023

Provide information or link/reference to a
document  containing the number of
independent directors in the board.

The Board has two (2) independent directors.
e Simon R. Paterno
e Fernando]. Sison III

Please refer to
e Annex1-SEC17-A, Page17

Provide information or link/reference to a
document containing the qualifications of
independent directors.

Please refer to:
e Annex1-SEC17-A, Page 13
e  https://pamifunds.com/board-of-
directors

Provide information or link/reference to a
document containing the company’s policy on
term limits for its independent director.




The company prohibits independent directors
from being reappointed to the same position
after the term limit of nine (9) years, ensuring
that there is a rotation of directors and fresh
perspectives are brought in. Please refer to:

e  Annex2 - MOCG, Page 7

2 | Inthe instance that the company retains an independent
director in the same capacity after nine (9) years, the
Board provides meritorious justification and seeks
shareholders’/members’ approval during the annual
regular meeting.

Recommendation 5.5

Compliant

Provide reference to the meritorious
Jjustification and proof of
shareholders’/members’ approval during the
annual regular meeting.

There has been no instance that the Company
retained an Independent Director after nine (9)
ears.

(or its equivalent) have clearly defined responsibilities.

1 | The Board designates a lead director among the
independent directors if the Chairperson of the Board is
not an independent director.

Compliant

1 | The positions of Chairperson of the Board and Chief Compliant Identify the company’s Chairperson of the Board
Executive Officer (or its equivalent) are held by separate and Chief Executive Officer (or its equivalent).
individuals. The Chairperson of the Board in 2023 is Mr.

Roberto F. De Ocampo and the President is
Reynaldo G. Geronimo. Please refer to:
e Annex1-SEC17-A, page 12
2 | The Chairperson of the Board and Chief Executive Officer Compliant Provide information or link/reference to a

document  containing the roles and
responsibilities of the Chairperson of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer (or its equivalent).
Identify the relationship of the Chairperson and
CEO.

The duties and responsibilities of the
chairperson and Chief Executive
Officer/President are on:

e  Annex 2 - MOCG, page 5
Recommendation 5.6

Provide information or link/reference to a
document containing information on a lead
independent director and his roles and
responsibilities, if any.
Indicate if Chairperson is an independent
director.

Fernando J. Sison, III is the Lead Independent
Director.




The Directors/Trustees with material interest in a
transaction affecting the corporation fully disclose
his/her adverse interest, abstain from taking part in the
deliberations for the same, and recuse from voting on the
approval of transaction.

Compliant

director, if applicable.

Principle 6. ASSESSING BOARD PERFORMANCE

1 | The non-executive directors (NEDs) have separate Compliant
periodic meetings with the external auditor and heads of
the internal audit, compliance, and risk functions,
without any executive directors present.

2 | The meetings are chaired by the lead independent Compliant

Provide proof of full disclosure and abstention, if
any, of the interested director/trustee.

The Directors are required to abstain from
transactions in which he has adverse interest.
Please refer to:

e Annex 2 - MOCG, Page 12
Recommendation 5.8

Provide proof and details of said meeting, if any.
Provide information on the frequency and
attendees of meetings.

Please refer to Page 20 of Annex 1 - SEC Form
17-A for exhibits and schedules of Annex 1 -
SEC 17-A_PAMI Horizon Fund Inc.

performance.

Recommendation 6.2

1 | The Board conducts an annual self-assessment of its Compliant
performance as a whole.

2 | The Chairperson conducts an annual self-assessment of Compliant
his performance.

3 | The individual members conduct a self-assessment of Compliant
their performance.

4 | Each committee conducts a self-assessment of its Compliant

shareholders/members.

1 | The Board has in place a system that provides, at the Compliant
minimum, criteria and process to determine the
performance of the Board, individual directors/trustees
and committees.

2 | The system allows for a feedback mechanism from the Compliant

The best measure of the Board'’s effectiveness is through an assessment process. The Board should regularly carry out evaluations to appraise its performance as a body and
assess whether it possesses the right mix of backgrounds and competencies.

Recommendation 6.1

Provide proof of self-assessments conducted by
the whole board, the individual members, the
Chairperson and the Committees.

Please see attached copy of the Self-assessment
form.
e Annex4 - Self-Assessment Form

Provide information or link/reference to a
document containing information on the system
of the company to evaluate the performance of
the board, individual directors and committees,
including a feedback mechanism from
shareholders/members.

Please refer to:

e Annex 2 - MOCG, Paie 11

Principle 7. STRENGTHENING BOARD ETHICS

The Board directors are duty-bound to apply high ethical standards, taking into account the interests of all stakeholders.




Recommendation 7.1

The Board adopts a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics,
which provide standards for professional and ethical
behavior, as well as articulate acceptable and
unacceptable conduct and practices in internal and
external dealings of board members.

Compliant

The Code is properly disseminated to the members of
Board.

Compliant

1

The Code is disclosed and made available to the public
through the company website.

The Board ensures the proper and efficient
implementation and monitoring of compliance with the
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

Non-compliant

Compliant

Provide information or link/reference to the
company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

Provide information or discuss how the company
disseminated the Code to the members of the
Board.

Provide a link to the company’s website where
the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is
posted/ disclosed.

The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics of the
Fund Manager covers the standards and
practices in maintaining the professional and
ethical management of the Company. By
adhering to the principles and standards set
forth in the Code, the Fund Manager is able to
ensure that the Company's business is
conducted with the highest level of integrity
and in accordance with the best interests of the
Company and its stakeholders. This not only
helps to establish trust and confidence among
shareholders, clients, and other stakeholders,
but also helps to foster a culture of ethical
behavior within the organization.

Provide proof of implementation and
monitoring of compliance with the Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics.

Indicate who are required to comply with the
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and any
findings on non-compliance.

The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics of the
Fund Manager covers the standards and
practices in maintaining the professional and
ethical management of the Company. By
adhering to the principles and standards set
forth in the Code, the Fund Manager is able to
ensure that the Company's business is
conducted with the highest level of integrity
and in accordance with the best interests of the
Company and its stakeholders. This not only
helps to establish trust and confidence among
shareholders, clients, and other stakeholders,
but also helps to foster a culture of ethical
behavior within the organization.

Moving forward, the company will ensure that a copy of
the Code is made available on the website for the
stakeholders’ reference.

Recommendation 7.2




DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY

Principle 8. ENHANCING COMPANY DISCLOSURE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

1

Re

The Board establishes corporate disclosure policies and
procedures to ensure a comprehensive, accurate,
reliable and timely report to shareholders/members and
other stakeholders that gives a fair and complete picture
of a company’s financial condition, results and business
operations.

commendation 8.2

The Board should establish corporate disclosure policies and procedures that are practical and in accordance with generally accepted best practices and regulatory
expectations.

Recommendation 8.1

Compliant Provide information or link/reference to the
company’s disclosure policies and procedures
including reports distributed/made available to

shareholders/members and other stockholders.

Please refer to:
e Annex 2 - MOCG, Page 25

Re

disclose/report to the company any dealings in the
company’s shares within five (5) business days.

commendation 8.3

1 | The company has a policy requiring all directors to Compliant Provide information or link/reference to the
disclose/report to the company any dealings in the company’s policy requiring directors and officers
, 1 . to disclose their dealings in the company’s
company’s shares within five (5) business days. shares.
2 | The company has a policy requiring all officers to Compliant

Indicate actual dealings of directors involving
the corporation’s shares including their nature,
number/percentage and date of transaction.

Please refer to:
® Annex 2 - MOCG, Page 25

Re

commendation 8.4

1 | The company’s corporate governance policies, programs Compliant Provide link to the company’s website where the
and procedures are contained in its Manual on Corporate Manual on Corporate Governance is posted.
Governance (MCG). The copy of the Manual on Corporate

2 | The company’s MCG is submitted to the SEC. Compliant glo"emaf}cetis attached in  this document.

ease rerer to:

3 | The company’s MCG is posted on the company website. Compliant e Annex?2 - MOCG

Please refer to:
e  https://pamifunds.com

Recommendationga S P

1 | The company’s corporate governance policies and Compliant o ) .
practices and all relevant information are disclosed in its Provide link to the company’s website where the
Annual Corporate Governance Report is posted.
Annual Corporate Governance Report (ACGR).
2 | The company’s ACGR is submitted to the SEC. Compliant Please refer to:

The company’s ACGR is posted on the company website.

e  https://pamifunds.com/

Compliant




Principle 9. STRENGTHENING EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE AND IMPROVING AUDIT QUALITY

The company should establish standards for the appropriate selection of an external auditor, and exercise effective oversight of the same to strengthen the external auditor’s
independence and enhance audit quality.

Recommendation 9.1

1 | The Audit Committee has a robust process for approving Compliant Provide information or link/reference to a
and recommending the appointment, reappointment, document containing the process for approving

] df fext 1 audit and  recommending  the  appointment,
removal, and tees ot external auditors. reappointment, removal and fees of the

company’s external auditor.

Please refer to:
e Annex1-SEC17-A, Page 20
e  Annex 2 - MOCG, Page 22

2 | The appointment, reappointment, removal, and fees of Compliant Indicate the percentage of shareholders that
the external auditor is recommended by the Audit ratified  the appointment,  reappointment,
Committee, approved by the Board and the removal and fees of the external auditor.
shareholders/members. Please refer to:

e Annex1-SEC17-A, Page 20
e  Annex2 - MOCG, Page 16

3 | For the removal of external auditor, the reasons for such Compliant Provide information or link/reference to a

removal or change are disclosed to the SEC, the document containing the company’s reason for
. ’ lorch ternal auditor.

shareholders/members, and the public through the removal or change of external auditor.

company website and required disclosures. Please refer to:
e Annex 2 - MOCG, Page 22
Recommendation 9.2
1 | The Audit Committee Charter includes the Audit Compliant
Committee’s responsibility on:
i. assessing the integrity and independence of external
ﬁuditors.; . ) ) ) ) Provide link/reference to the company’s Audit
ii. exercising effective oversight to review and monitor Committee Charter.
the external auditor’s independence and objectivity; and
iii. exercising effective oversight to review and monitor The duties and responsibilities of the
the effectiveness of the audit process, taking into Committees, as applicable, are set forth in the
) ) AR p e 8 MOCG. Please refer to:
consideration relevant Philippine professional and o  Annex2 - MOCG, Pages 15 to 16
regulatory requirements.
2 | The Audit Committee Charter contains the Committee’s Compliant

responsibility on reviewing and monitoring the external
auditor’s suitability and effectiveness on an annual basis.

Recommendation 9.3



1 | The company discloses the nature of non-audit services Compliant Disclose the nature of non-audit services
performed by its external auditor in the Annual Report performed by the external auditor, if any.
to manage potential conflict of interest cases. The Company did not engage the external
auditor for other services.
Please refer to:
e Annex1,SEC17-A, Page 20
2 | The Audit Committee stays alert for any potential Compliant Provide link or reference to guidelines or policies
conflict of interest situations, given the guidelines or on non-audit services.
policies on non-audit services, which could be viewed
. .. e L Please refer to:
as impairing the external auditor’s objectivity. e Annex 2, MOCG, Page 20

The Board should ensure that the company discloses material and reportable non-financial and sustainability issues.
Recommendation 10.1

and other stakeholders the company’s strategic and
operational objectives with emphasis on the
management of environmental, economic, social and
governance (EESG) issues of its business which underpin
sustainability.

1 | The Board has a clear and focused strategy on the Compliant Disclose or provide link to the company’s policies
disclosure of non-financial information. and practices on the disclosure of non-financial
information, including EESG issues.
d | The company discloses to all shareholders/members Non-compliant

Provide link or reference to the company’s
disclosure of strategic and operational
objectives, with emphasis on EESG matters.

Principle 11. PROMOTING A COMPREHENSIVE AND COST-EFFICIENT ACCESS TO RELEVANT INFORMATION

Most of the duties of the Fund are delegated and
conducted mainly by the Fund Manager who has
adequate knowledge and practice of Environment,
Social, and Governance (“ESG”).

For the Environment, Social, and Governance (“ESG”) of
the Fund Manager (BPI Wealth), please refer to:
https://www.bpi.com.ph/wealth/assetandwealth/who-
we-are/annual-report.

Moving forward, the Company is committed to assessing
the relevance/applicability of a framework for the
management of EESG issues and to provide transparent

disclosure in our future reports and communications.

1

Recommendation 11.1

The company has a website to ensure a comprehensive,
cost-efficient, transparent, and timely manner of
disseminating relevant information to the public.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORKS
Principle 12. STRENGTHENING INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

Compliant Provide link to the company's website.

Please refer to:
e  https://pamifunds.com/

The company should maintain a comprehensive and cost-efficient communication channel for disseminating relevant information. This channel is crucial for an informed
decision-making by investors, stakeholders, and other interested users.




To ensure the integrity, transparency and proper governance in the conduct of its affairs, the company should have a strong and effective internal control system and enterprise
risk management system.

Recommendation 12.1

1 | The company has an adequate and effective internal Compliant List quality service programs for the internal
control system in the conduct of its business. audit functions.

Indicate frequency of review of the internal
control system.

The business of the Company is conducted
mainly by the Fund Manager who has adequate
internal control systems. For the internal
control systems of the Fund Manager (BPI
Wealth), please refer to:

https://www.bpi.com.ph/wealth /assetandwealth/who-we-

are/annual-report.

Furthermore, most of the duties of the Fund are
delegated to the Fund Manager who have
adequate risk management processes, policies,
and procedures; appropriate risk
measurement system, prudent risk limits,
monitoring and management information
system; and comprehensive and effective
internal control system and, audit and
compliance program.

2 | The company has an adequate and effective enterprise Compliant Identify international framework used for
risk management framework in the conduct of its Enterprise Risk Management.
business. Provide information or reference to a document

containing information on:
1. Company’s risk management procedures and
processes.

2. Key risks the company is currently facing.
3. How the company manages the key risks.

Indicate frequency of review of the enterprise
risk management framework.

The business of the Company is conducted
mainly by the Fund Manager who has an
adequate Enterprise Risk Management
Framework. For the Enterprise Risk
Management Framework of the Fund Manager

(BPI Wealth), please refer to:
https://www.bpi.com.ph/wealth/assetandwealth/who-we-
are/annual-report.



https://www.bpi.com.ph/wealth/assetandwealth/who-we-are/annual-report
https://www.bpi.com.ph/wealth/assetandwealth/who-we-are/annual-report
https://www.bpi.com.ph/wealth/assetandwealth/who-we-are/annual-report
https://www.bpi.com.ph/wealth/assetandwealth/who-we-are/annual-report

Furthermore, most of the duties of the Fund are
delegated to the Fund Manager who have
adequate risk management processes, policies,
and procedures; appropriate risk
measurement system, prudent risk limits,
monitoring and management information
system; and comprehensive and effective
internal control system and, audit and
compliance program.

Recommendation 12.2

1 | The company has in place an independent internal audit Compliant Disclose if the internal audit is in-house or
function that provides an independent and objective z;‘r’:s”r ced. If outsourced, identify external firm
assurance, and consulting services designed to add value '
and improve the company’s operations. The Company has engaged an external auditor
which has issued an unqualified audit opinion
for 2023. Please refer to:

e Annex1-SEC17-A, Pa

e 30

CULTIVATING A SYNERGIC RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS/MEMBERS

Principle 13. PROMOTING SHAREHOLDER/MEMBER RIGHTS
The company should treat all shareholders/members fairly and equitably, and also recognize, protect and facilitate the exercise of their rights.
Recommendation 13.1

1 | The Board ensures that basic shareholder/member Compliant Provide link or reference to the company’s

rights are disclosed in the Manual on Corporate Manual on Corporate Governance where
shareholders’/members’ rights are disclosed.
Governance.

Please refer to:

e Annex 2 - MOCG, Pages 26 to 28
Recommendation 13.2

1 | The Board encourages active shareholder participation Compliant Indicate the number of days before the annual or
by sending the Notice of Annual and Special special.stockholders'/members' meeting when
) , . . . . the notice and agenda were sent out.
Shareholders’/Members’ Meeting with sufficient and Provide link to the Agenda included in the
relevant information at least twenty-one (21) days company’s Information Statement (SEC Form
before the meeting. 20-1S).

The Annual Stockholders Meeting was held
physically at BPI Ayala Triangle Gardens Tower
2 and conducted virtually via Zoom on October
12,2023 (Thursday) at 11:00 a.m. to 12:00 n.n.
The notice and agenda for the Annual
Stockholders Meeting are indicated in the
Notice to the stockholders, SEC Form 20-IS.




1

The Board encourages active shareholder/member
participation by making the result of the votes taken
during the most recent Annual or Special
Shareholders’/Members’ Meeting publicly available the
next working day.

Compliant

1

The minutes of the Annual and Special
Shareholders’/Members’ Meetings were made available
on the company website within five (5) business days
from the date of the meeting.

The Board makes available, at the option of a
shareholder/member, an alternative dispute
mechanism to resolve intra-corporate disputes in an
amicable and effective manner.

Compliant

Compliant

Please refer to:
e Annex 2 - MOCG, Page 29

Recommendation 13.3

Provide information or reference to a document
containing all relevant questions raised and
answers during the ASM and special meeting
and the results of the vote taken during the most
recent ASM/SSM.

Provide link to minutes of meeting in the
company website.

Indicate voting results for all agenda items,
including the approving, dissenting and
abstaining votes.

Indicate also if the voting on resolutions was by
poll

Include whether there was opportunity to ask
question and the answers given, if any.

The minutes of the Annual Stockholders
Meeting (ASM) are made available on the
website after the ASM and are removed before
the following ASM.

Stockholders voted in person or through proxy
through designed forms submitted through
mail, email/electronic means or faxpro. The
preliminary results of the voting tickets were
validated on October 11, 2023 and were
presented during the Annual Stockholders
Meeting.

The results were reflected in the minutes of the

meeting.
Recommendation 13.4

Provide details of the alternative dispute
resolution made available to resolve intra-
corporate disputes.

Provide link/reference to where it is found in the
Manual on Corporate Governance.

Please refer to:
e  Annex2 - MOCG, Page 28




Recommendation 13.5

1 | The Board establishes an Investor Relations Office (IRO) Compliant Disclose the contact details of the officer/office
or Customer Relations Office (CRO) or its equivalent to responsible for investor relations, such as:
ensure constant engagement with its

1. Name of the person
shareholders/members. 2. Telephone number

3. Fax number
4. E-mail address

For inquiries, investors may contact the

principal distributor at
bpi investment@bpi.com.ph
2 | The IRO or CRO or its equivalent is present at every Compliant Indicate if the IRO or CRO or its equivalent was
shareholders’/members’ meeting. present during the ASM.

Senior officers of the fund manager and
principal distributor attended the Annual
Stockholder Meeting for this Fund on October
12,2023.

DUTIES TO STAKEHOLDERS

Principle 14. RESPECTING RIGHTS OF STAKEHOLDERS AND EFFECTIVE REDRESS FOR VIOLATION OF STAKEHOLDER’S RIGHTS

The rights of stakeholders established by law, by contractual relations and through voluntary commitments must be respected. Where stakeholders’ rights and/or interests
are at stake, stakeholders should have the opportunity to obtain prompt effective redress for the violation of their rights.

Recommendation 14.1
1 | The Board identifies the company’s various stakeholders Compliant [dentify the company’s stakeholders and provide
and promotes cooperation between them and the information or reference to a document

. . . .- containing the company'’s policies and programs
company in creating wealth, growth and sustainability. for its Sm‘Z chold er;’ vsp prog

Please refer to:
e Annex 2 - MOCG, Page 29

Recommendation 14.2
1 | The Board establishes clear policies and programs to Compliant Identify  policies and programs for the
provide a mechanism on the fair treatment, protection pg"t‘?c’;f””' fa;;r treatment a”‘]i( Z”f;‘(’jr cement of
and enforcement of the rights of stakeholders. the rights of the company’s stakeholders

Please refer to:
e Annex 2 - MOCG, Page 29

Principle 15. ENCOURAGING EMPLOYEES’ PARTICIPATION

A mechanism for employee participation should be developed to create a symbiotic working environment consistent with the realization of the company’s objectives and good
corporate governance goals.

Recommendation 15.1



mailto:bpi_investment@bpi.com.ph

The Board establishes policies, programs and
procedures that encourage employees to actively
participate in the realization of the company’s goals and
in its governance.

Recommendation 15.2

1

The Board sets the tone and makes a stand against
corrupt practices by adopting an anti-corruption policy
and program in its Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

Compliant

Compliant

The Board disseminates the policy and program to
employees across the organization through trainings to
embed them in the company’s culture.

Recommendation 15.3

The Board establishes a suitable framework for
whistleblowing that allows employees to freely

Compliant

Compliant

Provide information or link/reference to
company policies, programs and procedures
that encourage employee participation.

The business of the Company is conducted mainly by
the Fund Manager who has sound and effective
corporate governance. For the corporate governance
of the Fund Manager (BPI Wealth), please refer to:

https://www.bpi.com.ph/wealth/assetandwealth/who-
we-are/annual-report.

Furthermore, The Board of Directors and
Management have adopted a framework of policies,
rules, systems, and processes for the Company that
governs the performance by the Board of Directors
and Management of their respective duties and
responsibilities to  stockholders and other
stakeholders which include, among others,
customers, employees, suppliers, regulators,
government and the community in which it operates

Identify or provide link/reference to the
company’s policies, programs and practices
against corruption.

Identify how the board disseminated the policy
and program to the employees across the
organization.

The business of the Company is conducted mainly by
the Fund Manager who has Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics. For the Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics of the Fund Manager (BPI Wealth), please refer
to:

https://www.bpi.com.ph/wealth/assetandwealth/who-
we-are/annual-report.

Furthermore, the Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics (“the Code”) of the Fund Manager aims to
provide as guide to employees of the Company in
meeting ethical duties and responsibilities in
compliance with the implemented rules and
regulations of the industry. The codes serve as
guidance so that the right decisions are made in the
performance of their respective roles and
responsibilities across various functions in the
Company.




communicate their concerns about illegal or unethical
practices, without fear of retaliation.

the whistleblowing framework.

2 | The Board establishes a suitable framework for Compliant
whistleblowing that allows employees to have direct
access to an independent member of the Board or a unit
created to handle whistleblowing concerns.

3 | The Board supervises and ensures the enforcement of Compliant

Disclose or provide link/reference to the
company whistleblowing policy and procedure
for employees.

Indicate if the framework includes procedures to
protect the employees from retaliation.

Provide contact details to report any illegal or
unethical behavior.

Provide information on how the board
supervised and ensured enforcement of the
whistleblowing  framework, including any
incident of whistleblowing.

The business of the Company is conducted mainly by
the Fund Manager who has adequate Whistleblower
Policy. For the Whistleblower Policy of the Fund
Manager (BPI Wealth), please refer to:

https://www.bpi.com.ph/wealth/assetandwealth/who-
we-are/annual-report.

Furthermore, the Whistleblower Policy of the Fund
Manager addresses the commitment of BPI Wealth to
integrity and ethical behavior by helping to foster
and maintain an environment where whistleblowers

can act aiiroiriateli, without fear of retaliation.

Principle 16. ENCOURAGING SUSTAINABILITY AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

1

Recommendation 16.1

The company recognizes and places importance on the
interdependence between business and society and
promotes a mutually beneficial relationship that allows
the company to grow its business, while contributing to
the advancement of the society where it operates.

Compliant

The company should be socially responsible in all its dealings with the communities in which it operates. It should ensure that its interactions serve its environment and
stakeholders in a positive and progressive manner that is fully supportive of its comprehensive and balanced development.

Provide information or reference to a document
containing  the  company’s  community
involvement and environment-related
programs.

Please refer to:
e  Annex 2 - MOCG, Page 4




CERTI TION

The undersigned certify that the responses and explanations set forth in the above PAMI
PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc. Integrated Annual Corporate Governance Report covering 2023
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-A, AS AMENDED

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141
OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES

1. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023

2. SEC Identification Number A199713137

3. BIR Tax Identification No. 005-061-143

4. Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc.

Metro Manila, Philippines
5. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

6. Industry Classification Code (SEC use Only)

17/F, Philam Life Head Office, Net Lima Building, 5th Avenue corner 26th Street, Bonifacio
Global City, Taguig 1634

7. Address of principal office

8. Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (632) 8580-0900

N/A
9. Former name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last report

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC, or Sec. 4 and 8 of the RSA

Title of each class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding as of 31 December 2023

Common voting stock 141,343,196 Shares
11. Are any or all of these securities listed on a Stock Exchange?

Yes () No (x)

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
12. Check whether the registrant:
has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17.1 thereunder or

Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141 of The Corporation
Code of the Philippines during the preceding twelve (12) months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to file such reports);

Yes (x) No ()

has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days.
Yes (x) No ()

13. State the aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant. The
aggregate market value shall be computed by reference to the price at which the stock was sold, or the



average bid and asked prices of such stock, as of a specified date within sixty (60) days prior to the date
of filing. If a determination as to whether a particular person or entity is an affiliate cannot be made
without involving unreasonable effort and expense, the aggregate market value of the common stock
held by non-affiliates may be calculated on the basis of assumptions reasonable under the
circumstances, provided the assumptions are set forth in this Form: Please refer to the audited financial
statements.

APPLICABLE ONLY TO REGISTRANTS INVOLVED IN
INSOLVENCY/SUSPENSION OF PAYMENTS PROCEEDINGS
DURING THE PRECEDING FIVE YEARS:

14. Check whether the registrant has filed all documents and reports required to be filed by Section 17
of the Code subsequent to the distribution of securities under a plan confirmed by a court or the
Commission.

Not applicable
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

15. If any of the following documents are incorporated by reference, briefly describe them and identify
the part of the SEC Form 17-A into which the document is incorporated:

a. any annual report to security holders;
b. any information statement filed pursuant to SRC Rule 20;
c. any prospectus filed pursuant to SRC Rule 8.1.

a. Annual Report:

1. 2023 Annual Report (incorporated)
2. 2023 Audited Financial Statements (attached)

PART I - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION
ITEM NO.1 BUSINESS

PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc. (PHFI) is a stock corporation incorporated on August 8, 1997. The Fund’s
sole product is shares (securities) of PHFI. Philam Asset Management Inc. (PAMI) is the investment
adviser and distributor of Fund until January 28, 2020.

Effective January 29, 2020, PAMI assigned all its rights, interests, and obligations as fund manager,
advisor, distributor, and transfer agent of the Fund to BPI Investment Management, Inc (BIMI), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Bank of the Philippine Islands (BPI). Henceforth, the management, distribution and
transfer agency functions are performed by BIMI over the Fund. Services, contracts and agreements are
in force with BIML

Effective April 1, 2023, BPI Investment Management, Inc. (BIMI), wholly-owned subsidiary of Bank of
the Philippine Islands (BPI) assigned all its right, interests, and obligations as fund manager, advisor of
the Fund to BPI Wealth - A Trust Corporation (BPI Wealth), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bank of the
Philippine Islands (BPI). Henceforth, the management functions are performed by BPI Wealth over the
Fund. Services, contracts and agreements are in force with BPI Wealth.

The Fund has appointed BPI Investment Management, Inc. (BIMI) as principal distributor with the
authority to appoint sub-distributors on behalf of the fund. Under the terms of the agreement, BIMI
and/ or its sub-distributors perform daily functions related to the marketing and the growth of the level
of assets of the Fund.



BPI Asset Management and Trust Corporation (the “Company” or “BPI AMTC”) is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Bank of the Philippine Island (BPI), a domestic commercial bank with an expanded
banking license in the Philippines. It was incorporated and registered with the Philippine Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC) on October 6, 2016 primarily to carry and engage in the business of
trust, other fiduciary business and investment management business which may legally be had or done
by trust corporations organized under and in accordance with Republic Act No. 8791 (The General
Banking Law of 2000) and its implementing regulations as it exists or may be amended and to do all
other things incident thereto and necessary and proper in connection with said purposes within such
territory, as may be determined by the Monetary Board of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP). The
corresponding Certificate of Authority to Operate was issued by the BSP to the Company on December
29, 2016.

In February 2023, the Company announced the change in its trade name from BPI Asset Management
and Trust Corporation to BPI Wealth - A Trust Corporation, or simply BPI Wealth.

PHFI is an open-ended mutual fund whose shares will be offered to the public at net asset value with
a minimum initial investment of Php5,000 and minimum additional purchase of Php1,000. PHFI
considers a medium to long-term investment horizon for its shareholders.

As of December 2023, the size of the local mutual fund industry stood at PhP 232.95 Billion in Net
Assets. The principal method of competition within the mutual fund industry is size of assets under
management, return on investment and service. PHFI is categorized under the peso-denominated
balanced fund segment with twelve (12) other competitors.

The major competitor of PHFI is the other BPI Wealth managed fund, the Philam Fund, Inc with PhP
1.98 Billion Net Asset as of December 2023. Other competitors include: Sun Life Prosperity Balanced
Fund, Inc., First Metro Save and Learn Balanced Fund, Inc., Sun Life Prosperity Dynamic Fund, Inc.,
ATRAM Philippine Balanced Fund, Inc., NCM Mutual Fund of the Phils.,Inc., Solidaritas Fund, Inc.
(formerly, Bahay Pari Solidaritas Fund, Inc.), ATRAM Dynamic Allocation Fund, Inc., Sun Life
Prosperity Achiever Fund 2028, Inc., Sun Life Prosperity Achiever Fund 2038, Inc., Sun Life Prosperity
Achiever Fund 2048, Inc., First Metro Save and Learn F.O.C.C.U.S. Dynamic Fund, Inc.,

PHFI will be offered to the public primarily by BIMI affiliated agents who are SEC Certified Investment
Solicitors as well as institutional third-party distributors.

As an investment manager of PHFI, BPI Wealth - A Trust Corporation is tasked to formulate and
implement the investment strategy of the Fund, and to provide and render management, technical, and
administrative services to the Fund.

The management fee to be charged by the Fund Manager is a maximum of 1.85% per year, which will
be accrued based on the daily Net Asset Value of the fund. The Fund’s entry fee varies depending on
the shareholder’s investment amount. A sales load of not more than 3.00% will also be charged.

The Custodial Agreement establishes the relationship among PHFI, BPI Wealth and Citibank, N.A.,
with Citibank, N.A. as the custodian bank. The Custodial Agreement covers the custodian bank’s
duties on receipt of securities, identification and segregation of assets, registration of assets, reports and
records to be accomplished by the custodian bank, and custody of PHFI investments.

As Transfer Agent of PHFI, BIMI shall provide transfer agency services including the maintenance of
the official stock and transfer book of the Fund, the issuance of shareholders’ Transaction
Advice/Notice or Certificate of Stock, and payment of dividends, if any.

On March 16, 2020, the Philippine government declared the entire Luzon Island under an enhanced
community quarantine (ECQ) due to the increasing number of corona virus disease (COVID-19) cases
in the country. The ECQ mandated the close of non-essential business establishments and strict home
quarantine resulting to a slowdown of economy. Measures are in place to support business continuity
and manage financial risk to a minimum.



Employees

PHFI employs no personnel as it functions solely through its Fund Manager, BPI Wealth - A Trust
Corporation.

Government Regulations and Risks

As an investment company, PHFI is governed by the rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), particularly the Investment Company Act, ICA Rule 35-1,
Corporation Code of the Philippines and the Securities Regulation Code. PHFI observes and complies
with all government laws, rules and regulations that exist. PHFI is not aware of any probable
government regulations that may materially affect its business.

The Fund may also invest in SEC-registered debt papers or other certificate of
indebtedness/obligations, issuers of whom had been determined as financially sound and approved
by the Investment Committee of the Fund Manager.

The Fund is exposed to financial risk through its financial assets. The most important components are:

o  Credit risk - Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge
an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

e  Liquidity risk - Liquidity or funding risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in
raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may
result from either the inability to sell financial assets quickly at their fair values; or counterparty
failing on repayment of a contractual obligation; or inability to generate cash inflows as
anticipated.

e  Market risk - Market risk is the risk of change in fair value of financial instruments from
fluctuation in foreign exchange rates (currency risk), market interest rates (fair value interest
rate risk) and market prices (equity price risk), whether such change in fair value is caused by
factors specific to the individual instrument, or its issuer, or factors affecting all instruments
traded in the market.

These risks arise from open positions in interest rate products, all of which are exposed to general and
specific market movements. The Fund will manage risks by constant monitoring of interest rates,
economic indicators and developments in the socio-political scene.

ITEM NO. 2 PROPERTIES

PHFI does not own any real or personal properties (such as real estate, plant and equipment, mines,
patent, etc.). Neither does the Fund lease any property nor does it intend to acquire any real or personal
properties within the next 12 months.

ITEM NO. 3 LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There is no pending litigation or arbitration proceedings where PHFI is a party and no litigation or
claim of material importance is known to the Directors of PHFI to be pending or threatened against the
Fund during the past five (5) years up to the date of this document.

ITEM NO.4 SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

Not Applicable



PART II - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM NO.5 MARKET FOR ISSUER'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

Market Information

PHFI is not listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange. The shares are being sold by SEC Certified
Investment Solicitors (CISols) thru the fund’s authorized distributors.

NAVPS per quarter for the year 2023

QUARTER DATE NAVPS

1st 14-Mar-23 3.4116 LOW
18-Jan-23 3.6136 HIGH

2nd 19-Apr-23 3.4634 LOW
19-May-23 3.5662 HIGH

3rd 20-Sep-23 3.3752 LOW
27-Jul-23 3.5547 HIGH

4th 30-Oct-23 3.342 LOW
28-Dec-23 3.5791 HIGH

NAVPS per quarter for the year 2022

QUARTER DATE NAVPS
Ist 14-Mar-22 3.5937 LOW
09-Feb-22 3.8133 HIGH
2nd 23-Jun-22 3.3451 LOW
01-Apr-22 3.704 HIGH
3rd 14-Mar-22 3.5937 LOW
09-Feb-22 3.8133 HIGH
4th 02-Oct-22 3.2061 LOW
29-Nov-22 3.5139 HIGH

NAVPS per quarter for the year 2021

QUARTER DATE NAVPS
Ist 22-Mar-21 3.5064 LOW
11-Jan-21 3.8348 HIGH
2nd 24-May-21 3.4591 LOW
16-Jun-21 3.7067 HIGH
3rd 3-Aug-21 3.503 LOW
5-Jul-21 3.729 HIGH
4th 1-Dec-21 3.6613 LOW
09-Nov-21 3.7962 HIGH

Dividends

Although there are no restrictions that limit the Fund’s ability to pay dividends, PHFI has not declared
any cash dividends for the last three (3) years. The Board of Directors of PHFI may decide to declare
dividends, whether in the form of cash, property or stock, from the unrestricted retained earnings of
the Fund at a time and percentage as the PHFI Board may deem proper and in accordance with the
pertinent laws.



e Under RA. 2629, it shall be unlawful for any registered investment company to pay any
dividend, or make any distribution in the nature of a dividend payment, wholly or partly from
any source other than: (i) from the investment company’s accumulated undistributed net
income, determined in accordance with good accounting practice and including profits or
losses realized upon the sale of securities or properties; or (ii) from the Fund’s earned surplus
so determined for the current or preceding fiscal year, unless such payment is accompanied by
a written statement which adequately discloses the source or sources of such payment. The
SEC may prescribe the form of such statement by rules or regulations or by order in the public
interest and for the protection of investors. It shall also be unlawful to advertise such dividends
in terms of centavos or pesos per share without also stating the percentage they bear to the par
value per share.

Holders

As of December 31, 2023, there were a total of 9,899 holders of redeemable common stock

NO Name of Client # of Shares % of Ownership
STANFILCO MANAGERIAL EMPLOYEES 0
1 PROVIDENT 3,275,664 2.32%
UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN 0
2 PHILIPPINES FOUNDATION, INC. 3,172,909 2.24%
3 SALES, JOSE 2,780,937 1.97%
4 ACOSTA, ASER S 1,731,283 1.22%
5 MARGAROLI, ANNABELLE A 1,707,268 1.21%
6 TIU, ROSITA CHUA 1,669,736 1.18%
7 FERRER, ROWENA 1,599,660 1.13%
PHILIPPINE SOCIETY OF 0
8 HYPERTENSION INC. 1,595,884 113%
9 SALES, EDWIN C 1,440,590 1.02%
SAGIP BUHAY MEDICAL 0
10 FOUNDATION, INC. 1,240,839 0.88%
1 ;IEQVEL MANAGERS INTERNATIONAL, 1216477 0.86%
12 PALARAN, ANITA S 1,213,944 0.86%
13 HEALTH MAINTENANCE, INC. 1,103,208 0.78%
14 g;IC():ILO IT ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, 1101584 0.78%
15 ANG, MARGARET GAISANO 1,068,174 0.76 %
16 G & B PHARMA CORP. 1,044,415 0.74%
17 RODRIGUEZ, RICARDO C 1,002,941 0.71%
PARTNERSHIP FOR DEVELOPMENT 0
18 ASSISTANCE IN THE PHILIPPINES INC. 974,189 0.69%
19 GO, GERRY Q 964,830 0.68%
20 ONGKEKO, VERONICA S 947,764 0.67%

As of December 31, 2022, there were a total of 10,126 holders of redeemable common stock

NO Name of Client # of Shares # of Ownership
1 STANFILCO MANAGERIAL EMPLOYEES 3,275,664.0 2 06%
PROVIDENT P
’ UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN 3,172,909 1.99°,

PHILIPPINES FOUNDATION, INC.
3 RECTO, ANA ISABEL C 3,110,201 1.95%




4 SALES, JOSE 2,780,937 1.75%
5 FERRER, ROWENA 1,772,784 1.11%
6 ACOSTA, ASER S 1,731,283 1.09%
7 MARGAROLI, ANNABELLE A 1,707,268 1.07%
8 TIU, ROSITA CHUA 1,669,736 1.05%
9 PHILIPPINE SOCIETY OF 1,593,884 1.00%
HYPERTENSION INC. SRR
10 | MISON, SALVADOR MELCHORJR 1,549,878 0.97%
BUENO R
11 | SALES, EDWIN C 1,440,590 0.91%
1» | SAGIP BUHAY MEDICAL 1,240,839 0.78%
FOUNDATION, INC. en
13 | DOLENDO, JOSE MARIA F 1,221,786 0.77%
TRAVEL MANAGERS INTERNATIONAL, 1,216,477 .
14 0.76%
INC.
15 | PALARAN, ANITA S 1,213,944 0.76%
16 | HEALTH MAINTENANCE, INC. 1,103,208 0.69%
ILOILO Il ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, 1,101,584 .
17 0.69%
INC.
18 | ANG, MARGARET GAISANO 1,068,174 0.67%
19 | ROELLI, MA. TERESA GEMPERLE 1,055,140 0.66%
20 | G & BPHARMA CORP. 1,044,415 0.66%

As of December 31, 2021, there were a total of 10,297 holders of redeemable common stock

# of
No. Name of Client # of Shares Ownership
1 | GO, GERRY Q 15,795,038 5.38%
STANFILCO MANAGERIAL EMPLOYEES
2 | PROVIDENT 9,315,758 3.17%
3 | SALES, JOSE 5,892,937 2.01%
THE PROVINCIAL SUPERIOR OF THE
HANDMAIDS OF THE SACRED HEART OF
4 | JESUS, INC. 4,491,127 1.53%
5 | FERRER, ROWENA 4,249,306 1.45%
6 | KIERULF, LUCILA H 3,704,011 1.26%
7 | RECTO, ANA ISABEL C 3,467,691 1.18%
UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN PHILIPPINES
8 | FOUNDATION, INC. 3,172,909 1.08%
9 | ROELLL MA. TERESA GEMPERLE 3,164,511 1.08%
10 | SERRANO, ROMERICO S 3,140,869 1.07%
11 | MISON, SALVADOR MELCHOR JR BUENO 3,052,225 1.04%
12 | HEALTH MAINTENANCE, INC. 2,813,944 0.96%
13 | SILVA, JOSELITO P 2,645,219 0.90%
14 | MARGAROLI ANNABELLE A 2,366,515 0.81%
15 | MAGTOTO, BENJAMIN JR O 2,194,191 0.75%
16 | DOLENDO, JOSE MARIA F 2,147,461 0.73%
17 | LIM, MARY HAW 2,064,942 0.70%
18 | TAN, MANUEL S 1,980,628 0.67%




19 | TAGUINES, REBECCA 1,796,003 0.61%
20 | ACOSTA, ASER S 1,731,283 0.59%

Institutional and retail investors

The table below shows the Fund’s total number of institutional and retail investors and the
percentage of their investments as of 31 December 2023.

PAMI Horizon Fund Retail Institutional
Number of investors 9,664 235
Percentage of investments 83.56% 16.44%

Geographic concentration of investments

The geographic concentration of investments as of 31 December 2023 is as follows: Luzon (87.55%),
Visayas (6.30%), and Mindanao (6.15%).

Level of compliance with FATCA regulations

FATCA Review as of 31 December 2023

. More than Less than
PHF No. of Transaction USD50 Thousand USD50 Thousand
US CITIZEN 8 5 3
US INDICIA 14 5 9

Investment company return information

Stated below is the Fund’s annualized performance (%) for five (5) years.

1YR 2YRS 3 YRS 4 YRS 5 YRS
3.32 -2.13 -2.09 -1.58 0.12

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities Including Recent Issuances of Securities
Constituting an Exempt Transaction

Not applicable.
ITEM NO.6 MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION
Distribution

The Fund is being distributed by BIMI through SEC Certified Investment Solicitors (CISols) as well as
institutional third-party distributors.

Use of Proceeds

The Fund plans to use the proceeds from the sale of PHFI shares to build up its investment in equities
of companies listed in the primary and secondary boards of the PSE. Likewise, proceeds will also be
used to build up the investment in domestic fixed-income instruments, including but not limited to,
treasury bills, Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas' (BSP) Certificate of Indebtedness, other government
securities or bonds and such other evidences of obligations issued by the BSP or guaranteed by the
Philippine Government.



Determination of Offering Price

The offering price is determined at Net Asset Value (NAV) per share computed for the current banking
day, if payment is made within the daily cut-off time. Otherwise, the NAV per share on the following
banking day will be used for payments made after the daily cut-off time. The daily cut-off time shall be
12:00 noon of a banking day. A banking day is defined as a day when commercial banks in Metro
Manila are not required or authorized to close by law.

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023

The PSEi continued to be challenged in 2023 returning -1.77% for the year, settling somewhere in the
middle of how its ASEAN peers performed. Foreign investors continued to be sellers, with net outflows
reaching USD863.3 million according to Bloomberg data. On a per sector basis, only Financials saw
gains buoyed by the high interest rate environment which supported expansion of net interest margins.
All other sectors underperformed the index as overall sentiment was dragged by macroeconomic
concerns (e.g., high inflation & decelerating growth) and lingering hawkishness of central banks.

Market valuation remained close to 13x PE based on consensus estimates, below its 10-year mean of
around 17x.

As of 31 December 2023, PAMI Horizon Fund’s net asset value (NAV) per share stood at P3.5557, up
by 3.32% year-on-year.

Top Five Key Performance Indicators

a) Performance vis-a-vis the Benchmark - PAMI Horizon Fund is an actively managed balanced
fund whose objective is long-term capital appreciation through investments in a diversified portfolio
composed of high-grade fixed-income and equity investment instruments. The Fund’s return on
investment (ROI) as of December 2023 is 3.32% net of fees and taxes, underperforming its benchmark
by 149 bps.

b) Portfolio Quality - The Fund’s portfolio should adhere to the investment parameters as
indicated in the Fund’s prospectus. The Fund invests in a mix of high grade fixed income instruments
and local equities.

C) Market Share in the Industry - PAMI Horizon Fund cornered 4.1% of the P12.30 Billion total
net asset value of peso balanced funds as of December 2023.

d) NAV Growth vis-a-vis Industry Growth - For the year ended 31 December 2023, PAMI
Horizon Fund’s NAV contracted by 8.21% compared to the 10.37% decline in peso balanced mutual
funds.

e) Performance vis-a-vis Competition - PAMI Horizon Fund ranked 2nd in 2023 returns among
peso balanced mutual funds.

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2022

The PSEi was down 7.8% in 2022, underperforming much of its ASEAN peers. In the Philippines, Telcos
underperformed mainly on issues surrounding its capex as well as tough competitions along with
Property amid unfavorable macro from high interest rates. On the other hand, Banks and Consumers
remain to outperform.

The PSEi closed at almost 13x forward PE, below its 10 years mean of around 17x. The index valuations
remain at its lowest since the pandemic low in 2020.

The major theme for 2022 was inflation. The BSP has managed to match the Fed’s aggressive tightening
to manage the Peso and tame inflation. Peso managed to bottom in mid-October.



As of 31 December 2022, PAMI Horizon Fund’s net asset value (NAV) per share stood at P3.4416, down
by 7.29% year-on-year.

Top Five Key Performance Indicators

a) Performance vis-a-vis the Benchmark - PAMI Horizon Fund is an actively managed balanced
fund whose objective is long-term capital appreciation through investments in a diversified portfolio
composed of high-grade fixed-income and equity investment instruments. The Fund’s return on
investment (ROI) as of December 2022 is -7.29% net of fees and taxes, underperforming its benchmark
by 284 bps.

b) Portfolio Quality - The Fund’s portfolio should adhere to the investment parameters as

indicated in the Fund’s prospectus. The Fund invests in a mix of high grade fixed income instruments
and local equities.

C) Market Share in the Industry - PAMI Horizon Fund cornered 4.0% of the P13.72 Billion total
net asset value of peso balanced funds as of December 2022.

d) NAV Growth vis-a-vis Industry Growth - For the year ended 31 December 2022, PAMI
Horizon Fund’s NAV contracted by 0.80% compared to the 43.07% decline in peso balanced mutual

funds.

e) Performance vis-a-vis Competition - PAMI Horizon Fund ranked 7th in 2022 returns among
peso balanced mutual funds as of December 2022.

ITEM NO.7 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Copies of the following audited financial statements are attached:
a. Statement of Financial Position as of December 31, 2023 and 2022
b. Statement of Total Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
c. Statement of Changes in Equity for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
d. Statement of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

ITEM NO.8 CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None
PART III - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION
ITEM NO.9 DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE ISSUER

The Board of Directors and Executive Officers of PHFI are as follows:

Name Age | Citizenship Position Term éeam. of
ervice
Roberto F. De Ocampo 78 Filipino Chairman of the Board 2023-2024 24
Reynaldo G. Geronimo 79 Filipino President and Director 2023-2024 12
Ramon Paulo L. Tayag 43 Filipino Director 2023-2024 >1
Tomas S. Chuidian 57 Filipino Director 2023-2024 >1
Fernando J. Sison III 71 Filipino Director 2023-2024 4
Simon R. Paterno 65 Filipino Director 2023-2024 1
Ma. Adelina S. Gatdula 60 Filipino Corporate Secretary 2023-2024 7
Ma. Floriliz L. Pedernal 53 Filipino Treasurer 2023-2024 3




ROBERTO F. DE OCAMPO
Chairman of the Board

Dr. Roberto F. De Ocampo is a cum laude graduate of Bachelor of Arts in Economics at the Ateneo de
Manila University. He has a Master in Business Administration from the University of Michigan and
a post-graduate diploma from the London School of Economics. He has also been conferred three
Doctorates (Honoris Causas). Mr. De Ocampo is President and Director of the following PAMI-
managed funds: Philam Fund, Inc., Philam Bond Fund, Inc., Philam Dollar Bond Fund, Inc., Philam
Strategic Growth Fund, Inc., Philam Managed Income Fund, Inc. (each since 2005) and PAMI Global
Bond Fund, Inc. (since 2008), PAMI Asia Balanced Fund Inc., PAMI Equity Index Fund, Inc., PAMI
Global Equity Fund, Inc. (each since 2009), PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc. (since 2011), and PAMI Income
Payout Fund, Inc. (since 2015). Dr. de Ocampo was previously the President of the Asian Institute of
Management. From 1992 to 1998, he served as the Secretary of Finance under the Ramos administration
and was widely recognized as the principal architect of the resurgence of the Philippine economy. He
was the first Filipino and the first ASEAN finance minister to be recognized and was cited as the
“Finance Minister of the Year” in 1996 by Euromoney. He was conferred the Legion of Honor in 1998,
the highest honor conferred on Filipino civilians by the Philippine government and was conferred the
Ordre National de la Legion d” Honneur by the Republic of France with the rank of Chevalier.

REYNALDO G. GERONIMO
President

Atty. Geronimo is a cum laude graduate of Bachelor of Arts (A.B.) at the Ateneo de Manila University.
He graduated Second Honors from Ateneo Law School in 1968. He also has a Master of Laws with
specialization in Trusts and Estates from the University of Pennsylvania. He is currently a partner in
the Romulo Mabanta Buenaventura Sayoc & de los Angeles Law Firm and a co-Chairman of the
Banking Group. Atty. Geronimo is known as the Trust Guru, with a regular column in the Manila
Standard Today. He is also a bar reviewer in Taxation at the UP Law Center, the UP College of Law,
the Law School of UST’s Civil Law Faculty, the College of Law of Liceo de Cagayan and the Ateneo
Law School. Atty. Geronimo is a director of the following PAMI-managed funds since 2010: Philam
Fund, Inc., Philam Bond Fund, Inc., Philam Dollar Bond Fund, Inc., Philam Strategic Growth Fund, Inc.,
Philam Managed Income Fund, Inc. and PAMI Global Bond Fund, Inc., PAMI Asia Balanced Fund, Inc.,
PAMI Equity Index Fund, Inc., PAMI Global Equity Fund, Inc., PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc. (since 2011)
and PAMI Income Payout Fund, Inc. (since 2015).

TOMAS S. CHUIDIAN
Director

Mr. Chuidian is the President of BPI Investment Management Inc. (BIMI) and concurrently functions
as Director of BPI International Finance, Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of BPI based in Hong Kong,
since 2015. He also headed the Bank’s Private Banking unit for almost 10 years before being assigned
to BIML. Prior to joining BPI, Mr. Chuidian served as Executive Director for Global Wealth
Management at Merrill Lynch in Hong Kong. He has over 25 years of banking experience, having
held positions at ABN AMRO Bank N.V., DBS Bank and PNB as an investment management
professional across all asset classes, advising high net-worth families, middle-market companies, and
non-profit endowment funds. Before entering the world of finance, Mr. Chuidian managed
specialized biotechnology products at Digene Diagnostics, a start-up company founded in the United
States. Mr. Chuidian holds a Master’s Degree in International Management from the University of
Maryland and a Bachelor of Science Degree in Chemistry and Biology from College of the Ozarks in
Missouri. Tim was born in the Philippines and prior to pursuing his college and graduate studies in the
United States, was one of the first graduates from La Salle Zobel.



RAMON PAULO L. TAYAG
Director

Mr. Tayag is the current Head of Agency Distribution for BIMI. He graduated from Ateneo De Manila
with a degree in BS Legal Management and earned his Master's Degree in Business Administration
from Ateneo as well. He has a total of 20 years experience in retail banking and investment sales. The
first 6 years were in the retail lending industry via leasing and credit cards. He joined Citibank in 2008
as a Citigold Relationship Officer and specialized in investment sales. He first joined BPI Asset
Management and Trust Group in 2013 until 2018 handling various area divisions of the Bank. He
returned in 2020 after his exposure to agency management from Sun Life Asset Management Company
Inc.

SIMON R. PATERNO
Director

Mr. Simon R. Paterno, Filipino, born in 1959, 65 years old, served as Head of the Financial Products and
Services Group of the Bank of the Philippine Islands. He was responsible for managing the product
businesses of the Bank, including Investment Banking, Corporate Loans, Transaction Banking, Retail
Lending, Cards and Payments, Asset Management and Trust, Electronic Channels, and Deposits. He
also supervised subsidiaries and affiliates in insurance, leasing, and merchant acquiring. He was a
member of the Management Committee of BPI. Mr. Paterno is the former President and CEO of the
Development Bank of the Philippines, serving from 2002-2004. He worked for 18 years at the New
York, Hong Kong, and Manila offices of ].P. Morgan, serving finally as Managing Director in charge of
sovereign clients during the Asian Financial Crisis of 1997-98, and as Country Manager for the
Philippines until 2002. He also worked for 8 years at Credit Suisse as Managing Director and Country
Manager for the Philippines. Mr. Paterno obtained his MBA from Stanford University in 1984. He was
awarded his A.B., cum laude, Honors Program in Economics from Ateneo de Manila University in 1980.
In 2005, he was elected President of the Management Association of the Philippines. He serves on the
boards of the Foundation for Economic Freedom and Ateneo Scholarship Foundation. He was named
a TOYM awardee for Investment Banking in 1999.

FERNANDO J. SISON III
Director

Mr. Sison is the Treasurer of ALFM Money Market Fund, Inc., ALFM Peso Bond Fund, Inc., ALFM
Dollar Bond Fund, Inc., ALEM Euro Bond Fund, Inc., ALEM Growth Fund, Inc., and Philippine Stock
Index Fund, Corp. He is also a Director and the Treasurer of ALFM Global Multi-Asset Income Fund,
Inc. and an Independent Director of ALFM Retail Corporate Fixed Income Fund, Inc. and ALFM Fixed
Income Feeder Fund, Inc. (Formerly: ALFM Principal Preservation Fund, Inc.). Since September 9, 2020,
Mr. Sison has been a Director of Philam Fund, Inc., Philam Managed Income Fund, Inc., Philam Bond
Fund, Inc., Philam Dollar Bond Fund, Inc., Philam Strategic Growth Fund, Inc., PAMI Global Bond
Fund, Inc., PAMI Asia Balanced Fund Inc., PAMI Horizon Fund Inc., and PAMI Equity Index Fund,
Inc. He used to be the President of BPI Investment Management, Inc. from May 2004 up to June 2012.
He previously served as Vice President and head of many of BPI's divisions, including AMTG Retail
Trust Division, AMTG Portfolio Management Division, SDG Retail Funds Distribution, and Private
Banking Unit. He was assigned to BPI International Finance Ltd. (HK) as Head of Investment
Management Division and to BPI Capital Corporation - Corporate Finance Group as Vice President
and Head of Syndications and Underwriting. He completed the corporate finance module of JP Morgan
in New York and underwent on-the-job training in corporate finance with JP Morgan in Hong
Kong. He previously served as President of the Investment Company Association of the Philippines
(ICAP) for 3 terms up to 2006 and as Chairman of the Board of the Philippine Investment Funds
Association (PIFA), formerly ICAP, for 5 terms up to 2012-2013. He currently serves as a member of the
Board of Senior Advisers of PIFA. He served as Industry Governor of the Market Governance Board of
the Philippine Dealing and Exchange Corp. in 2008 and 2011 and as Alternate Governor for 5 terms. He
is a SEC-licensed Certified Investment Solicitor from 2001 to 2012. He is currently the Investments
Administrator and the Director, University Business Affairs Office, of the Ateneo de Manila University.
He is a member of the Board of Trustees and Executive Committee, and the Chairman, Investment



Committee of the CEAP Retirement Fund, Inc. Mr. Sison graduated from the Ateneo de Manila
University in 1974 with the degree A.B. General Studies (Honorable Mention). He obtained his M.B.A.
degree in 1976 from the University of the Philippines (Diliman).

MA. FLORILIZ L. PEDERNAL
Treasurer

Ms. Pedernal is the Operations Accounting Head of BPI Wealth since April 2023 and BPI Investment
Management Inc. from 2017 to March 2023. She started as an accounting staff in BPI Unibank Central
Accounting Department in 1991 before joining the BPI Officership Training Program in December 2004.
She assumed the position of Operations Accounting Officer of then BPI Asset Management and Trust
Group from July 1, 2005 to December 2016 before joining BIMI in 2017. She completed her Accounting
Degree from Miriam College Foundation Inc. in 1991, and passed the CPA Board in October in the same
year.

*Appointed as Treasurer in November 2020.

MA. ADELINA S. GATDULA
Corporate Secretary

Atty. Gatdula has been a Partner in Picazo Buyco Tan Fider & Santos Law Office since July 1995. She
joined the said law office in September 1989. Prior thereto, she worked as a Confidential Attorney of
Justice Irene R. Cortes in the Supreme Court. Atty. Gatdula obtained her Bachelor of Laws from the
University of the Philippines in 1987, and Bachelor of Arts in Economics (cum laude) also from the same
university in November 1982. She represents private companies engaged in real estate development
and services, outsource business processing, software development, finance, investment, insurance and
insurance brokerage and consultancy, manufacturing and trading, and radio broadcasting, in a wide
array of corporate and financial matters, and various condominium corporations and non-government
religious and charitable organizations.

*Appointed as Corporate Secretary on October 14, 2015.

GLENN NOEL L. LLANETA
Compliance, AML and Data Protection Officer

Mr. Llaneta has a combined 19 years and running banking experience spanning stints in Accounting,
Trust Services, Customer Due Diligence (CDD) specializing in Know Your Customer (KYC) and
Customer Transaction Monitoring gained from Local and International banks. He joined BIMI last July
1, 2023 as a Compliance Officer, as such he would be responsible that the company has internal controls
to adequately manage risk as well as ensures the entity as well as the Mutual Funds are in compliance
with the regulatory requirements. He possesses International Advanced Certificate in Anti-Money
Laundering accorded by International Compliance Association (ICA) and a Certified Know Your
Customer Associate (CKYCA) afforded by Certified Anti-Money Laundering Specialist (CAMS). He
also successfully passed AMLF/CTF Fundamentals Course administered by Anti-Money Laundering
Council (AMLC).

Incorporators
The incorporators of the Fund are the following:

1) Mr. Cesar N. Sarino

2) Mr. Amante R. Rimando

3) Mr. Sixto Roxas

4) Mr. Teodoro Locsin Jr.

5) Mr. Alfredo Antonio

6) Mr. Leonardo Quisumbing

7)  Mr. Corazon Alma G. De Leon



Significant Employee

There is no significant employee who is expected by the Fund to make a significant contribution to the
business.

Family Relationships

None of the Fund’s directors and executive officers is related to each other up to the fourth civil degree
of consanguinity or affinity.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

To the best of the Fund’s knowledge, there has been no occurrence during the past five (5) years up to
the date of this SEC Form 17-A of any of the following events that are material to the evaluation of
ability or integrity of any director, any nominee for election as director, executive officer or controlling
person of the Fund:

1. Any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which such person was a general
partner or executive officer either at the time of the bankruptcy or within two years prior to
that time;

2. Any conviction by final judgment, including the nature of the offense, in a criminal proceeding,
domestic or foreign, or being subject to a pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign,
excluding traffic violations and other minor offenses;

3. Being subject to any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or
vacated, of any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or
temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting his involvement in any type
of business, securities, commodities or banking activities; and

4. Being found by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the SEC
or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or other organized trading
market or self-regulatory organization, to have violated a securities or commodities law or
regulation, and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended, or vacated.

ITEM NO.10 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Executive Compensation

Information as to the aggregate compensation paid or accrued during the last previous fiscal year and
the preceding two fiscal years to the PHFI Board of Directors is as follows:

Total
Year (In Thousands of Philippine Peso)
2023 81
2022 202.5
2021 150
2020 176
2019 177

Estimated per diem of PHFI directors, excluding bonus, for year 2024 is Php 157,300.00.
Directors' Compensation
The Fund does not have any executive under its employ and therefore does not pay any executive

compensation. For every board meeting attended by each Director, he will receive a per diem of
Php7,500.00.



Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-In-Control Arrangements

None of the Executive Officers have employment contracts with the Fund.

There are no arrangements that exist which could result in a change in control of the Fund.

ITEM NO.11 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN RECORD AND BENEFICIAL OWNERS

As of December 31, 2023, there are no shareholders who own more than 5% of the outstanding voting
shares of the Fund.

Title of
Class

Name of Beneficial Owner

Amount and
Nature of
Beneficial

Ownership

Citizenship

Percent of
Class

Common

Roberto F. De Ocampo

Eugenio Lopez Foundation Building, Col.
Joseph R. Mcmicking Campus, 123 Paseo
de Roxas, Makati City, (Chairman)

100 (record)

Filipino

0.0001%

Common

Reynaldo G. Geronimo
No. 5 Zinia Street, Valle Verde 2, Pasig
City, (President/Director)

100 (record)

Filipino

0.0001%

Common

Ramon Paulo L. Tayag

Blk 6 Lot 16 Salvador Place Brazilia
Heights Susana Heights Muntinlupa
(Director)

100 (record)

Filipino

0.0001%

Common

Tomas S. Chuidian
39 Tamarind Rd Forbes Park Makati City
(Director)

100 (record)

Filipino

0.0001%

Common

Simon R. Paterno
58 McKinley Road, Forbes Park, Makati
City, (Director)

100 (record)

Filipino

0.0001%

Common

Fernando J. Sison III
3 Jocson St., Xavierville 1, Loyola Heights,
Quezon City, (Director)

100 (record)

Filipino

0.0001%

Common

Ma. Floriliz L. Pedernal

17/F Net Lima Bldg., 5th Avenue cor. 26th
Street, Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City
(Treasurer)

Filipino

0.0000%

Common

Ma. Adelina S. Gatdula

Penthouse, Liberty Center, 104 H.V. Dela
Costa Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City
(Corporate Secretary)

Filipino

0.0000%

Common

Glenn Noel L. Llaneta

7/F, BPI Buendia Center, Sen. Gil Puyat
Avenue, Makati City 1209

(Compliance and Risk Officer)

Filipino

0.0000%

As of December 31, 2022, there are no shareholders who own more than 5% of the outstanding voting

shares of the Fund.

Title of

Name of Beneficial Owner
Class

Amount and
Nature of
Beneficial

Ownership

Citizenship

Percent of
Class




Common

Roberto F. De Ocampo
Eugenio Lopez Foundation
Building, Col. Joseph R.
Mcmicking Campus, 123 Paseo
de Roxas, Makati City
(Chairman)

100 (record)

Filipino

0.000001 %

Common

Reynaldo G. Geronimo

No. 5 Zinia Street, Valle Verde 2,
Pasig City (President & Director)

100 (record)

Filipino

0.000001 %

Common

Angel Marie Pacis

101 Cordova Las Villas de Valle
Verde, Kaimito St. Valle Verde2,
Ugong Psig City (Director)

100 (record)

Filipino

0.000001 %

Common

Lee Longa

3 Carbine Loop Alabang 400
Village Muntinlupa City
(Director)

100 (record)

Filipino

0.000001 %

Common

Elenita D.G. Villamar

17/F Net Lima Bldg., 5th
Avenue cor. 26th Street,
Bonifacio Global City, Taguig
City (Director)

100 (record)

Filipino

0.000001 %

Common

Simon R. Paterno

58 McKinley Road, Forbes Park,
Makati City (Independent
Director)

100 (record)

Filipino

0.000001 %

Common

Fernando J. Sison III

3 Jocson St., Xavierville 1, Loyola
Heights, Quezon

City (Independent Director)

Filipino

0.000000%

Common

Ma. Floriliz L. Pedernal

17/F Net Lima Bldg., 5th
Avenue cor. 26th Street,
Bonifacio Global City, Taguig
City (Treasurer)

Filipino

0.000000 %

Common

Ma. Adelina S. Gatdula
Penthouse, Liberty Center, 104
H.V. Dela Costa Street, Salcedo
Village, Makati City (Corporate
Secretary)

Filipino

0.000000 %

As of December 31, 2021, there are no shareholders who own more than 5% of the outstanding voting
shares of the Fund.

Title of Amount and Nature Percent of
Name of Beneficial Owner of Beneficial Citizenship
Class . Class
Ownership
Roberto F. De Ocampo
Eugenio Lopez Foundation Building,
Common |Col. Joseph R. Mcmicking Campus, 100 Filipino 0.0001%
123 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City
(Chairman)




Common

Elenita G. Villamar

17/F Net Lima Bldg., 5th Avenue cor.
26th Street, Bonifacio Global City,
Taguig City, (Director & Treasurer)

100

(R)

Filipino

0.0001%

Common

Angel Marie Pacis

17/F Net Lima Bldg., 5th Avenue cor.
26th Street, Bonifacio Global City,
Taguig City, (Director)

100

(R)

Filipino

0.0001%

Common

Reynaldo G. Geronimo
No. 5 Zinia Street, Valle Verde 2, Pasig
City, (President & Director)

100

Filipino

0.0001%

Common

Fernando J. Sison III

3 Jocson St., Xavierville 1, Loyola
Heights, Quezon City,
(Independent Director)

100

Filipino

0.0000%

Common

Meliton B. Salazar, Jr.
No. 28 Hunt Street, Filinvest East,
Quezon City, (Independent Director)

100

Filipino

0.0001%

Common

Ma. Floriliz L. Pedernal

17/F Net Lima Bldg., 5th Avenue cor.
26th Street, Bonifacio Global City,
Taguig City, (Treasurer)

Filipino

0.0000%

Common

Ma. Adelina S. Gatdula

Penthouse, Liberty Center, 104 H.V.
Dela Costa Street, Salcedo Village,
Makati City, (Corporate Secretary)

Filipino

0.0000%

Common

Rose Ann V. Gonzales

Penthouse, Liberty Center, 104 H.V.
Dela Costa Street, Salcedo Village,
Makati City, (Assistant Corporate
Secretary)

Filipino

0.0000%

Common

Karl Kelvin D. Arcilla

19/F, BPI Buendia Center, Sen. Gil J.
Puyat Ave., Makati City
(Compliance Officer and Data
Protection Officer)

Filipino

0.0000%

TOTAL

700

(R)

Filipino

0.0007%

Voting Trust

The Fund knows of no persons holding more than 5.0% of its shares under a voting trust or similar
agreement which may result in a change in control of the Fund.

External Audit Fees

The external auditor’s fee is included as part of “Professional fees” in the Statements of Comprehensive
Income in the attached audited financial statements. Except for the year-end audit, there were no other
services performed by or availed from the external auditors for the year ended December 31, 2023 and

2022.

Year Total
2023 PhP 326,645.56
2022 PhP 155,673.84
2021 Php 129,727




| 2020 | Php 283,311 |

Audit Committee’s approval policies & procedures for the External Auditor:

1. Recommend to the Board of Directors the selection of the external auditor, who is accountable
to the Board and to the Audit Committee as representatives of the shareholders, considering
independence effectiveness and approval of fees and other compensation to be paid to the
external auditor. On an annual basis, the Committee should review and discuss with the
auditor all significant relationships with PHFI to determine the auditor’s independence.

2. Review the performance of the external auditor and approve any proposed discharge of the
external auditor when circumstances warrant.

3. Periodically consult with the external auditor of PHFI about internal controls and the fullness
and accuracy of the organization's financial statements.

4. The Committee will actively engage the external auditor in a dialogue regarding independence.

5. Adhere to the following procedures for the approval of services by the external auditor:

a. The Audit Committee will annually approve the scope of, and fees payable for, the
year-end audit to be performed by PHFI's external auditor for the next calendar year.

b. PHFI may not engage the external auditor for any services unless they are approved
by the Audit Committee in advance of the engagement.

c. If PHFI wishes to engage the external auditor for any services, PHFI will define and
present to the Audit Committee specific projects and categories of service and fee
estimates, for which the advance approval of the Audit Committee is required. The
Audit Committee will review these requests and determine whether to pre-approve
the engagement of the external auditor for the specific projects and categories of
service.

d. PHFI will report to the Audit Committee regarding the actual spending for these
projects and services, compared to the approved amounts on a quarterly basis.

e. The Audit Committee Chairperson will report to the Committee at each regularly
scheduled meeting the nature and amount of any non-audit services that he has
approved.

ITEM NO. 12 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

During the last two years, there are no transactions - either proposed or series of similar transactions -
with or involving the company in which a director, executive officer, or stockholder owning ten percent
(10%) or more of total outstanding shares and members of their immediate family had or is to have a
direct or indirect material interest.

PART IV - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ITEM NO.13 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The evaluation system adopted by PHFI to determine the level of compliance of the Board of Directors
and top level management with its Manual of Corporate Governance is based primarily on the SEC

Corporate Governance Self-Rating Form (CG-SRF).

PHFI has undertaken the following measures to fully comply with the adopted leading practices on
good corporate governance:

¢ Consider changes, improvements, or additions to current corporate disclosure procedures
¢ Implement processes for identifying items where timely corporate disclosure is necessary

PHFI has no material deviations from its Manual of Corporate Governance since it filed its CG-SRF
with the SEC.

Apart from the foregoing changes or improvements being considered for corporate disclosures, there
are no plans to change the current corporate governance of PHFL



PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES
ITEM NO.14 EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON SEC FORM 17-C

The following items were reported on SEC Form 17-C for 2023:

Items Reported Date Filed
Item taken up and approved during the Special Board of Directors Meeting February 10, 2023
held on February 07, 2023
Item taken up and approved during the Special Board of Directors Meeting August 09, 2023
held on August 04, 2023
Item taken up and approved during the Special Meeting of the Board of August 16, 2023
Directors Meeting held on August 14, 2023
Item taken up and approved during the Annual Stockholders Meeting held October 16, 2023

on October 12, 2023




SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Securities Regulation Code and Section 141 of

the Corporation «thi it 1o be signed on its behall by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized, in the s W

PAMI HORIZON FUND INC,
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc. is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached therein, for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2023, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting
framework indicated therein, and for such internal conmtrol as management deiermines is
necessary (o enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related 1o
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic aliernative but io
do s0.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
Process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statement including the schedules
attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders.

Isla Lipana & Co., the independent auditor, appointed by the stockholders. has audited the
financial statement of the company is accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and
in its report to the stockholder, has expressed its opinion on the faimess of presentation upon
completion of such audit.

et B
Vi

Rgberto F. De Ocampo
Chairman of the Board

Reynaldoe . Geronimo
President

Ma. Moriliz L Aedernal
Treasurer

Sign this :!a'-' of 20




ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES
RUBAON SO MANILA

BEFORE ME, a Notary Public for and in the above jurisdiction. personally appeared:

Name Tax Identification No.
Roberto F. De Ocampo 120-115-828
Reynaldo (. Geronimo 123-102-933
Ma. Flonliz L. Pedemnal 149-T92-248

known to me the same persons who executed the foregoing CERTIFICATE, consisting of 2
pages including this page wherefore this Acknowledgement is written and they acknowledge
to me that the same is their voluntary act and deed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial seal on the
date andplace first above writlen.

DocMo. 11T éw
PageNo.__f mv.%;a J.BOLIVAR

Book No.

Ay e NOTARPRUBLIC IN QUEZOM CITY

Series of 20 -esion No. Adm. Matier No. NP 549 {2023-2024)
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
QUEZON CTFY )S.S.

TREASURER'S CERTIFICATION

I, Ma. Floriliz L. Pedernal of legal age, Filipino and with office address at 7F BPI
Buendia Center, Sen. Gil ). Puyat Ave., Makati City, after being sworn in

accordance with law, hereby certify under oath that:

1. 1 am the Treasurer of PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc. {the “Corporation”), a
corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the
Republic of the Philippines under SEC Certificate of Registration No. A1997-
13137 with principal office address at 17/F, Philam Life Head Office, Net Lima
Building, 5th Avenue corner 26th Street, Bonifacio Global City, Taguig 1634.

2. The accounts and figures provided in the electronic copy of the Special Form
for Financial Statements are based on the contents of the Audited Annual
Financial Statements of the Corporation submitted to SEC.

3. | am executing this certification to attest to the truth of the foregoing and in
compliance with the reportorial requirements of the SEC.

Fi]
WITNESS MY HAND on this ___ da}u‘f s 20 in Makati City.

MA. RILIZ LY PEDERNAL

Treasurer
11 APR 21m
W D SWORN to before me on this ____ day of at

. Affiant exhibited to me his Tax Identification No. 149-792-248.
Doc. No. 'ﬂ"?: ATT %

: Y. ROGELIO J. BOLV
Page Nﬂ-_‘:ii- HOTARY PUBLIC IN QUEZON crﬁrﬂ
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)

QUWEZONC )5S

TREASURER'S CERTIFICATION

|, Ma. Floriliz L. Pedernal of legal age, Filipino and with office address at 7F BPI
Buendia Center 5en. Gil j. Puyat Ave., Makati City, after being sworn in
accordance with law, hereby certify that:

1. | am Treasurer of PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc. (the "Corporation”), a corporation
duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the Republic of
the Philippines under SEC Certificate of Registration No. A1997-13137 with
principal office address 17/F, Philam Life Head Office, Net Lima Building, 5th
Avenue corner 26th Street, Bonifacio Global City, Taguig 1634.

2. The Financial Statement (“F/S") CD submitted contains the exact data stated
in the hard copies of the F/S of the Corporation.

3. | am executing this certification to attest to the truth of the foregoing and in
compliance with the reportial requirements of the SEC.

11 APR 20N
WITNESS MY HAND on this day of 20____ in Makati City.
MA. FLﬁR’ILIE L:jEDEHNAL
Treasurer
11 APR 204
SUBSCRIBE AND SWORN to before me on this day of

at _QWEZON CITYAffiant exhibited to me his Tax Identification No. 149-792-
248,

E::é ':f;—ﬁ - ATTY, ROGELIO J. BOLIVAR

: NOTARY PUBLIC IN QUEZON CITY

Book No. Y - Commission No. Adm. Matier Mo, NP 543 (2023208
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Note 1: In case of death, resignation or cessation of office of the officer designated as contact person, such incident shall be reported to the
Commission within thirty (30) calendar days from the occurrence thereof with information and complete contact details of the new contact

person designated.

2: All boxes must be properly and completely filled-up. Failure to do so shall cause the delay in updating the corporation’s records with
the Commission and/or non-receipt of Notice of Deficiencies. Further, non-receipt of Notice of Deficiencies shall not excuse the corporation from

liability for its deficiencies
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc.

(An Open-End Mutual Fund Company)

17F Philam Life Head Office, Net Lima Building
5" Avenue corner 26" St. Bonifacio Global City
Taguig 1634, Philippines

Report on the Audits of the Financial Statements
Our Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc. (the “Fund”) as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its
financial performance and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31, 2023 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

What we have audited
The financial statements of the Fund comprise:

e the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2023 and 2022;

o the statements of total comprehensive income for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2023;

o the statements of changes in equity for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2023;

e the statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2023;
and

¢ the notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
in the Philippines (Code of Ethics), together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

Isla Lipana & Co., 29th Floor, AIA Tower, 8767 Paseo de Roxas, 1226 Makati City, Philippines
T: +63 (2) 8845 2728, www.pwc.com/ph

Isla Lipana & Co. is the Philippine member firm of the PwC network. PwC refers to the Philippine member firm, and may sometimes refer to the PwC network. Each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Please see www.pwc.com/structure for further details.
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To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc.

(An Open-End Mutual Fund Company)

Page 2

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement) and SEC Form 17-A, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The SEC Form 20-IS

(Definitive Information Statement) and SEC Form 17-A are expected to be made available to us after
the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Fund or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.



=

pwc

Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc.

(An Open-End Mutual Fund Company)

Page 3

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.



§ -

pwc

Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc.

(An Open-End Mutual Fund Company)

Page 4

Report on the Bureau of Internal Revenue Requirement

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The supplementary information in Note 15 to the financial statements is presented
for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such supplementary information is the responsibility of management and has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audits of the basic financial statements. In
our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Isla Lipana & Co.

Lo e
xter DJ V. Toledaia

Partner

CPA Cert. No. 121827

P.T.R. No. 0032961; issued on January 12, 2024 at Makati City

T.I.N. 255-979-765

BIR A.N. 08-000745-241-2023, issued on January 30, 2023; effective until January 29, 2026
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0142, effective until November 14, 2025

Makati City
April 8, 2024
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Statements Required by Rule 68
Securities Regulation Code (SRC)

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc.

(An Open-End Mutual Fund Company)

17F Philam Life Head Office, Net Lima Building
5t Avenue corner 26" St., Bonifacio Global City
Taguig 1634, Philippines

We have audited the financial statements of PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc. as at and for the year ended
December 31, 2023, on which we have rendered the attached report dated April 8, 2024. The
supplementary information shown in the Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend
Declaration, as additional component required by Part |, Section 5 of Rule 68 of the SRC, and
Schedules A, B, C, D, E, F and G, as required by Part I, Section 7 of Rule 68 of the SRC, is
presented for purposes of filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission and is not a required
part of the basic financial statements. Such supplementary information is the responsibility of
management and has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements. In our opinion, the supplementary information has been prepared in accordance
with Rule 68 of the SRC.

Isla Lipana & Co.

e e
Déxter DJ V. Toledaia

Partner

CPA Cert. No. 121827

P.T.R. No. 0032961; issued on January 12, 2024 at Makati City

T.I.N. 255-979-765

BIR A.N. 08-000745-241-2023, issued on January 30, 2023; effective until January 29, 2026
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0142, effective until November 14, 2025

Makati City
April 8, 2024

Isla Lipana & Co., 29th Floor, AIA Tower, 8767 Paseo de Roxas, 1226 Makati City, Philippines
T: +63 (2) 8845 2728, www.pwc.com/ph

Isla Lipana & Co. is the Philippine member firm of the PwC network. PwC refers to the Philippine member firm, and may sometimes refer to the PwC network. Each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Please see www.pwc.com/structure for further details.



PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc.
(An Open-End Mutual Fund Company)

Statements of Financial Position
December 31, 2023 and 2022

(All amounts in thousands of Philippine Peso)

Notes 2023 2022
Assets
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2 14,954 29,052
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 3 501,359 532,205
Other financial assets at amortized cost 4 3,967 5,005
Other assets - 52
Total assets 520,280 566,314
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 5 13,648 18,308
Due to fund manager 10 707 772
Total liabilities 14,355 19,080
Equity 6
Share capital 141,343 159,100
Share premium - 16,179
Retained earnings 364,582 371,955
Total equity 505,925 547,234
Total liabilities and equity 520,280 566,314

(The notes on pages 1 to 20 are an integral part of these financial statements)



PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc.
(An Open-End Mutual Fund Company)

Statements of Total Comprehensive Income

For each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2023
(Al amounts in thousands of Philippine Peso, except per share amounts)

Notes 2023 2022 2021
Income
Income (losses) from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, net 3 22,822 (36,495) (3,998)
Dividend 3 6,590 6,852 6,575
Interest from cash and cash equivalents 7 997 662 229
Others 3,350 - -
33,759 (28,981) 2,806
Expenses
Management fees 10 9,568 10,578 11,853
Fees and other charges 8 685 1,528 1,486
Taxes and licenses 57 287 230
Others - 863 871
10,310 13,256 14,440
Income (loss) before income tax 23,449 (42,237) (11,634)
Income tax expense 9 2,888 2,662 2,956
Net income (loss) for the year 20,561 (44,899) (14,590)
Other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year 20,561 (44,899) (14,590)
Basic income (loss) per share 6 0.14 (0.27) (0.08)

(The notes on pages 1 to 20 are an integral part of these financial statements)



PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc.
(An Open-End Mutual Fund Company)

Statements of Changes in Equity
For each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2023
(Al amounts in thousands of Philippine Peso)

Share Share Retained
Note capital premium earnings Total

Balance at January 1, 2021 6 182,320 17,831 490,441 690,592
Comprehensive loss

Net loss for the year - - (14,590) (14,590)

Other comprehensive income - - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - (14,590) (14,590)
Transactions with shareholders

Issuance of shares 3,004 8,134 - 11,138

Redemption of shares (13,674) (8,134) (28,150) (49,958)
Total transactions with shareholders (10,670) - (28,150) (38,820)
Reclassification - 335 (335) -
Balance at December 31, 2021 6 171,650 18,166 447,366 637,182
Comprehensive loss

Net loss for the year - - (44,899) (44,899)

Other comprehensive income - - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - (44,899) (44,899)
Transactions with shareholders

Issuance of shares 1,953 4,907 - 6,860

Redemption of shares (14,503) (6,894) (30,512) (51,909)
Total transactions with shareholders (12,550) (1,987) (30,512) (45,049)
Balance at December 31, 2022 6 159,100 16,179 371,955 547,234
Comprehensive income

Net income for the year - - 20,561 20,561

Other comprehensive income - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 20,561 20,561
Transactions with shareholders

Issuance of shares 1,067 2,692 - 3,759

Redemption of shares (18,824) (18,871) (27,934) (65,629)
Total transactions with shareholders (17,757) (16,179) (27,934) (61,870)
Balance at December 31, 2023 6 141,343 - 364,582 505,925

(The notes on pages 1 to 20 are an integral part of these financial statements)



PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc.

(An Open-End Mutual Fund Company)

Statements of Cash Flows

For each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2023
(All amounts in thousands of Philippine Peso)

Notes 2023 2022 2021
Cash flows from operating activities
Income (loss) before income tax 23,449 (42,237) (11,634)
Adjustment for:
(Income) losses from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, net 3 (22,822) 36,495 3,998
Dividend income 3 (6,590) (6,852) (6,575)
Interest income from cash and cash equivalents 7 (997) (662) (229)
Operating loss before changes in operating
assets and liabilities (6,960) (13,256) (14,440)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease (increase) in:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 53,668 64,645 47,882
Other financial assets at amortized cost 263 (3,392) 2,405
Other assets 52 - 696
(Decrease) increase in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (4,660) 1,759 1,486
Due to fund manager (65) (119) (467)
Net cash generated from operations 42,298 49,637 37,562
Interest received 997 662 229
Dividend received 7,365 6,042 6,581
Income taxes paid 9 (2,888) (2,662) (2,956)
Net cash from operating activities 47,772 53,679 41,416
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of shares 6 3,759 6,860 11,138
Payments for shares redeemed 6 (65,629) (51,909) (49,958)
Net cash used in financing activities (61,870) (45,049) (38,820)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (14,098) 8,630 2,596
Cash and cash equivalents
January 1 29,052 20,422 17,826
December 31 2 14,954 29,052 20,422

(The notes on pages 1 to 20 are an integral part of these financial statements)



PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc.
(An Open-End Mutual Fund Company)

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at December 31, 2023 and 2022 and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2023
(Al amounts are shown in thousands of Philippine Peso unless otherwise stated)

1 General information

PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc. (the “Fund”) is an open-end mutual fund company engaged in the sale of its shares
of stock, the proceeds of which are invested in equity shares. It was registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) on February 6, 2009, in accordance with the Corporation Code of the
Philippines (Batas Pambansa Blg. 68), and the Foreign Investments Act of 1991 (Republic Act No. 7042, as
amended). The Fund is regulated by the Investment Company Act of 1960 (Republic Act No. 2629) and the
Revised Securities Act or Batas Pambansa Blg. 178.

The Fund aims to track the performance of the Philippine Stock Exchange Composite Index (PSEi). The Fund
shall substantially invest in stocks comprising the PSEi using the same weights as in the index. As an open-
end investment company, the Fund stands ready at any time to redeem its outstanding shares at a value
defined under the Fund’s prospectus (Note 6).

The Fund is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on August 8, 1997 under the
Corporation Code of the Philippines. The SEC approved the registration of the Fund under the Investment
Company Act (Republic Act No. 2629) and the Revised Securities Act on June 18, 1998. The Fund started
commercial operations on July 1, 1998.

The Fund is registered as an issuer of securities with the SEC under Section 12 of the Securities Regulation
Code (SRC). The Fund’s track record of securities registration is shown in Note 6. In compliance with the
SRC, the Fund is required to file registration statements for each instance of increase in authorized shares.
The last registration statement filed by the Fund for an increase in authorized shares and permit to offer
securities for sale were approved by the SEC.

The Fund’s registered office address, which is also its principal place of business, is at 17/F Net Lima
Building, 5th Avenue corner 26th St., Bonifacio Global City, Taguig 1634, Philippines.

Fund management

The Fund has no employees. The principal management and administration functions of the Fund are
outsourced from BPIl Wealth, A Trust Corporation (BPI Wealth) (the “Fund Manager”) (Note 10).

Effective January 29, 2020, Philam Asset Management, Inc. (PAMI), a wholly-owned subsidiary of AIA
Philippines Life and General Insurance Company Inc. (formerly “The Philippine American Life and General
Insurance (Philam Life) Company”) assigned all its rights, interests, and obligations as fund manager, advisor,
distributor, and transfer agent of the Fund to BPI Investment Management, Inc. (BIMI), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Bank of the Philippine Islands (BPI). Henceforth, the management, distribution and transfer
agency functions are performed by BIMI over the Fund. Services, contracts and agreements are in force with
BIMI at effective date. The principal management and administration functions of the Fund are outsourced
from BPI Investment Management, Inc. (BIMI) until March 31, 2023.

Effective April 1, 2023, BIMI transferred all its rights, interest and obligations as fund manager and fund
advisor to BPI Wealth, A Trust Corporation (BPI Wealth) (the “Fund Manager”) (Note 10). On effective date,
the management function over the Fund is performed by BPI Wealth. Meanwhile, the distribution and transfer
agency functions of the Fund were retained by BIMI.

Approval and authorization for issuance of the financial statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved and authorized for issue on April 8, 2024 by the
Board of Directors (BOD).



2 Cash and cash equivalents

The account at December 31 consists of:

2023 2022

Cash in banks 2,424 148
Short-term deposits 12,530 28,904
14,954 29,052

Cash in banks earn interest at prevailing bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits as at December 31, 2023
have average maturity of 4 days (2022 - 5 days) and carry effective interest rates ranging from 3.50% to
5.50% (2022 - 1.25% to 5.50%).

The interest earned from cash and cash equivalents is disclosed in Note 7.

Cash and cash equivalents as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 are readily available for fund operations and
classified as current.

3 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The account at December 31 consists of:

2023 2022

Listed equity securities 255,004 306,392
Government securities 189,696 166,733
Corporate debt securities 56,659 55,473
Unit investment trust funds - 3,607
501,359 532,205

For the year ended December 31, 2023, dividend earned from investments in equity securities amounts to
P6,590 (2022 - P6,852; 2021 - P6,575).

Government securities and corporate debt securities as at December 31, 2023 have average terms 1.62 to
18.91 years and 0.08 to 1.82 years (2022 - 1.21 to 13.15 years and 1.09 to 2.86 years) and carry effective
interest rates of 2.63% to 8.13% and 2.81% to 6.64% (2022 - 2.38% to 8.13% and 2.81% to 6.64%),
respectively.

Movements in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are summarized as follows:

2023 2022
At January 1 532,205 633,345
Additions 89,772 267,807
Disposals (130,364) (318,042)
Fair value gains (losses), net 9,377 (49,072)
Other movements 369 (1,833)
At December 31 501,359 532,205

Proceeds from disposals of financial assets at FVTPL made for the year ended December 31, 2023 amount to
P133,879 (2022 - P288,121). Realized gain on sale of financial assets at FVTPL in 2023 amounts to P3,515
(2022 - P29,921 loss) and is presented in the statement of total comprehensive income.

(@)



The composition of income (losses) on financial assets at FVTPL, net for the years ended December 31 are
as follows:

2023 2022

Interest income on financial assets at FVTPL 13,445 12,577
Other changes on financial assets at FVTPL

Net realized fair value gains (losses) 3,515 (29,921)

Net unrealized fair value gains (losses) 5,862 (19,151)

22,822 (36,495)

Financial assets at FVTPL are considered held for trading and classified as current assets.
3.1 Breakdown of Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Details of listed equities held at FVTPL at December 31 are as follows:

2023

Number of Market

(in absolute amounts) shares held Cost value
SM Investments Corporation 42,560 32,114,944 37,112,320
SM Prime Holdings, Inc. 854,498 26,115,460 28,112,984
BDO Unibank. Inc 180,324 16,459,859 23,532,282
Bank of the Philippine Islands 204,866 16,741,347 21,265,091
Ayala Land, Inc. 609,177 19,117,684 20,986,147
Ayala Corporation 29,372 21,607,842 20,002,332
International Container Terminal Services, Inc. 75,000 10,311,080 18,510,000
Jollibee Foods Corporation 46,682 10,527,435 11,735,855
Aboitiz Equity Ventures, Inc. 230,950 13,647,841 10,300,370
Manila Electric Company "A" 24,820 7,984,095 9,903,180
Universal Robina Corporation 82,494 11,648,879 9,750,791
Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company 181,556 10,452,277 9,313,823
JG Summit Holdings, Inc. 231,886 14,021,228 8,846,451
Globe Telecom, Inc. 4,288 9,934,294 7,375,360
PLDT Company 6,090 9,023,722 7,789,110
GT Capital Holdings, Inc 9,319 4,154,427 5,498,210
Monde Nissin Corporation 423,200 6,125,652 3,546,416
Wilcon Depot, Inc. 45,310 1,280,170 946,979
AC Energy Corporation 107,763 754,341 472,002
Century Pacific Food, Inc. 150 3,702 4,642
242,026,279 255,004,345

2022

Number of Market

(in absolute amounts) shares held Cost value
SM Investments Corporation 49,420 45,031,012 44,478,000
SM Prime Holdings 1,036,298 35,919,101 36,788,579
Bank of the Philippine Islands 282,650 26,473,636 28,830,300
BDO Unibank, Inc. 233,364 24,055,354 24,666,575
Ayala Corporation "A" 33,792 25,202,502 23,485,440
Ayala Land, Inc. 759,177 24,810,652 23,382,652
International Container Terminal Services, Inc. 108,780 22,019,004 21,756,000
Universal Robina Corporation 117,774 14,949,453 16,017,264
Aboitiz Equity Ventures, Inc. 230,950 13,208,345 13,325,815
Jollibee Foods Corporation 46,682 10,446,888 10,736,859
JG Summit Holdings, Inc. 211,886 11,181,534 10,657,866
Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company 188,356 10,509,328 10,171,224
Globe Telecom, Inc. 4,648 12,022,507 10,132,640
Manila Electric Company “A” 24,820 7,567,538 7,416,216
PLDT, Inc. 5,390 9,722,797 7,098,630
GT Capital Holdings, Inc. 17,319 7,720,841 7,533,765
Wilcon Depot, Inc. 231,880 6,641,597 6,840,460
Century Pacific Food, Inc. 119,150 2,940,871 3,074,070
310,422,960 306,392,355

3)



Details of debt securities held at FVTPL at December 31 are as follows:

In absolute amounts

As at December 31, 2023

Description Maturity Date Market Value

Government securities
FXTN PIID0528B176 6.125% DUE 22AUG2028 August 22, 2028 50,792,455
FXTN 07-62 PHY6972HDE37 6.25% DUE ON 14FEB26 February 26, 2026 36,000,994
FXTN 20-25 PIBD2042K253 8.125% DUE 24N0OV2042 November 24, 2042 30,283,810
GB PIID0527C159 4.875% DUE 04MAR2027 March 4, 2027 19,631,700
FXTN 25-8 PHY6972FNA49 8.125% DUE 16DEC2035 December 16, 2035 17,337,356
FXTN 10-64 PIBD1029A644 6.875% DUE 10JAN2029 January 10, 2029 15,972,424
FXTN PIBD1032J701 7.5% DUE 200CT2032 October 20, 2032 11,016,542
GB R513 PIID0525H130 2.625% 12AUG2025 August 12, 2025 8,660,783
189,696,064

Corporate securities

CB BPI1 2.8068% 31JAN2024 January 31, 2024 13,025,363
CB BDO 2.9% 28JAN2024 January 28, 2024 11,779,786
CB SMPH2025 6.0804% DUE ON 01MAR2025 March 1, 2025 10,105,890
CB SMFBFXBD2025 5.05% DUE 10MAR25 March 10, 2025 9,427,408
CB ALI 4.75% DUE 250CT2025 October 25, 2025 9,297,466
CB NLEX CORP 6.6407% DUE 04JUL2025 July 4, 2025 3,023,437
56,659,350

In absolute amounts

As at December 31, 2022

Description Maturity Date

Market Value

Government securities

GB R512 PHY6972HDG84 6.25% March 12, 2024 43,105,844
FXTN 7-62 PHY6972HDE37 6.25% February 14, 2026 34,925,715
GB PIID0527C159 4.875% March 4, 2027 19,101,525
GB R3-11 PHY6972HJA50 2.375% March 9, 2024 16,933,594
FXTN 25-8 PHYB972FNA49 8.125% December 16, 2035 15,919,044
FXTN 10-64 PIBD1029A644 6.875% January 10, 2029 15,296,431
FXTN PIBD1032J701 7.5% October 20, 2032 10,324,289
GB R513 PIID0525H130 2.625% August 12, 2025 9,329,624
Interest income accrued - 1,797,101
166,733,167
Corporate securities
CB BPI 2.8068% January 31, 2024 12,570,805
CB BDO 2.9% January 28, 2024 11,170,326
CB SMPH2025 6.0804% March 1, 2025 9,739,640
CB SMFBFXBD2025 5.05% March 10, 2025 9,413,450
CB ALI 4.75% October 25, 2025 9,135,555
CB NLEX CORP 6.6407% July 4, 2025 2,958,546
Interest income accrued - 484,994
55,473,316
Details of investments in UITF held at FVTPL at December 31, 2022 are as follows:
Unit Investment Trust Funds
Investment in PHILAM MANAGED INCOME FUND, INC. 3,607,011
4 Other financial assets at amortized cost
The account at December 31, 2023 and 2022 consists of the following:
2023 2022
Due from brokers 2,468 2,676
Dividend receivable 163 938
Other receivables, net 1,336 1,391
3,967 5,005

Due from brokers represent receivables for securities sold that have been contracted for but not yet settled or

delivered at the end of reporting period.

Other receivables mainly consist of advances made by the fund manager.

(4)



At December 31, 2023 and 2022, the other financial assets at amortized cost are expected to be collected in
the next 12 months and classified as current asset.

5 Accounts payable and accrued expenses

The account at December 31 consists of:

2023 2022

Accounts payable 13,329 14,901
Accrued expenses 319 3,407
13,648 18,308

Accounts payable include taxes payable and payable to investors due to redemptions that have been
contracted for but not yet settled as at reporting date.

Accrued expenses consist mainly of amounts payable for fund accounting services (Note 11), registry and
transfer agent fees, legal and audit fees, and management fees.

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Fund’s accounts payable and accrued expenses are expected to be
settled in the next 12 months and classified as current liabilities.

6 Net assets attributable to shareholders

The details of net assets attributable to shareholders at December 31 are as follows:

2023 2022 2021
Share capital - P1.00 par value
Authorized - 2,000,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding 141,343 159,100 171,650
Share premium - 16,179 18,166
Retained earnings 364,582 371,955 447,366
505,925 547,234 637,182

The movements in the number of issued and outstanding shares are as follows (in absolute number of
shares):

2023 2022 2021
Issued and outstanding, January 1 159,100,014 171,649,851 182,319,903
Issuances of shares 1,067,642 1,953,337 3,004,363
Redemptions of shares (18,824,460) (14,503,174)  (13,674,415)
Issued and outstanding, December 31 141,343,196 159,100,014 171,649,851

The movements in the amount of issued and outstanding shares follow:

2023 2022 2021

Impact to Impact to Impact to

Share Share retained Share Share retained Share Share  retained

capital premium earnings  capital premium earnings capital premium  earnings

At January 1 159,100 16,179 - 171,650 18,166 - 182,320 17,831 -
Issuance 1,067 2,692 - 1,953 4,907 - 3,004 8,134 -
Redemptions (18,824) (18,871) (27,934) (14,503) (6,894) (30,512) (13,674) (8,134) (28,150)
Reclassification - - - - - - - 335 (335)
At December 31 141,343 - (27,934) 159,100 16,179 (30,512) 171,650 18,166 (28,485)

As at December 31, 2023, the Fund has 9,899 shareholders (2022 - 10,126 shareholders). Issue or offer price
is equivalent to the NAV per share at the time of issuance.
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Redemption of shares during the year includes shares redeemed at higher NAV price compared to the NAV
price at issuance date. The excess of redemption price over subscription price is charged to the share premium
and when this balance is exhausted, it is charged to retained earnings. For December 31, 2023, amount
charged to retained earnings totaled to P27,934 (2022 - P30,512; 2021 - P28,150).

The Fund computes its NAV per share by dividing the net assets attributable to shareholders, including DFFS
classified as liability, if any, as at reporting date by the number of issued and outstanding shares during the
year, including shares for issuances covered by DFFS, if any. The total equity as shown in the statement of
financial position represents the Fund’s NAV based on Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS NAYV).
Issue or offer price is equivalent to the Trading NAV per share at the time of issuance.

A reconciliation of the Fund’s PFRS NAV to Trading NAV is provided below:

(in millions PHP) 2023 2022 2021
PFRS NAV 505.93 547.23 637.18
Recognition of transactions which were recorded

subsequent to the close of the year (3.36) 0.32 0.02
Trading NAV 502.57 547.55 637.20

Trading NAV per share at December 31 is computed as follows:

2023 2022 2021
Trading NAV attributable to shareholders (in millions) 502.57 547.55 637.20
Number of shares outstanding (in millions) 141.3432 159.1000 171.6499
Trading NAV per share 3.56 3.44 3.71
PFRS NAV per share at December 31 is computed as follows:

2023 2022 2021
PFRS NAV attributable to shareholders (in millions) 505.93 547.23 637.18
Number of shares outstanding (in millions) 141.3432 159.1000 171.6499
PFRS NAV per share 3.58 3.44 3.71

As disclosed in Note 1, the Fund is an open-end investment company which stands ready at any time to
redeem its outstanding shares at a value defined under its prospectus. Any changes in the value of the
shareholders’ investment are reflected in the increase or decrease in the Fund’s NAV.

The Fund’s retained earnings may exceed 100% of its paid-up capital from time to time. This, however, is not
construed as a compelling factor for the Fund to declare dividends considering the nature of the Fund’s
business. Such retained earnings may be used for reinvestment and will be converted into realized profits by
the shareholders upon redemption of their shareholdings in the Fund.

Income (loss) per share is calculated by dividing the net income (loss) by the weighted average number of
outstanding redeemable shares at year-end.
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The information used in the computation of basic and diluted loss per share for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31 are as follows:

2023 2022 2021

Net income (loss) for the year 20,561 (44,899) (14,590)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding

during the year (in thousands) 150,276 164,659 177,461

Earnings (loss) per share 0.14 (0.27) (0.08)

In compliance with the SRC, the Fund is required to file registration statement for each instance of increase in
authorized shares. The table below shows the Fund’s track record of registration of securities under the SRC
(in absolute amount).

SEC approval date Number of shares Par value
December 17, 2007 1,000,000,000 P1.00
August 8, 1997 1,000,000,000 P1.00

7 Interestincome

The interest income from cash and cash equivalents for the year ended December 31, 2023 amounts to P997
(2022 - P662; 2021 - P229).

8 Fees and other charges

The details of the account for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

Notes 2023 2022 2021

Registry and transfer fees 10 266 294 329
Professional fees 185 656 455
Administration fees 11 147 161 181
Fees to custodian bank 68 239 239
Membership fees and dues 19 - -
Directors’ fees - 178 178
Marketing fees - - 104
685 1,528 1,486

Registry and transfer fees pertain to the fees paid to the transfer agent for the record keeping of individual
shareholdings and the issuance and cancellation of stock certificates (Note 10).

Professional fees include charges for audit and legal services provided to the Fund.

Administration fees are the amounts paid to the Fund’s accountant for services rendered which include, among
others, the preparation and maintenance of books of accounts and computation of NAV (Note 11).

Fees to custodian bank pertain to amounts paid to the custodian bank for the safekeeping of the securities,
arranging settlement of any purchases and sales and collecting information on and income from such assets.

Directors’ fees pertain to per diem of the directors of the Fund.
9 Income tax

Income tax expense represents final tax withheld from interest earned from cash and cash equivalents, and
investments in fixed-income securities.
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Details of the Fund’s net operating loss carry over (NOLCO) which is available for offset against future taxable
income follow:

Year of incurrence Year of expiration 2023 2022 2021
2023 2026 1,741 - -
2022 2025 12,928 12,928 -
2021 2026 13,985 13,985 13,985
2020 2025 14,769 14,769 14,769
2019 2022 - 19,127 19,127
43,423 60,809 47,881
Expired NOLCO - (19,127) -
43,423 41,682 47,881
Income tax rate 25% 25% 25%
Unrecognized deferred income tax asset 10,856 10,420 11,970

Deferred income tax asset from NOLCO has not been recognized because the Fund believes that there will
be limited capacity to generate sufficient taxable profit against which the benefit from NOLCO can be utilized.

On September 30, 2020, the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) issued Revenue Regulations (RR)

No. 25-2020, Rules and Regulations Implementing Section 4 (bbbb) of Republic Act No. 11494 (Bayanihan to
Recover as One Act) relative to NOLCO under Section 34 (D)(3) of the National Internal Revenue Code, as
amended, allowing qualified businesses or enterprises which incurred net operating loss for taxable years
2020 and 2021 to carry over the same as a deduction from its gross income for the next five (5) consecutive
taxable years immediately following the year of such loss.

The reconciliation of the statutory income tax rate to the effective income tax rate follows:

2023 2022 2021

Statutory income tax rate 25.00% (25.00%) (25.00%)
Adjustments for tax effects of:

NOLCO not recognized 7.42% 30.61% 120.21%

Interest income subject to final tax (4.25%) (1.57%) (1.97%)

Income exempt from tax (28.10%) (16.22%) (56.52%)

Non-deductible expense (non-taxable gains) 12.25% 18.48% (11.32%)
Effective income tax rate 12.32% 6.30% 25.41%

The Corporate Recovery and Tax Incentives for Enterprises (CREATE) Act which provides for lower corporate
income tax rates and rationalizes fiscal incentives had been signed into law by the President of the Philippines
in 2021 but with an effective date of July 1, 2020. The CREATE Act has no significant impact on the Fund as it
did not recognize the related deferred income tax asset on NOLCO in view of the Fund’s limited capacity to
generate sufficient taxable income to allow the utilization of NOLCO since the bulk of the Fund’s income is
tax-exempt or subject to final tax or other percentage tax.

10 Related party transactions

The Fund had a management and distribution agreement with PAMI, whereby the latter was appointed as the
Fund's investment advisor and manager. PAMI also functioned as the principal distributor of the Fund. As
such, it took charge of the sales of the Fund's shares to prospective investors, and paid certain expenses on
behalf of the Fund. The Fund also had a registry and transfer agency agreement with PAMI.

Effective January 29, 2020, PAMI assigned all its rights, interests, and obligations as fund manager, advisor,
distributor, and transfer agent of the Fund to BIMI. Hence, the management, distribution, and transfer agency
functions were performed by BIMI over the Fund.

On April 1, 2023, BIMI transferred all its rights, interest and obligations as fund manager and fund advisor to

BPI Wealth. On effective date, the management function over the Fund is performed by BPI Wealth but the
distribution and transfer agency functions of the Fund were retained by BIMI.
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The table below summarizes the Fund's transactions and balances with its related parties
(Fund manager).

Outstanding

Transactions balance
(Charges to (Due to fund Outstanding balance’s
profit or loss) manager) terms and conditions
Fund manager
Management fees
December 31, 2023 9,568 658 - Management fee is computed as 1.85% per year
December 31, 2022 10,578 723 of the Fund’s NAV determined on a daily basis.
December 31, 2021 11,853 843 - Outstanding balance is unguaranteed,
unsecured and non-interest bearing; settled in
cash at gross amount within the following month
Transfer agent / Distributor
Registry and transfer fees
December 31, 2023 266 49 - Registry and transfer fee is computed as one-
December 31, 2022 294 49 twentieth (1/20) of one percent of the NAV per year
December 31, 2021 329 48 determined on a daily basis

- Outstanding balance is unguaranteed, unsecured
and non-interest bearing; payable in cash at gross
amount within the following month

11 Fund accounting services

On February 12, 2015, the Fund and Deutsche Bank entered into a fund accounting agreement wherein
Deutsche Bank shall perform administrative functions, which include, among others, the preparation and
maintenance of books of accounts and computation of NAV. As compensation for services rendered,
Deutsche Bank shall be entitled to an administration fee equivalent to 0.0275% per annum based on the NAV
of the Fund.

Administration fees for the year ended December 31, 2023 amount to P147 (2022 - P161; 2021 - P181) and is
included under fees and other charges in the statement of total comprehensive income (Note 8). As at
December 31, 2023, administration fees payable to Deutsche Bank taken up as part of accrued expenses,
which is included in Accounts payable and accrued expenses, amount to P12 (2022 - P13) (Note 5).

12 Critical accounting estimate and judgments

Estimates, assumptions and judgments used in preparing the financial statements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The accounting judgments that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below.

12.1  Critical accounting judgments

Classification of financial assets (Note 3)

The Fund follows the guidance of PFRS 9 in classifying financial assets at initial recognition whether it will be
subsequently measured at amortized cost , fair value through other comprehensive income, or at fair value
through profit or loss. The Fund determines the classification based on the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets and on the business model it uses to manage these financial assets.

The Fund determines whether the contractual cash flows associated with the financial asset are solely

payments of principal and interest (SPPI). If the instrument fails the SPPI test, it will be measured at fair value
through profit or loss.
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Recognition of deferred income tax asset (Note 9)

Deferred income tax asset from NOLCO has not been recognized because the Fund believes that there is
limited capacity to generate sufficient taxable profit against which the benefit from NOLCO can be utilized.
The Fund assesses the unrecognized deferred income tax asset and will recognize a previously unrecognized
deferred income tax asset to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable income will allow the
deferred income tax asset to be recovered.

13 Capital and financial risk management
13.1  Governance framework

The primary objective of the Fund’s financial risk management framework is to protect the Fund from events
that hinder the sustainable achievement of the Fund’s performance objectives, including failing to exploit
opportunities. The Fund recognizes the critical importance of having efficient and effective risk management
systems in place.

The BOD has approved the Fund’s risk management policies and meets regularly to approve on any
commercial, regulatory and own organizational requirements in such policies. The policies define the Fund’s
identification of risk and its interpretation, limit structure to ensure the appropriate quality and diversification of
assets, alignment of investment strategy to the corporate goals and compliance with reporting requirements.

13.2  Capital management

The Fund’s objectives for managing capital are: (a) to invest the capital in investments meeting the description
and risk exposure indicated in its prospectus; (b) to achieve consistent returns while safeguarding capital; and
(c) to maintain sufficient liquidity to meet the expenses of the Fund and to meet redemption requests as they
arise.

As provided by the Investment Company Act of 1960, the minimum required capitalization for funds amounts
to P50 million. The Fund’s capitalization is more than the requirement of the SEC.

The Fund considers the net assets attributable to shareholders as its capital (or total equity as shown in the
statement of financial position). As at December 31, 2023, the net assets attributable to shareholders amount
to P505,925 (2022 - P547,234).

13.3 Regulatory framework

The operations of the Fund are also subject to the regulatory requirements of the SEC. Such regulations not
only prescribe approval and monitoring of activities but also impose certain restrictive provisions. Unless
ordered otherwise by the SEC, the Fund shall not sell securities short or invest in any of the following:

margin purchase of securities (investments in partially paid shares are excluded);
commodity future contracts;

precious metals;

unlimited liability investments;

short selling of currencies;

short selling of investments; and

other investments as the SEC shall, from time to time, prescribe.

@~oooow

Any changes in the Fund’s investment objective should be with notice and prior approval of the SEC. An
investment company shall not change its investment objective without the approval from the majority of the
Fund’s shareholders.

In addition, the SEC also provides maximum limits on exposure to counterparties, maintenance of a certain
level of liquid assets and conditions for incurring borrowings (Note 13).

The Fund is fully compliant with the above regulatory requirements as at December 31, 2023 and 2022.
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13.4 Fair value of financial instruments

The Fund ranks its financial instruments based on the hierarchy of valuation techniques required by PFRS 13,
which is determined based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or
unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources; unobservable inputs
reflect the Fund’s market assumptions. These two types of inputs lead to the following fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available. The Fund considers relevant and
observable market prices in its valuations where possible.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety is
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If
a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable
inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair
value measurement in its entirety requires judgement, considering factors specific to the asset.

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgement by the Fund. The Fund
considers observable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated,
reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the
relevant market.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the
statement of financial position date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from the exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on
guoted market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are
classified within Level 2.

Financial instruments classified within Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade infrequently.

The table below shows the fair value hierarchy levels for financial assets that are measured at fair value as at
December 31:

2023 Level 1 Level 2 Total
Listed equity securities 255,004 - 255,004
Government securities - 189,696 189,696
Corporate debt securities - 56,659 56,659
Unit investment trust funds - - -
Financial assets at FVTPL 255,004 246,355 501,359
2022 Level 1 Level 2 Total
Listed equity securities 306,392 - 306,392
Government securities - 166,733 166,733
Corporate debt securities - 55,473 55,473
Unit investment trust funds - 3,607 3,607
Financial assets at FVTPL 306,392 225,813 532,205
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There are no other assets or liabilities subsequently measured at fair value or that would require disclosure of
fair value hierarchy.

13.5 Financial risk

The Fund’s equity portfolio shall include securities listed in the primary board of the Philippines Stock
Exchange (PSE). However, the Fund may also invest in companies listed on the secondary board and from
time to time on shares of non-listed companies that are about to get listed within three months. The total
investment in the secondary board of the PSE may not, in total, 20% of the total investments of the Fund.
Furthermore, a maximum of 20% of the Fund may be invested in foreign securities with positive track record
of at least three consecutive years.

The Fund has complied with these requirements as at December 31, 2023 and 2022.

For defensive purposes, the Fund may invest in SEC-registered debt papers or other certificate of
indebtedness/obligations, issuers of whom had been determined as financially sound and approved by the
Investment Committee of the Fund manager.

The Fund may also trade in medium to long-term government securities (5-year to 20-year notes, bonds and
other certificates of indebtedness) issued by the Philippine Government. The Fund has complied with these
requirements as at December 31, 2023 and 2022.

The Fund is exposed to financial risk through its financial assets. The most important components are credit
risk, liquidity risk and market risk. These risks arise from open positions in interest rate and equity securities,
all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the
other party to incur a financial loss.

The Fund manages the level of credit risk it accepts through setting up of exposure limits by each
counterparty or group of counterparties. The maximum investment of the Fund in any single enterprise shall
not exceed an amount equivalent to 15% of the Fund’s NAV except obligations of the Philippine government
or its instrumentalities, provided that in no case shall the total investment of the Fund exceed 10% of the
outstanding securities of any one investee company. The Fund also transacts only with institutions with high
credit rating or standing. The Fund has complied with these requirements as at December 31, 2023 and 2022.

In addition, the Fund manages the level of credit risk it accepts through reporting of credit risk exposures,
monitoring compliance with credit risk policy and review of credit risk policy for pertinence and changing
environment. The Fund cannot lend to individual borrowers.

The fund manager’s high-grade credit process combines top down and bottom-up elements reflecting the
observation that the weaker the credit quality, the more security specific risk comes to dominate overall
portfolio risk. The bottom-up element focuses on the analysis of individual credits. The top-down element
focuses on the analysis of sectors. In order to manage risk, the high-grade portfolios combine diversification
rules with a number of filters designed to help avoid downgrade and default candidates. Key to the Fund’s
credit process is the minimization of the impact from security default or downgrade.
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The following table provides information regarding the maximum credit risk exposure of the Fund’s financial
assets as at December 31:

Note 2023 2022
Cash and cash equivalents 2 14,954 29,052
Financial assets at FVTPL 3
Government securities 189,696 166,733
Corporate debt securities 56,659 55,473
Unit investment trust funds - 3,607
Other financial assets at amortized cost 4 3,967 5,005
265,276 259,870

The credit quality of the Fund’s financial assets as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 follows:
(a) Cash and cash equivalents

The Fund’s cash in banks and short-term deposits are with highly reputable universal bank in the Philippines
and global banks with an equivalent credit rating of Baal by Moody’s.

(b) Financial asset at FVTPL

Debt securities classified as financial asset at FVTPL is composed of government securities, corporate debt
securities and unit investment trust funds with credit rating of AA and considered as investment grade
securities.

(c) Other financial asset at amortized cost

Due from brokers arise from sale of investments in equity securities during the last three (3) trading days of
the reporting period and are usually settled three (3) days after trade date. The Fund’s brokers are registered
trading participants of the PSE.

Dividend receivable arises from dividends declared but not yet received as at year-end.

Other receivables mainly consist of advances made by the Fund Manager and interest receivables. Interest
receivable is from interest income earned but not yet received as at year-end.

There are no collaterals held as security and other credit enhancements attached to the financial assets at
amortized cost as at December 31, 2023 and 2022.

For financial assets at amortized cost, the Fund measures credit risk and expected credit losses (ECL) using
probability of default, exposure at default and loss given default. Management considers both historical
analysis and forward-looking information in determining any ECL. As a result, no loss allowance has been
recognized based on 12-month ECL as any such impairment would be insignificant to the Fund.

As at December 31, 2023, all of the Fund’s financial assets are classified as Stage 1 accounts (performing).
There are no financial assets classified under Stages 2 (underperforming) and 3 (impaired).

Liguidity risk

Liquidity or funding risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments
associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from either the inability to sell financial assets
quickly at their fair values; or counterparty failing on repayment of a contractual obligation; or inability to
generate cash inflows as anticipated.

The Fund is exposed to daily cash redemptions of its issued shares. It invests the majority of its assets in
investments that are traded in an active market and can be readily disposed of.
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The Fund manages liquidity through specifying minimum proportion of funds to meet emergency calls. Unless
otherwise prescribed by the SEC, at least 10% of the Fund shall be invested in liquid/semi-liquid assets such
as:

a. Treasury notes or bills, certificates of indebtedness issued by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas which are
short term, and other government securities or bonds and such other evidence of indebtedness or
obligations, the servicing and repayment of which are fully guaranteed by the Republic of the Philippines;

b. Tradable Long-Term Negotiable Certificate of Time Deposits (LTNCDSs);

c. Government debt securities where the issuer or the guarantor is a foreign government, sovereign or
central bank with an international long-term issuer rating of investment grade;

d. Savings or time deposits with government-owned banks or commercial banks, provided that in no case
shall any such savings or time deposits accounts be accepted or allowed under a “bearer,” “numbered”
account or other similar arrangement;

e. Money market instruments issued by Philippine regulated qualified buyers or those issued by an
investment grade issuing body; and,

f.  Other collective schemes wholly invested in liquid/semi-liquid assets.

The Fund may not incur any further debt or borrowings unless at the time of its occurrence or immediately
thereafter, there is an asset coverage of at least 300% for all its borrowings. In the event that such asset
coverage shall fall below 300%, the Fund shall, within three (3) days thereafter, reduce the amount of
borrowings to an extent that the asset coverage of such borrowings shall be at least 300%. The Fund has not
breached the said asset coverage requirement as at December 31, 2023 and 2022.

In addition, the Fund manages liquidity through reporting of liquidity risk exposures, monitoring compliance
with liquidity risk policy and review of liquidity risk policy for pertinence and changing environment.

The Fund’s financial liability pertains to management and distribution fees and other payables and accrued
expenses which are contractually due in less than one (1) month. The Fund expects to settle its obligations in
accordance with the maturity date through trading of its financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of change in fair value of financial instruments from fluctuation in foreign exchange rates
(currency risk), interest rates (interest rate risk) and market prices (price risk), whether such change in price is
caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all instruments traded in
the market. The Fund is not exposed to significant currency risk and cash flow interest rate risk given the
nature of its financial assets and liabilities.

The Fund structures levels of market risk it accepts through a market risk policy that determines what
constitutes market risk for the Fund; basis used to fair value financial assets and liabilities; sets out the net
exposure limits by each counterparty or group of counterparties and industry segments; reporting of market
risk exposures; monitoring compliance with market risk policy and review of market risk policy for pertinence
and changing environment.

Fair value interest rate risk

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value/future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The following table shows the information relating to the Fund’s investments in fixed income securities that are
exposed to fair value interest rate risk presented by maturity profile.

Upto Over
December 31, 2023 Range of rates a year 2-5 years 5 years No term Total
Financial assets at FVTPL
Government securities 2.625% - 8.125% - 115,086 74,610 - 189,696
Corporate debt securities  2.8068% - 6.640% 24,805 31,854 - - 56,659
24,805 146,940 74,610 - 246,355
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Upto Over

December 31, 2022 Range of rates ayear 2-5years 5 years No term Total
Financial assets at FVTPL

Government securities 2.375% - 7.5% - 124,505 42,228 - 166,733

Corporate debt securities  2.0804% - 6.640% - 55,473 - - 55,473

- 179,978 42,228 - 222,206

The Fund is also indirectly exposed to fair value interest risk from the underlying debt securities of its
investments in UITFs.

The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in interest rate with all other variables
held constant, showing the impact on pre-tax profit.

Change in  Impact on pre-tax profit

interest rate Increase (decrease)

December 31, 2023 +1% (9,297)
-1% 10,145

December 31, 2022 +1% (6,113)
- 1% 6,467

December 31, 2021 +1% (12,929)
- 1% 12,832

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Fund determines the reasonable possible change in interest rates
using the percentage changes in weighted average yield rates of outstanding securities for the past three
years.

Price risk

Price risk relates to financial assets and liabilities whose values will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices of equity securities.

The Fund is exposed to price risk primarily in respect of its investments in equities listed in the PSE which are
classified as financial assets at FVTPL.

The Fund’s market risk policy requires it to manage such risks by setting and monitoring objectives and
constraints on investment, diversification plan and limits on investments.

The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in PSE index with all other variables held
constant, showing the impact on pre-tax profit.

Change in Impact on
PSE index pre-tax profit
December 31, 2023 +/-1.80% +/-4,600
December 31, 2022 +/-3.45% +/-10,585

14 Summary of material accounting policies

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

14.1  Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS). The term PFRS, in general, includes all applicable PFRS, Philippine Accounting
Standards (PAS) and interpretations of the Philippine Interpretations Committee (PIC), Standing
Interpretations Committee (SIC) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC)
which have been approved by the Financial and Sustainability Reporting Standards Council (FSRSC)

and adopted by the SEC.
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The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets at FVTPL. The Fund’s functional currency is the Philippine Peso.

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Fund’s accounting policies. There are no areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to

the financial statements. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity are disclosed in
Note 12.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(8 Amendments to existing standards adopted by the Fund

The following amendments to existing standards have been adopted by the Fund effective January 1, 2023:

e Amendments to PAS1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’, and PFRS Practice Statement 2
The amendment requires entities to disclose their material rather than their significant accounting policies.
The amendments define what is ‘material accounting policy information’ (being information that, when
considered together with other information included in an entity’s financial statements, can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements) and explain how to identify when accounting policy information is
material. They further clarify that immaterial accounting policy information does not need to be disclosed.
If it is disclosed, it should not obscure material accounting information.

To support this amendment, PFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements was also
amended to provide guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.

(b) New standards, interpretations and amendments not yet adopted by the Fund
There are no other new standards, amendments to existing standards, or interpretations that are effective

for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023 that are considered relevant or expected to have
a material effect on the financial statement of the Fund.

14.2  Financial instruments
14.2.1 Classification and subsequent measurement
The Fund classifies its financial assets in the following applicable measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at FVTPL, and
e those to be measured at amortized cost.

Gains and losses on sale of investments at FVTPL are included in the income (losses) from financial assets at
FVTPL in the statement of total comprehensive income.

The classification requirements for equity and debt instruments are described below:

Equity investments

The Fund subsequently measures all equity investments at FVTPL. Dividends, when representing a return on
such investments, continue to be recognized in profit or loss as other income when the Fund’s right to receive
payments is established.

Debt instruments

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on the Fund’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
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Based on these factors, the Fund classifies its debt instruments into one of the following applicable
measurement categories:

*  Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI), and that are not designated at FVTPL, are measured at
amortized cost. The carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by any expected credit loss allowance
recognized and measured. Interest from these financial assets is included in ‘Interest income’ using the
effective interest rate method.

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Fund’s financial assets at amortized cost include cash and cash
equivalents, and other financial assets at amortized cost.

¢ Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost and the collection of contractual cash
flows is only incidental to achieving the Fund’s business model objective are measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

The Fund’s financial assets at FVTPL consists of investments in government securities, corporate
securities and unit investment trust.

Business model: The business model reflects how the Fund manages the financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. That is, whether the Fund’s objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets
or is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of financial assets. If
neither of these is applicable, then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’ business model and
measured at FVTPL. Factors considered by the Fund in determining the business model for a group of
financial assets include past experience on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how the
asset’s performance is evaluated and reported to key management personnel, how risks are assessed and
managed and how managers are compensated.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect contractual
cash flows and sell, the Fund assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest (the SPPI test). In making this assessment, the Fund considers whether the
contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only
consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is
consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or
volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and
measured at FVTPL.

The Fund reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets
changes. The reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting period following the change. Such
changes are expected to be very infrequent and none occurred during the period.

14.2.2 Impairment

The Fund assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its financial
assets at amortized cost. The Fund recognizes a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. The
measurement of ECL reflects:

e An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes;

e The time value of money; and

¢ Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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At each reporting date, the Fund measures the loss allowance on financial assets at amortized cost at an
amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. If, at the
reporting date, the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Fund measures the
loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL. Significant financial difficulties of the counterparties,
probability that the counterparties will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization, and default in payments
are all considered indicators that a loss allowance may be required. If the credit risk increases to the point that
it is considered to be credit impaired, interest income will be calculated based on the gross carrying amount
adjusted for the loss allowance. A significant increase in credit risk is defined by management as any
contractual payment which is more than 30 days past due. Any contractual payment which is more than 90
days past due is considered credit impaired.

14.2.3 Cash and cash equivalents

Short-term deposits of the Fund pertain to highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less from the date of acquisition and which are subject to insignificant changes in value.

14.2.4 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
The Fund classifies its financial liabilities at FVTPL or as other financial liabilities at amortized cost.

Financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value plus
transaction costs.

After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on the
issue and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

14.3  Equity

The Fund issues shares, which are redeemable at the holder’s option and are classified as equity in
accordance with PAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation. Each share has the following features which
support the equity classification:

e it entitles the holder to a pro rata share of the Fund’s net assets in the event of the entity’s liquidation;

e the share has no priority over other claims to the assets of the Fund on liquidation, and it does not need to
be converted into another instrument before it is classified as such; and

e all shares impose a contractual obligation on the Fund to deliver a pro rata share of its net assets on
liquidation.

In addition, the Fund has no other financial instrument or contract that has:

e total cash flows based substantially on profit or loss, the change in the recognized net assets or the
change in the fair value of the recognized and unrecognized net assets of the Fund (excluding any effects
of such instrument or contract); and

e the effect of substantially restricting or fixing the residual return to the shareholders.

Should the redeemable shares’ terms or conditions change such that they do not comply with the strict criteria
as mentioned above, the redeemable shares would be reclassified to a financial liability from the date the
instrument ceases to meet the criteria. The financial liability would be measured at the instrument’s fair value
at the date of reclassification. Any difference between the carrying value of the equity instrument and fair
value of the liability on the date of reclassification would be recognized in equity.

Redeemable shares can be put back to the Fund at any time for cash equal to a proportionate share of the

Fund’s trading NAV calculated in accordance with the Fund’s regulations. Redeemed shares are not
cancelled but may be reissued in the future.
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Share premium

Sales of shares are recorded by crediting share capital at par value and share premium for the amount
received in excess of the par value; redemptions are recorded by debiting those accounts. In the event that
the share premium balance is exhausted as a result of redemptions, the retained earnings account is reduced
by redemptions in excess of par.

14.4  Earnings (loss) per share

Basic income (loss) per share is calculated by dividing the loss attributable to shareholders of the Fund by the
weighted average number of shares outstanding.

14.5 Current and deferred income tax

Current tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal authorities relating to the
current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or unpaid at the end of reporting period. All changes to
current tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of income tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Under the
liability method, deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward of unused tax
losses (NOLCO) and unused tax credits (excess of minimum corporate income tax) to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deferred income tax asset can be utilized.

14.6  Related party relationships and transactions

Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly, or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, the other party or exercises significant influence over the other party in making financial
and operating decisions. Such relationship also exists between and/or among entities which are under
common control with the reporting enterprise, or between, and/or among the reporting enterprise and its key
management personnel, directors, or its shareholders. In considering each possible related party relationship,
attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

15 Supplementary information required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR)

Below is the additional information required by Revenue Regulations No. 15-2010 that is relevant to the Fund.
This information is presented for purposes of filing with the BIR and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. All amounts are in thousands of Philippine Peso.

(i) All other local and national taxes

All other local and national taxes paid and accrued as at and for the year ended December 31, 2023 consist
of:

Paid Accrued Total

Municipal taxes and mayor’s permit 37 - 37
Documentary stamp tax 10 1 11
Community tax 9 - 9
56 1 57

Accrued documentary stamp tax as at December 31, 2023 is included under accounts payable and accrued
expenses in the statement of financial position.

The above local and national taxes are charged under taxes and licenses account in the statement of total
comprehensive income.
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(i) Withholding taxes

Withholding taxes paid and accrued and/or withheld as at and for the year ended December 31, 2023
consist of:

Paid Accrued Total
Expanded withholding tax 1,300 113 1,413

Accrued expanded withholding tax is included under accounts payable and accrued expenses in the
statement of financial position.

(i) Tax assessments and cases

Taxable years 2022, 2021 and 2020 are open for tax examinations. The Fund has no pending tax cases as at
December 31, 2023.

(iv) Others

The Fund did not have transactions that are subject to value-added tax, excise taxes, and custom duties and
tariff for the year ended December 31, 2023.
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PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc.
(An Open-End Mutual Fund Company)

Reconciliation of Retained Earnings
Available for Dividend Declaration
For the year ended December 31, 2023

(All amounts in thousands of Philippine Peso)

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, beginning of the year* 371,955
Add: Category A: Items that are directly credited to
Unappropriated retained earnings
Reversal of Retained earnings appropriation/s -
Effect of restatements or prior-period adjustments -
Others (describe nature) - -

Less: Category B: Items that are directly debited to
Unappropriated retained earnings
Dividend declaration during the reporting year -
Retained earnings appropriated during the reporting period -
Effect of restatements or prior-period adjustments -
Others (describe nature) - -

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as adjusted 371,955

Add/Less: Net Income (loss) for the current year 20,561
Less: Category C.1: Unrealized income recognized in the
profit or loss during the year (net of tax)
Equity in net income of associate/joint venture, net of dividends
declared -
Unrealized foreign exchange gain, except those attributable to
cash and cash equivalents -
Unrealized fair value adjustment (mark-to-market gains) of
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 4,397
Unrealized fair value gain of investment property -
Other unrealized gains or adjustments to the retained earnings
as a result of certain transactions accounted for under the
PFRS (describe nature) - 4,397




PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc.
(An Open-End Mutual Fund Company)

Reconciliation of Retained Earnings
Available for Dividend Declaration
For the year ended December 31, 2023

(All amounts in thousands of Philippine Peso)

Add: Category C.2: Unrealized income recognized in
the profit or loss in prior reporting periods but
realized in the current reporting period (net of tax)

Realized foreign exchange gain, except those
attributable to Cash and cash equivalents

Realized fair value adjustment (mark-to-market
gains) of financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Realized fair value gain of Investment property

Other realized gains or adjustments to the retained
earnings as a result of certain transactions
accounted for under the PFRS (describe nature)

Add: Category C.3: Unrealized income recoghnized in
profit or loss in prior periods but reversed in the
current reporting period (net of tax)

Reversal of previously recorded foreign exchange
gain, except those attributable to cash and cash
equivalents

Reversal of previously recorded fair value
adjustment (mark-to- market gains) of financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

Reversal of previously recorded fair value gain of
investment property

Reversal of other unrealized gains or adjustments
to the retained earnings as a result of certain
transactions accounted for under the PFRS,
previously recorded (describe nature)

Adjusted net income
Add: Category D: Non-actual losses recognized in profit or
loss during the reporting period (net of tax)
Depreciation on revaluation increment (after tax)

Add/Less: Category E: Adjustments related to relief
granted by the SEC and BSP
Amortization of the effect of reporting relief
Total amount of reporting relief granted
during the year
Others (describe nature)

16,164




PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc.
(An Open-End Mutual Fund Company)

Reconciliation of Retained Earnings
Available for Dividend Declaration
For the year ended December 31, 2023

(All amounts in thousands of Philippine Peso)

Add/Less: Category F: Other items that should be
excluded from the determination of the amount of
available for dividends distribution
Net movement of treasury shares (except for
reacquisition of redeemable shares) -
Net movement of deferred tax asset not
considered in the reconciling items under the
previous categories -
Net movement in deferred tax asset and deferred
tax liabilities related to same transaction, e.g.,
set up of right of use of asset and lease liability,
set-up of asset and asset retirement obligation,
and set-up of service concession asset and -
concession payable
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP -

gain (loss) -
Others (describe nature):
Redemption of redeemable shares (27,934) (27,934)
Total retained earnings, end of the year available for
dividend declaration 360,185

*Total retained earnings available for dividend declaration per Reconciliation of Retained Earnings as at December 31, 2022 less the

redemption of redeemable shares during 2022



PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc.

Schedule A - Financial Assets

December 31, 2023

(All amounts in Philippine Peso)

Amount Value based
Face value / shown in the on Income
Name of Issuing entity number of financial market received
and association of each issue shares statements* quotation and accrued
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in banks 2,424,322 2,424,322 2,424,322 -
Time deposits
BPI TIME DEPOSIT PHP 7,530,000 7,530,000 7,530,000 -
RCBC TIME DEPQOSIT PHP 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 -
Total short-term deposits 12,530,000 12,530,000 12,530,000 -
Total cash and cash equivalents 14,954,322 14,954,322 14,954,322 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Equity Securities
SM Investments Corporation 42,560 37,112,320 37,112,320 -
SM Prime Holdings, Inc. 854,498 28,112,984 28,112,984 -
BDO Unibank. Inc. 180,324 23,532,282 23,532,282 -
Bank of the Philippine Islands 204,866 21,265,091 21,265,091 -
Ayala Land, Inc 609,177 20,986,147 20,986,147 -
Ayala Corporation 29,372 20,002,332 20,002,332 -
Int'l Container Terminal Services, Inc. 75,000 18,510,000 18,510,000 -
Jollibee Foods Corporation 46,682 11,735,855 11,735,855 -
Aboitiz Equity Ventures, Inc. 230,950 10,300,370 10,300,370 -
Manila Electric Company "A" 24,820 9,903,180 9,903,180 -
Universal Robina Corporation 82,494 9,750,791 9,750,791 -
Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company 181,556 9,313,823 9,313,823 -
JG Summit Holdings, Inc. 231,886 8,846,451 8,846,451 -
PLDT Company - Common Shares 6,090 7,789,110 7,789,110 -
Globe Telecom, Inc. 4,288 7,375,360 7,375,360 -
GT Capital Holdings, Inc 9,319 5,498,210 5,498,210 -
Monde Nissin Corporation 423,200 3,546,416 3,546,416 -
Wilcon Depot, Inc. 45,310 946,979 946,979 -
AC Energy Corporation 107,763 472,002 472,002 -
Century Pacific Food, Inc. 150 4,642 4,642 -
*excluding accrued dividend income 3,390,305 255,004,345 255,004,345 -
Government Securities
FXTN 07-62 PHY6972HDE37 6.25% DUE ON 14FEB26 35,000,000 36,000,994 35,168,529 832,465
FXTN 10-64 PIBD1029A644 6.875% DUE 10JAN2029 15,000,000 15,972,424 15,482,580 489,844
FXTN PIBD1032J701 7.5% DUE 200CT2032 10,000,000 11,016,542 10,868,625 147,917
FXTN 25-8 PHY6972FNA49 8.125% DUE 16DEC2035 15,000,000 17,337,356 17,286,575 50,781
FXTN 20-25 PIBD2042K253 8.125% DUE 24N0OV2042 25,000,000 30,283,810 30,075,043 208,767
GB R513 PIID0525H130 2.625% 12AUG2025 9,000,000 8,660,783 8,628,627 32,156
GB PIID0527C159 4.875% DUE 04MAR2027 20,000,000 19,631,700 19,558,575 73,125
FXTN PIID0528B176 6.125% DUE 22AUG2028 50,000,000 50,792,455 50,460,684 331,771
179,000,000 189,696,064 187,529,238 2,166,826
Corporate Securities
CB ALI 4.75% DUE 250CT2025 9,560,000 9,297,466 9,214,215 83,251
CB BDO 2.9% 28JAN2024 11,750,000 11,779,786 11,720,155 59,631
CB BPI 2.8068% 31JAN2024 13,000,000 13,025,363 12,963,535 61,828
CB NLEX CORP 6.6407% DUE 04JUL2025 3,000,000 3,023,437 2,975,292 48,145
CB SMFBFXBD2025 5.05% DUE 10MAR25 10,000,000 9,427,408 9,397,950 29,458
CB SMPH2025 6.0804% DUE ON 01MAR2025 10,000,000 10,105,890 9,903,210 202,680
57,310,000 56,659,350 56,174,357 484,993
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 239,700,305 501,359,759 498,707,940 2,651,819
Other financial assets at amortized cost 3,966,228 3,966,228 3,966,228 -
Other assets (excluding CWT) 52 52 52 -
Total(s) 520,280,361 517,628,542 2,651,819




PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc
Schedule B - Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related
Parties, and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties)
December 31, 2023

Balance at Balance at
Name and designation of beginning Amount Amount end of
debtor of period Additions collected written-off period

NOTHING TO REPORT




PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc.
Schedule C - Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated
during the Consolidation of Financial Statements
December 31, 2023

Name and Balance at Balance at
designation of beginning of Amount Amount Non- end of
debtor period Additions collected written-off Current current period

NOTHING TO REPORT




PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc.
Schedule D - Long-Term Debt
December 31, 2023

Title of issue and type of Amount authorized by Amount shown in the
obligation indenture statement of financial position

NOTHING TO REPORT




PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc.
Schedule E - Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-Term Loans from Related Companies)
As at December 31, 2023

Balance at beginning of
Name of related party period Balance at end of period

NOTHING TO REPORT




PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc.
Schedule F - Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers
December 31, 2023

Name of Issuing entity of Title of issue of Total amount Amount owned

securities guaranteed by each class of guaranteed by person for

the Fund for which this securities and which statement
statement is filed guaranteed outstanding is filed

Nature of
guarantee

NOTHING TO REPORT




PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc.
Schedule G - Capital Stock
December 31, 2023

Number of shares issued Number of shares
Number of and outstanding as reserved for options, Number of Directors,
shares shown under related warrants, conversion  shares held by officers and
Titles of Issue authorized balance sheet caption and other rights related parties employees Others
Redeemable Shares 2,000,000,000 141,343,196 - - 600 141,342,596
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Table 1. Balance Sheet
2023 2022

FINANCIAL DATA O P00 O OO0

A. ASSETS (A1+A2+A3+A4+A5+A6+AT+A8+AI+A10) 520,280 566,314

A1 Current Assets (A.1.1+A1.2+A1.3+A14+A15) 14,954 29,052

A.1.1 Cash and cash equivalents (A.1.1.1 + A1.1.2 + A.1.1.3) 14,954 29,052

A.1.1.1 On hand

A.1.1.2 In domestic banks/entities 14,954 29,052

A.1.1.3 In foreign banks/entities

A.1.2 Trade and Other Receivables (A.1.2.1 + A.1.2.2)

A.1.2.1 Due from domestic entities (A.1.2.1.1+A.1.2.1.2+A.1.2.1.3+A.1.2.1.4)

A.1.2.1.1 Due from customers (trade)

A.1.2.1.2 Due from related parties

A1.2.1.3 Others, specify (A1.2.1.3.1+A1.2.1.3.2)

A.1.2.1.3.1 Interest Receivable

A.1.2.1.3.2 Dividend Receivable

A.1.2.1.4 Allowance for doubtful accounts (negative entry)

A.1.2.2 Due from foreign entities, specify
(A1.321+A1.322+A13.23+A13.24)

A1.2.21

A1.222

A1223

A.1.2.2.4 Allowance for doubtful accounts (negative entry)

A.1.3 Inventories (A.1.3.1 + A1.3.2+A1.33+A1.34+A1.35+A13.6)

A.1.3.1 Raw materials and supplies

A.1.3.2 Goods in process (including unfinished goods, growing crops, unfinished seeds)

A.1.3.3 Finished goods

A.1.3.4 Merchandise/Goods in transit

A.1.3.5 Unbilled Services (in case of service providers)

A.1.3.6 Others, specify (A.1.3.6.1+A.1.3.6.2)

A.1.3.6.1

A13.6.2

A.1.4 Financial Assets other than Cash/Receivables/Equity investments (A.1.4.1 + A1.4.2 + 501,360 532,205
A1.4.3+A1.44+A.1.45+A.1.4.6)

A.1.4.1 Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss - issued by domestic 501,360 532,205
entities (A.1.41.1+A1.412+A1413+A1414+A14.15)

A.1.4.1.1 National Government 189,696 166,733

A.1.4.1.2 Public Financial Institutions 255,005 306,392

A.1.4.1.3 Public Non-Financial Institutions

A.1.4.1.4 Private Financial Institutions 3,607

A.1.4.1.5 Private Non-Financial Institutions 56,659 55473

A.1.4.2 Held to Maturity Investments - issued by domestic entities
(A1421+A1422+A1423+A1424+A14.25)

A.1.4.2.1 National Government

A.1.4.2.2 Public Financial Institutions

A.1.4.2.3 Public Non-Financial Institutions

A.1.4.2.4 Private Financial Institutions

A.1.4.2.5 Private Non-Financial Institutions

NOTE:

This special form is applicable to Investment Companies and Publicly-held Companies (enumerated in Section 17.2 of the Securities Regulation
Code (SRC), except banks and insurance companies). As a supplemental form to PHFS, it shall be used for reporting Consolidated Financial
Statements of Parent corporations and their subsidiaries.

Domestic corporations are those which are incorporated under Philippine laws or branches/subsidiaries of foreign corporations that are licensed
to do business in the Philippines where the center of economic interest or activity is within the Philippines. On the other hand, foreign corporations are
those that are incorporated abroad, including branches of Philippine corporations operating abroad.

Financial Institutions are corporations principally engaged in financial intermediation, facilitating financial intermediation, or auxiliary financial
services. Non-Financial institutions refer to corporations that are primgarily engaged in the production of market goods and non-financial services.
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If these are based on consolidated financial statements, please so indicate in the caption.
Table 1. Balance Sheet _
2023 2022
FINANCIAL DATA T P00) TR PI00T
A.1.4.3 Loans and Receivables - issued by domestic entities: - -
(A1431+A1432+A1433+A1434+A1435)
A.1.4.3.1 _National Government
A.1.4.3.2 Public Financial Institutions
A.1.4.3.3 Public Non-Financial Institutions
A.1.4.3.4 Private Financial Institutions
A.1.4.3.5 Private Non-Financial Institutions
A.1.4.4 Available-for-sale financial assets - issued by domestic entities: - -
(A1441+A1442+A1443+A1444+A1445)
A.1.4.4.1 National Government
A.1.4.4.2 Public Financial Institutions
A.1.44.3 Public Non-Financial Institutions
A1.4.44 Private Financial Institutions
A.1.4.4.5 Private Non-Financial Institutions
A.1.4.5 Financial Assets issued by foreian entities: (A.1.4.5.1+A.1.4.5.2+A.1.4.5.3+A.1.4.5.4) - -
A.1.451 Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss
A.1.4.5.2 Held-to-maturity investments
A.1.453 Loansand Receivables
A.1.454 Available-for-sale financial assets
A.1.4.6 Allowance for decline in market value (negative entry)
A.1.5 Other Current Assets (state separately material items) (A.1.5.1 + A.1.5.2 + A.1.5.3) 3,966 5,005
A.1.5.1 Investment securities at amortized cost - -
A.1.5.2 Other financial assets at amortized cost 3.966 5.005
A15.3
A.2 Property, plant, and equipment (A.2.1 + A2.2+A23+A24+A25+A26+A27+A.2.8)
A.2.1 Land

A.2.2 Building and improvements including leasehold improvement

A.2.3 Machinery and equipment (on hand and in transit)

A.2.4 Transportation/motor vehicles, automotive equipment, autos and trucks, and delivery equipment

A.2.5 Others, specify (A.2.5.1+A.2.52+A.253+A.254+A2.55)

A.2.5.1 Property, or equipment used for education purposes

A.2.5.2 Construction in progress

A253

A254

A.255

A.2.6 Appraisal increase, specify (A.2.6.1 +A.2.6.2+A.2.6.3+A.2.6.4)

A.2.6.1

A26.2

A26.3

A264

A.2.7 Accumulated Depreciation (neqative entry)

A.2.8 Impairment Loss or Reversal (if [oss. negative entrv)

A.3 Investments accounted for using the equity method (A.3.1 + A.3.2 +A3.3)

A.3.1 Equity in domestic subsidiaries/affiliates
\3.2 Equity in forei diaries/affl
A.3.3 Others. specify (A.3.1.1 +A3.21+A33.1+A334)
A.3.3.1
A3.3.2
A3.3.3
A3.34

A.4 Investment Property

A.5 Biological Assets

| A6 Intanaible Assets (A.6.1 +A6.2)

A.6.1 Maior item/s. specify (A6.1.1 +A.6.12+A6.1.3+A6.1.4)

A6.1.1

A6.1.2

A6.1.3

A6.14

A.6.2 Others. specify (A.6.2.1 +A6.22+A.623+A6.24)

A6.2.1

AB22

A6.2.3

A6.2.4

A.7 Assets Classified as Held for Sale

A.8 Assets included in Disposal Groups Classified as Held for Sale
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Control No.:

Form Type: ~ GFFS (rev 2006)

SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES

NAME OF CORPORATION: PAMI HORIZON FUND, INC.

CURRENT ADDRESS: 17F, Philam Life Head Office, Net Lima Building, 5th Avenue Corner 26th street Bonifacio Global City Taguig
TEL. NO.: 521-6300 FAX NO.:

COMPANY TYPE : Mutual Fund PSIC:

If these are based on consolidated financial statements, please so indicate in the caption.

Table 1. Balance Sheet
2023 2022
FINANCIAL DATA TR P000] Th

A.9 Lona-term receivables (net of current portion) (A.9.1 +A9.2+A9.3)

A.9.1. From domestic entities, specify (A.9.1.1 + A.9.1.2 + A9.1.3+A.9.1.4) - -

A9.11

A9.12

A913

A9.14

A.9.2 From foreign entities, specify (A.9.2.1 + A.9.2.2 + A.9.2.3+A.9.2.4)

A921

A9.22

A923

A9.24

A.9.3 Allowance for doubtful accounts. net of current portion (negative entry)

A.10 Other Assets (A.10.1 + A.10.2 + A.10.3 + A.10.4+A.10.5) - 52

A.10.1 Deferred charges - net of amortization

A.10.2 Deferred Income Tax

A.10.3 Advance/Miscellaneous deposits - 52

A.10.4 Others. specify (A.10.4.1+A1042+A 1043 +A104.4)

A10.41

A104.2

A104.3

A104.4

A.10.5 Allowance for write-down of deferred charges/bad accounts (neaative entry)

B. LIABILITIES (B1+B.2+B.3+B.4+B.5 14.354 19.080

Current Liabilities (B11+B.12+B13+B14+B15+B16+B.1.7) 14.354 19.080

B.1.1 Trade and Other Pavables to Domestic Entities

B.1.1.1 Loans/Notes Pavables

B.1.1.2 Trade Pavables 13.647 18.308

B.1.1.3 Payables to Related Parties, specify (B.1.1.3.1 + B.1.1.3.2 + B.1.1.3.3)

B.1.1.3.1 Due To Related Parties 707 772

B.1.1.3.2

B.1.1.3.3

B.1.1.4_Others, specify (B.1.1.4.1 + B.1.1.4.2 + B1.1.4.3)

B.1.14.1

B.1.14.2

B.1.14.3

B.1.2 Trade and Other Payables to Foreign Entities (specify) (B.1.2.1+B.1.2.2+B.1.2.3+B.1.2.4)

B.1.2.1

B.1.2.2

B.1.2.3

B.1.24

3 Provisions

B1
B.1.4 Financial Liabilities (excluding Trade and Other Payables and Provisions)
(8B14.1+B.1.42+B.14.3)

B144

B 15 [ iahilities for Current Tax

B.1.7 Others, specify (If material, state separately; indicate if the item is payable to public/private
or financial/non-financial institutions)

B.1.7.1 Dividends declared and not paid at balance sheet date

B.1.7.2 Acceptances Payable

B.1.7.3 Liabilities under Trust Receipts

B.1.7.4 Portion of Long-term Debt Due within one vear

B.1.7.5 Deferred Income

B.1.7.6 Any other current liability in excess of 5% of Total Current Liabiilities, specify:
(B1761+B1.762+B1763+B.1.7.64)

B1761

B.1.7.6.2

B.1.7.6.3

B.1.7.6.4
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Control No.:

Form Type: _ GFFS (rev 2006)

SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES
NAME OF CORPORATION: PAMI HORIZON FUND, INC.

CURRENT ADDRESS: 17F, Philam Life Head Office, Net Lima Building, 5th Avenue Corner 26th street Bonifacio Global City Taguig
TEL.NO.:  521-6300 FAXNO.:
COMPANY TYPE : Mutual Fund PSIC:

If these are based on consolidated financial statements, please so indicate in the caption.

Table 1. Balance Sheet

2023 2022
FINANCIAL DATA (inP'_OOO) Tin P1000)
B.2 Long-term Debt - Non-current Interest-bearing Liabilities (B.2.1 + B.2.2 + B.2.3+ B.2.4 + B.2.5)
B.2.1 Domestic Public Financial Institutions
B.2.2 Domestic Public Non-Financial Institutions
B.2.3 Domestic Private Financial Institutions
B.2.4 Domestic Private Non-Financial Institutions
B.2.5 Foreign Financial Institutions
B.3 Indebtedness to Affiliates and Related Parties (Non-Current)
B.4 Liabilities Included in the Disposal Groups Classified as Held for Sale
B.5 Other Liabilities (B.5.1 + B.5.2)
B.5.1 Deferred Income Tax
B.5.2 Others, specify (B.5.2.1 + B.5.2.2 +B.5.2.3 + B.5.2.4)
B.5.2.1
B.5.2.2
B.5.2.3
B.5.2.4
C. EQUITY(C.3+C.4+C.5+C.6+C.7+C.8+C.9+C.10) 505,925 547,234
C.1 Authorized Capital Stock (no. of shares, par value and total value; show details)
(C1.1+C.1.2+C.1.3)
C.1.1 Common shares |2,000,000,000 shares at Php1.00 par value 2,000,000 2,000,000
C.1.2 Preferred Shares
C.1.3 Others
C.2 Subscribed Capital Stock (no. of shares, par value and total value) (C.2.1 + C.2.2 + C.2.3) 141,343 159,100
C.2.1 Common shares [(141,343,196 shares in 2023 and 159,100,014 shares in 2022) 141,343 159,100
C.2.2 Preferred Shares
C.2.3 Others
C.3 Paid-up Capital Stock (C.3.1 + C.3.2) 141,343 159,100
C.3.1 Common shares |(141,343,196 shares in 2023 and 159,100,014 shares in 2022) 141,343 159,100
C.3.2 Preferred Shares
C.4 Additional Paid-in Capital / Capital in excess of par value / Paid-in Surplus - 16,179
C.5 Minority Interest
C.6 Others, specify (C.6.1+C.6.2+C.6.3+C.6.4+C.6.5) - -
C.6.1 Reserve for fluctuation on available-for-sale-financial assets - -
C.6.2
C.6.3
C6.4
C.6.5
C.7 Appraisal Surplus/Revaluation Increment in Property/Revaluation Surplus
C.8 Retained Earnings (C.8.1 + C.8.2) 364,582 371,955
C.8.1 Appropriated
C.8.2 Unappropriated 364,582 371,955
C.9 Head / Home Office Account (for Foreign Branches only)
C.10 Cost of Stocks Held in Treasury (negative entry)
D. TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (B + C) 520,280 566,314
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Control No.:

Form Type:  PHFS (rev 2006)

SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES

NAME OF CORPORATION: PAMI HORIZON FUND, INC.

CURRENT ADDRESS: 17F, Philam Life Head Office, Net Lima Building, 5th Avenue Corner 26th street Bonifacio Global City Taguig
TEL. NO.: 521-6300 FAXNO.:

COMPANY TYPE : Mutual Fund PSIC:

If these are based on consolidated financial statements, please so indicate in the caption.

Table 2. Income Statement

2023 2022 2021
FINANCIAL DATA (in P'000) (in P'000) (in P'000)
A. REVENUE / INCOME (A1 +A.2 + A3) 33,759 (28,981) 2,806

A.1 Net Sales or Revenue / Receipts from Operations (manufacturing,
mining, utilities, trade, services, efc.) (from Primary Activity)

A.2 Share in the Profit or Loss of Associates and Joint Ventures accounted for

A.3 Other Revenue (A.3.1 +A32+A3.3+A34+A3.5) 33,759 (28,981) 2,806

A.3.1 Rental Income from Land and Buildings

A.3.2 Receipts from Sale of Merchandise (trading) (from Secondary Activity)

A.3.3 Sale of Real Estate or other Property and Equipment

A.3.4 Royalties, Franchise Fees, Copyrights (books, films, records, etc.)

A.3.5 Others, specify (A.3.5.1 + A3.52+A353+A354+A355+ 33,759 (28,981) 2,806
A3R6+A357+A3588)

A.3.5.1 Fair value gains 22822 (36,495) (3,998)
A.3.5.2 Interest income 997 662 229
A.3.5.3 Dividend income 6,590 6,852 6,575
A35.4
A3.5.5
A.3.5.6
A35.7
A3.5.8

A.4 Other Income (non-operating) (A.4.1 + A4.2+A4.3+A4.4)

A.4.1 Interest Income

A.4.2 Dividend Income

A.4.3 Gain / (Loss) from selling of Assets, specify
(A431+A432+AA433+A434)

A.4.3.1 Miscellaneous 3,350

A4.3.2

A433

A4.34

A.4.4 Others, specify
(A441+A442+A443+A444)

A.4.4.1 Gain/(Loss) on Foreign Exchange

A.4.4.2 Other Income

A443

Ad44

B. COST OF GOODS SOLD (B.1+B.2 +B.3)

B.1 Cost of Goods Manufactured (B.1.1 + B.1.2+B.1.3 +B.1.4 + B.1.5)

B.1.1 Direct Material Used

B.1.2 Direct Labor

B.1.3 Other Manufacturing Cost / Overhead

B.1.4 Goods in Process, Beginning

B.1.5 Goods in Process, End (negative entry)

B.2 Finished Goods, Beginning

B.3 Finished Goods, End (negative entry)

C. COST OF SALES (C.1+C.2 +C.3)

C.1 Purchases

C.2 Merchandise Inventory, Beginning

C.3 Merchandise Inventory, End (negative entry)

D. GROSS PROFIT (A-B - C) 33,759 (28,981) 2,806

NOTE: Pursuant to SRC Rule 68.1 (as amended in Nov. 2005), for fiscal years ending December 31, 2005 up to November 30, 2006, a
comparative format of only two (2) years may be filed to give temporary relief for covered companies as the more complex PFRSs will be
applied for the first time in these year end periods. After these first time applications, the requirement of three (3) year comparatives shall
resume for year end reports beginning December 31, 2006 and onma@e 5




SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES

NAME OF CORPORATION:

CURRENT ADDRESS:
TEL. NO.:
COMPANY TYPE :

PAMI HORIZON FUND, INC.

Control No.:
Form Type:

PHFS (rev 2006)

17F, Philam Life Head Office, Net Lima Building, 5th Avenue Corner 26th street Bonifacio Global City Taguig

521-6300

Mutual Fund

FAXNO.:

PSIC:

If these are based on consolidated financial statements, please so indicate in the caption.

Table 2. Income Statement

FINANCIAL DATA

2023

2022

2021

(in P1000)

(in P1000)

(in P1000)

E.

OPERATING EXPENSES (E.1+E.2+E.3+E.4)

10,310

13,256

14,440

E.1 Selling or Marketing Expenses

E.2 Administrative Expenses

E.3 General Expenses

10,310

13,256

14,440

E.4 Other Expenses, specify (E4.1+E42+E43+E44+E45+E46+E4T7

+E48+E4.9+E4.10)

E.4.1 Fair value losses, net

E4.2

E4.3

E4.4

E4.5

E.4.6

EA47

E4.8

E4.9

E.4.10

FINANCE COSTS (F.1+F.2+F.3+F.4 +F.5)

F.1 Interest on Short-Term Promissory Notes

F.2 Interest on Long-Term Promissory Notes

F.3 Interest on bonds, mortgages and other long-term loans

F.4 Amortization

F.5 Otherinterests, specify (F.5.1+F.5.2+F.5.3+F.54+F.5.5)

F.5.1

F.5.2

F.5.3

F.5.4

F.5.5

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX (D -E - F)

23,449

(42,237)

(11,634)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (negative entry)

2,888

2,662

2,956

INCOME(LOSS) AFTER TAX

20,561

(44,899)

(14,590)

S EE

Amount of (i) Post-Tax Profit or Loss of Discontinued Operations; and (ii)
Post-Tax Gain or Loss Recognized on theMeasurement of Fair Value less
Cost to Sell or on the Disposal of the Assets or Disposal Group(s)
constituting the Discontinued Operation (if any)

J.1 Other Comprehensive Income

J.2

PROFIT OR LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO MINORITY INTEREST

-

PROFIT OR LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

20,561

(44,899)

(14,590)

. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

0.1400

(0.2700)

(0.0800)

M.1 Basic

0.1400

(0.2700)

(0.0800)

M.2 Diluted
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Control No.:
Form Type: __ PHFS (rev 2006)
SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES

NAME OF CORPORATION: PAMI HORIZON FUND, INC.

CURRENT ADDRESS: 17F, Philam Life Head Office, Net Lima Building, 5th Avenue Corner 26th street Bonifacio Global City Taguig
TEL.NO.:  521-6300 FAXNO.:
COMPANY TYPE Mutual Fund PSIC:
If these are based on consolidated financial statements, please so indicate in the caption.
Table 3. Cash Flow Statements
2023 2022 2021
FINANCIAL DATA (in P'000 ) (in P'000) (in P'000)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income (Loss) Before Tax and Extraordinary Items 23,449 (42,237) (11.634)
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation
Amortization, specify Premium amortization on Available-for-sale securities -
Others. specify: Unrealized fair value gains (losses), net (22,822) 36,495 3,998
Interest income (997) (662) (229)
Interest received 997 662 229
Dividend income (6,590) (6,852) (6,575)
Dividend received 7,365 6,042 6,581
Write-down of Property, Plant, and Equipment
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease (Increase) in:
Receivables
Inventories
Other Current Assets
Others. specify: Loans and receivables -
Available for sale - B R
Financial Assets at FV through P/L 53,668 64,645 47,882
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost - - -
Other Financial Assets at amortized cost 263 (3,392) 2,405
Other Assets 52 - 696
Held to Maturity - -
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts pavable and accrued expenses (4.660) 1.758 1.486
Due to Fund Manager (65) (119) (467)
Others. specify: Income taxes paid (2,888) (2,662) (2,956)
A. Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities (sum of above rows) 47,112 53,679 41,416
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Increase) Decrease in Long-Term Receivables
(Increase) Decrease in Investment
Reductions/(Additions) to Property, Plant, and Equipment
Others, specify__Purchase of FA at FVTPL
Purchase of AFS securities
Proceeds from disposal of FA at FVTPL
Proceeds from disposal of AFS securities
B. Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities (sum of above rows) -
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from:
Loans
Long-term Debt
Issuance of Securities 3.759 6.860 11,138
Others, specify:
Payments of:
(Loans)
(Long-term Debt)
(Payments for shares redeemed) (65,629) (51,909) (49,958)
Others, specify (negative entry):
C. Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities (sum of above rows) (61.870) (45.049) (38.820)
INET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A +B +C) (14,098) 8,630 2,596
han h Equivalen
Beginning of vear 29,052 20,422 17.826
End of vear 14,954 29,052 20,422
NOTE: Pursuant to SRC Rule 68.1 (as amended in Nov. 2005), for fiscal years ending December 31, 2005 up to November 30, 2006, a comparative format of only two (2) years may
be filed to give temporary relief for covered companies as the more complex PFRSs will be applied for the first time in these year end periods. After these first time applications,
the requirement of three (3) year comparatives shall resume for year end reports beginning December 31, 2006 and onwards.
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Form Type:

SPECIAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PUBLICLY-HELD AND INVESTMENT COMPANIES
NAME OF CORPORATION: PAMI HORIZON FUND, INC.
CURRENT ADDRESS: 17F, Philam Life Head Office, Net Lima Building, 5th Avenue Corner 26th street Bonifacio Global City
TEL. NO.: 521-6300 FAX NO.:
COMPANY TYPE : Mutual Fund PSIC:
If these are based on lidated fi ial please so indicate in the caption.
Table 4. St; of Changes in Equity

(Amount in P'000)

Reserve for
FINANCIAL DATA Capital Stock | Addional Paid-| - Retained | fluctuation on TOTAL
in Capital Earnings available-for-sale

securities

A Balance, January, 2021 182,320 17,831 490,441 - 690,592
A1 Carrection of Error(s) -
A2 Changes in Accounting Policy -

B R i Ralance -

C Surplus -
C.1 Surplus (Deficit) on Revaluation of Properties -
C.2 Surplus (Deficit) on Revaluation of -
C.3 Currency Translation Differences -
C4 Other Surplus (specify) -

ca1

C42 -
c43 -
C44 -

C45 -
D. Net Income (Loss) for the Period (14,590) (14,590)
IE_Divi ( tive entry) -
F_A iation for (specifv) -
F.1_Reclassification to share premium =

G j ock -
G.1 Common Stock 3.004 8,134 11,138
G.2 Preferred Stock -
G.3 Redemption of Capital Stock (13,674) (8,134) (28,151) 49,958
G.4 Others 335 (335) -
H. Balance, Dy ber 2021, as restated 171,650 18,166 447,366 - 637,182
H.1 Correction of Error (s) -
H.2 Chanaes in Accounting Policy -
|. Restated Balance 171,650 18,166 447,366 - 637,182
J. Surplus -
J.1 Surplus (Deficit) on Revaluation of Properties -

J.2 Surplus (Deficit) on Revaluation of

ion Differences
J4 Other Surplus (specifv)
J41

J42
J43
J44
J45 -
K. Net Income (Loss) for the Period (44.898) (44,898)
L. Dividends (negative entry) -
M. Appropriation for (specify) B

N. Issuance of Capital Stock -

N.1 Common Stock 1,953 4,907 6,860
N 2 Preferred Stack -
N.3 Others (14,503) (6,894) (30,512) (51,909)

0. Balance, 2022 159,100 16,179 371,956 - 547,235

P. Surplus
P.1 Surplus (Deficit) on Revaluation of Properties
P.2 Surplus (Deficit) on Revaluation of
P.3 Currency Translation Differences
P.4 Other Surplus (specify)
P.4.1
P.4.2
P.4.3
P.4.4
P.4.5
Q. Net Income (Loss) for the Period 20,561 20,561
R. Dividends (negative entry)
IS._Appropriation for (specify)
S.1

S2

S3

S4

S5

T. Issuance of Capital Stock
T.1 Common Stock 1,068 2,692 3,760
T.2 Preferred Stock
T.3 Others (18,825) (18,871) (27,934) (65,630)

U. Balance, 2023 141,343 - 364,583 - 505,926

Table 4a. Statement of Recognized Gains and Losses

(Amount in P'000)
FINANCIAL DATA 2023 2022 2021

A. Surplus (Deficit) on Revaluation of Properties

B. Surplus (Deficit) on Revaluation of Investments

C Exchange Differences on Translation of the Financial Statements of Foreign Entities

D Net Gains (Losses) not recognized in the Income Statement

E. Net Income for the Period 20,561 (44,899) (14,590)

Total R ized Gains (Losses) (A+B+C+D +E) 20,561 (44,899) (14,590)

Effect of Changes in Accounting Policy

NOTE: Pursuant to SRC Rule 68.1 (as amended in Nov. 2005), for fiscal years ending December 31, 2005 up to N¢ ber 30, 2006, a parative format of only
two (2) years may be filed to give temporary relief for covered companies as the more complex PFRSs will be applied for the first time in these year end
periods. After these first time applications, the requirement of three (3) year comparatives shall resume for year end reports beginning December 31, 2006 and
onwards.
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PAMI HORIZON FUND, INC.
ATTACHMENT TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in thousands of Philippine Peso)

SCHEDULE A
Total investment in a single enterprise to NAV
TOTAL ASSETS- January 1 to December 31, 2023 520,280
NET ASSET VALUE- January 1 to December 31, 2023 505,925
. Percentage to
. Total Market Percentage Percentage to Outs.tfandmg Outstanding
Security Name Shares/Par to Total Securities of an "
Value Net Asset Value Securities of an
Asset Investee Co.
Investee Co.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS:
CORPORATE BONDS:
CB ALI 4.75% DUE 250CT2025 9,560 9,297 1.79% 1.84% 7,000,000 0.14%
CB BDO 2.9% 28JAN2024 11,750 11,780 2.26% 2.33% 52,700,000 0.02%
CB BPI 2.8068% 31JAN2024 13,000 13,025 2.50% 2.57% 27,000,000 0.05%
CB NLEX CORP 6.6407% DUE 04JUL2025 3,000 3,023 0.58% 0.60% 4,000,000 0.08%
CB SMFBFXBD2025 5.05% DUE 10MAR25 10,000 9,427 1.81% 1.86% 8,000,000 0.13%
CB SMPH2025 6.0804% DUE ON 01MAR2025 10,000 10,106 1.94% 2.00% 10,000,000 0.10%
TOTAL BONDS 56,659
GOVERNMENT SECURITIES
FXTN 07-62 PHY6972HDE37 6.25% DUE ON 14FEB26 35,000 36,001 6.92% 7.12% 232,791,000 0.02%
FXTN 10-64 PIBD1029A644 6.875% DUE 10JAN2029 15,000 15,972 3.07% 3.16% 355,000,000 0.00%
FXTN PIBD1032J701 7.5% DUE 200CT2032 10,000 11,017 2.12% 2.18% 35,000,000 0.03%
FXTN 25-8 PHY6972FNA49 8.125% DUE 16DEC2035 15,000 17,337 3.33% 3.43% 211,010,040 0.01%
FXTN 20-25 PIBD2042K253 8.125% DUE 24NOV2042 25,000 30,284 5.82% 5.99% 101,597,000 0.02%
GB R513 PIID0525H130 2.625% 12AUG2025 9,000 8,661 1.66% 1.71% 516,340,790 0.00%
GB PIID0527C159 4.875% DUE 04MAR2027 20,000 19,632 3.77% 3.88% 457,798,870 0.00%
FXTN PIID0528B176 6.125% DUE 22AUG2028 50,000 50,792 9.76% 10.04% 283,763,658 0.02%
TOTAL GOVERNMENT SECURITIES 189,696
EQUITIES:
BDO UNIBANK. INC - Common Shares 180 23,532 4.52% 4.65% 682,779,107 0.00%
BANK OF THE PHIL ISLANDS - Common Shares 205 21,265 4.09% 4.20% 545,379,173 0.00%
METROPOLITAN BANK & TRUST COMPANY - Common Shares 182 9,314 1.79% 1.84% 240,611,732 0.00%
AYALA CORPORATION - Common Shares 29 20,002 3.84% 3.95% 439,753,368 0.00%
ABOITIZ EQUITY VENTURES, INC. - Common Shares 231 10,300 1.98% 2.04% 277,898,406 0.00%
GT CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC - Common Shares 9 5,498 1.06% 1.09% 129,601,321 0.00%
JG SUMMIT HOLDINGS, INC. - Common Shares 232 8,846 1.70% 1.75% 304,599,838 0.00%
SM INVESTMENTS CORPORATION - Common Shares 43 37,112 7.13% 7.34% 1,085,767,754 0.00%
AC Energy Corporation - Common Shares 108 472 0.09% 0.09% 169,819,250 0.00%
MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY "A" - Common Shares 25 9,903 1.90% 1.96% 440,695,594 0.00%
CENTURY PACIFIC FOOD, INC. 0 5 0.00% 0.00% 108,570,226 0.00%
JOLLIBEE FOODS CORPORATION - Common Shares 47 11,736 2.26% 2.32% 283,113,571 0.00%
Monde Nissin Corporation - Common Shares 423 3,546 0.68% 0.70% 155,608,176 0.00%
UNIVERSAL ROBINA CORPORATION - Common Shares 82 9,751 1.87% 1.93% 265,210,118 0.00%
AYALA LAND, INC. - Common Shares 609 20,986 4.03% 4.15% 514,010,845 0.00%
SM PRIME HOLDINGS, INC.- Common Shares 854 28,113 5.40% 5.56% 971,786,147 0.00%
Wilcon Depot, Inc. 45 947 0.18% 0.19% 95,113,599 0.00%
GLOBE TELECOM, INC. - Common Shares 4 7,375 1.42% 1.46% 248,505,885 0.00%
PLDT COMPANY - Common Shares 6 7,789 1.50% 1.54% 275,687,169 0.00%
INT'L CONTAINER TRMNL SRVCS, INC. - Common Shares 75 18,510 3.56% 3.66% 504,745,969 0.00%
TOTAL EQUITIES 255,004
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 501,360
INVESTMENT IN SEMI LIQUID/ LIQUID INVESTMENTS:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 14,954 2.87% 2.96%
GOVERNMENT SECURITIES 189,696 36.46% 37.49%
TOTAL 204,650 39.33% 40.45%
NO BORROWINGS FOR THE PERIOD
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
AVERAGE DAILY NET ASSET VALUE - January 1 to December 31, 2023 523,938

PERCENTAGE

TO NET ASSET

NATURE OF EXPENSES AMOUNT VALUE

Management fees 9,568 1.83%
Fees and other charges 685 0.13%
Taxes and licenses 57 0.01%
Miscellaneous - 0.00%
TOTAL 10,310




PAMI HORIZON FUND, INC.
ATTACHMENT TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in thousands of Philippine Peso)

SCHEDULE A
Total investment in a single enterprise to NAV
TOTAL ASSETS- January 1 to December 31, 2022 566,314
NET ASSET VALUE- January 1 to December 31, 2022 547,234
Percentage Percentage to
Security Name Shares/Par Total Market to Total Net Asset
Value
Asset Value
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS:
CORPORATE BONDS:
CB ALI 4.75% DUE 250CT2025 9,560 9,219 1.63% 1.68%
CB BDO 2.9% 28JAN2024 11,750 11,230 1.98% 2.05%
CB BPI 2.8068% 31JAN2024 13,000 12,633 2.23% 2.31%
CB NLEX CORP 6.6407% DUE 04JUL2025 3,000 3,007 0.53% 0.55%
CB SMFBFXBD2025 5.05% DUE 10MAR25 10,000 9,443 1.67% 1.73%
CB SMPH2025 6.0804% DUE ON 01MAR2025 10,000 9,942 1.76% 1.82%
TOTAL BONDS 55,473
GOVERNMENT SECURITIES
FXTN 7-62 PHY6972HDE37 6.25% DUE ON 14FEB26 35,000 35,758 6.31% 6.53%
FXTN 10-64 PIBD1029A644 6.875% DUE 10JAN2029 15,000 15,786 2.79% 2.88%
FXTN PIBD1032J701 7.5% DUE 200CT2032 10,000 10,472 1.85% 1.91%
FXTN 25-8 PHY6972FNA49 8.125% DUE 16DEC2035 15,000 15,970 2.82% 2.92%
GB R3-11 PHY6972HJAS50 2.375% DUE 09MAR2024 17,500 16,959 2.99% 3.10%
GB R512 PHY6972HDG84 6.25% DUE ON 12MAR2024 43,000 43,248 7.64% 7.90%
GB R513 PIID0525H130 2.625% 12AUG2025 10,000 9,365 1.65% 1.71%
GB PIID0527C159 4.875% DUE 04MAR2027 20,000 19,175 3.39% 3.50%
TOTAL GOVERNMENT SECURITIES 166,733
EQUITIES:
BDO UNIBANK. INC - Common Shares 233 24,667 4.36% 4.51%
BANK OF THE PHIL ISLANDS - Common Shares 283 28,830 5.09% 5.27%
METROPOLITAN BANK & TRUST COMPANY - Common Shares 188 10,171 1.80% 1.86%
AYALA CORPORATION - Common Shares 34 23,485 4.15% 4.29%
ABOITIZ EQUITY VENTURES, INC. - Common Shares 231 13,326 2.35% 2.44%
GT CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC - Common Shares 17 7,534 1.33% 1.38%
JG SUMMIT HOLDINGS, INC. - Common Shares 212 10,658 1.88% 1.95%
SM INVESTMENTS CORPORATION - Common Shares 49 44,478 7.85% 8.13%
MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY "A" - Common Shares 25 7,416 1.31% 1.36%
CENTURY PACIFIC FOOD, INC. 119 3,074 0.54% 0.56%
JOLLIBEE FOODS CORPORATION - Common Shares 47 10,737 1.90% 1.96%
UNIVERSAL ROBINA CORPORATION - Common Shares 118 16,017 2.83% 2.93%
AYALA LAND, INC. - Common Shares 759 23,383 4.13% 4.27%
SM PRIME HOLDINGS, INC.- Common Shares 1,036 36,789 6.50% 6.72%
'Wilcon Depot, Inc. 232 6,840 1.21% 1.25%
GLOBE TELECOM, INC. - Common Shares 5 10,133 1.79% 1.85%
PLDT COMPANY - Common Shares 5 7,099 1.25% 1.30%
INT'L CONTAINER TRMNL SRVCS, INC. - Common Shares 109 21,756 3.84% 3.98%
TOTAL EQUITIES 306,392
UNIT INVESTMENT TRUST FUND
Investment in PHILAM MANAGED INCOME FUND, INC. 2,733 3,606 0.64% 0.66%
TOTAL FUND-OF-FUNDS 3,606
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS: 532,205
INVESTMENT IN SEMI LIQUID/ LIQUID INVESTMENTS:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 29,052 5.13% 5.31%
GOVERNMENT SECURITIES 166,733 29.44% 30.47%
NO BORROWINGS FOR THE PERIOD
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
AVERAGE DAILY NET ASSET VALUE - January 1 to December 31, 2022 576,826
1
PERCENTAGE
TO NET ASSET
NATURE OF EXPENSES AMOUNT VALUE
Management fees 10,578 1.83%
Fees and other charges 1,528 0.26%
Taxes and licenses 287 0.05%
Miscellaneous 863 0.15%
TOTAL 13,256




PAMI HORIZON FUND, INC.
Financial Statement Ratios

January 1 to December 31, 2023

January 1 to December 31, 2022

Current Asset
Current Liabilities
Current /Liquidity Ratio

Total Liabilities
Total Equity
Debt-to-Equity Ratio

Total Assets
Total Equity
Asset-to-Equity Ratio

Earnings Before Income Tax
Interest Expense
Interest Rate Coverage Ratio

Net Income
Total Equity
Return on Equity

520,280 566,314
14,355 19,080
36.24 29.68
14,355 19,080
505,925 547,234
0.0284 0.0349
520,280 566,314
505,925 547,234
1.03 1.03
23,449 (42,236)
n.a. n.a.
20,561 (44,898)
505,925 547,234
0.0406 (0.0820)
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ARTICLE 1: CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY

The Board of Directors of the PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc. (the “Fund”), working closely with the
Fund’'s Investment Manager, and in compliance with the recommendations by the Securities
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)," hereby commit itself to the principles and best practices
contained in this Manual (“Manual’), and acknowledge that the same shall guide the attainment
of the Fund’s corporate goals.

This Manual shall institutionalize the principles of good corporate governance in the entire
organization.

The Board of Directors and Shareholders believe that corporate governance is a necessary
component of what constitutes sound strategic business management and will, therefore,
undertake every effort necessary to create awareness within the organization as soon as
possible. Compliance with the principles of good corporate governance starts with the Board of
Directors.

ARTICLE 2: DEFINITION OF TERMS

1. Affiliate — an entity that holds directly or indirectly at least ten percent (10%) or more of the
total number of issued shares in the Fund, Fund Manager, or vice versa, or have a common
Shareholder that holds directly or indirectly 10% or more of the total number of the issued
share capital of the Fund or the Fund Manager.

2. Annual Corporate Governance Report — or “ACGR” is a comprehensive report containing
all of the Fund’s pertinent corporate governance information.

3. Audio Conferencing — a conference in which people at different locations speak to each
other via telephone or Internet connections.

4. Corporate Governance — the system of stewardship and control to guide organizations in
fulfilling their long-term economic, moral, legal and social obligations thereby creating
sustainable value for its Shareholders, Stakeholders, and the nation.

Corporate governance is a system of direction, feedback and control using regulations,
performance standards and ethical guidelines to hold the Board of Directors and Senior
Management accountable for ensuring ethical behavior and reconciling long-term customer
satisfaction with Shareholder value to the benefit of all Stakeholders and the society.

5. Board of Directors — or the “Board” is the governing body elected by the Shareholders that
exercises the corporate powers of the Fund, conducts all its business, and controls its
properties.

6. Board Risk Oversight Committee — or the “BRO” is a committee responsible for the
oversight of the Fund’s Enterprise Risk Management System to ensure its functionality and
effectiveness.

7. Computer Conferencing — is teleconferencing supported by one or more computers.
8. Enterprise Risk Management — or “ERM” is a process, effected by the Board of Directors,

Management and other personnel, applied in strategy setting and across the enterprise that
is designed to identify potential events that may affect the entity, manage risks to be within

T SEC Memorandum Circular No. 24; series of 2019 on the Manual of Corporate Governance for Public Companies
and Registered Issuers
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its risk appetite, and provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of entity
objectives. ERM is integral to an effective corporate governance process and the
achievement of a company's value creation objectives.

9. Management — a group of Executives given the authority by the Board of Directors to
implement the policies it has laid down in the conduct of the business of the Fund;

10. Manual on Corporate Governance — or “MCG” is a reference document containing all the
policies, programs, and procedures that would ensure transparency and better protection of
Shareholders and Stakeholders.

11. Independent Director — a person who is independent of Management and the controlling
Shareholder, and is free from any business or other relationship which could, or could
reasonably be perceived to, materially interfere with his exercise of independent judgment in
carrying out his responsibilities as a Director;

12. Executive Director — or “ED” is a Director who has executive responsibility of day-to-day
operations of a part or the whole of the Fund;

13. Non-executive Director — or “NED” is a Director who has no executive responsibility and
does not perform any work related to the day-to-day operations of the Fund;

14. Internal control — a process designed and effected by the Board of Directors, Senior
Management, and all levels of personnel to provide reasonable assurance on the
achievement of objectives through efficient and effective operations; reliable, complete and
timely financial and management of corporate information; and compliance with applicable
laws, regulations and the organization’s policies and procedures.

15. Independent Oversight Entity or Committee — or “|IOE” is an impartial entity or committee
tasked to monitor the transactions and functions carried out by the Fund Manager.?

16. Related parties — covers the Fund’s Directors, Officers, substantial Shareholders and their
spouses and relatives within the fourth civil degree of consanguinity or affinity, legitimate or
common-law, and other persons if these persons have control, joint control or Significant
Influence over the Fund. It also covers the Fund’'s parent, subsidiary, fellow subsidiary,
associate, affiliate, joint venture or an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced or managed by a person who is a related party.

17. Related Party Transactions — or “RPT” is a transfer of resources, services or obligations
between a reporting entity and related party, regardless of whether a price is charged. It
shall be interpreted broadly to include not only transactions that are entered into with related
parties, but also outstanding transactions that are entered with an unrelated party that
subsequently becomes a related party;

18. Remote Communication — the transfer of data between two or more devices not located at
the same site®.

19. Significant Influence — the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the Fund but has no control or joint control of those policies

2 SEC Memorandum Circular No. 21; series of 2019 on the Rules on the Appointment of Independent Oversight
Entity, Independent Net Asset Value Calculation, Qualifications or Key Officers of Fund Managers, and Liquidation of
Assets and Winding Up of Investment Companies

3 SEC Memorandum Circular No. 6; series of 2020 on the Guidelines on the Attendance and Patrticipation of Directors,
Trustees, Stockholders, Members, and Other Persons of Corporations in Regular and Special Meetings Through
Teleconferencing, Video Conferencing and Other Remote or Electronic Means of Communication
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20. Stakeholders — any individual, organization or society at large who can either affect and/or
be affected by the Fund’s strategies, policies, business decisions and operations, in general.
This includes, among others, non-proprietary certificate holders, customers, creditors,
employees, suppliers, investors, as well as the government and the community in which the
Fund operates.

21. Teleconferencing — the holding of a conference among people remote from one another by
means of telecommunication devices such as telephone or computer terminals. It refers to
an interactive group communication between three (3) or more people in two (2) or more
locations through an electronic medium. In general terms, teleconferencing can bring people
together under one roof even though they are separated by hundred miles.

22. Videoconferencing — the holding of a conference among people in remote locations by
means of transmitted audio and video signals.

ARTICLE 3: RULES OF INTERPRETATION

All references to the masculine gender in the salient provisions of this Manual shall likewise
cover the feminine gender.

All doubts or questions that may arise in the interpretation or application of this Manual shall be
resolved in favor of promoting transparency, accountability and fairness to the Shareholders and
investors of the Fund.

ARTICLE 4: BOARD GOVERNANCE

The Board is primarily responsible for the governance of the Fund. Corollary to setting the
policies for the accomplishment of the corporate objectives, it shall provide an independent
check on Management. The Board shall conduct itself with utmost honesty and integrity in the
discharge of its duties, functions, and responsibilities.

It must ensure the Fund’s ability to satisfy the needs of its customers, sustain its leadership and
competitiveness, and uphold its reputation in order to maintain the Fund’s long-term success
and viability as a business entity. Its mandate consists of setting the strategic business
directions of the Fund, appointing its Senior Executive Officers, approving all major strategies
and policies, overseeing all major risk-taking activities, monitoring the financial results, and
generating a reasonable investment return to Shareholders.

Directors shall act on a fully informed basis, in good faith, with due diligence and care, and in
the best interest of the Fund and all Shareholders and all other Stakeholders.

A) Composition of the Board

The Board shall be composed of Directors with a collective working knowledge, experience or
expertise that is relevant to the Fund’s industry/sector. The Board shall always ensure that it has
an appropriate mix of competence and expertise and that its members remain qualified for their
positions individually and collectively, to enable it to fulfill its roles and responsibilities and
respond to the needs of the organization based on the evolving business environment and
strategic direction
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The Fund as covered by this Manual shall have at least two (2) IDs or such number of
Independent Directors that constitutes twenty percent (20%) of the members of the Board,
whichever is lesser, but in no case less than two (2).

The membership of the Board may be a combination of EDs and NEDs, which include IDs, in
order that no Director or small group of Directors can dominate the decision-making process.

NEDs shall not concurrently serve as Directors to more than ten (10) public companies and/or
registered issuers. However, the maximum concurrent directorships shall be five (5) public
companies and/or registered issuers if the NED also sits in at least three (3) publicly-listed
companies. NEDs shall possess such qualifications and stature that would enable them to
effectively participate in the deliberations of the Board.

There shall be diversity in the composition of the Board in order to avoid groupthink and ensure
that optimal decision-making is achieved and the efficiency of collective problem solving within
such group

B) The Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer / President

The Board shall be headed by a competent and qualified Chairperson (“Chair”).

The roles of Chair and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) shall, as much as practicable, be
separate to foster an appropriate balance of power, increased accountability, and better
capacity for independent decision-making by the Board. A clear delineation of functions shall be
made between the Chair and CEO upon their election.

If the positions of Chair and CEO are unified, the proper checks and balances shall be laid down
to ensure that the Board gets the benefit of independent views and perspectives.

The Board shall designate a lead director among the IDs if the Chairperson of the Board is not
independent, including if the positions of the Chair and CEO or its equivalent are held by one (1)
person.

The duties and responsibilities of the Chair in relation to the Board may include, among others,
the following:

1. Makes certain that the meeting’s agenda focuses on strategic matters, including the overall
risks appetite of the Fund, taking into account the developments in the business and
regulatory environments, key governance concerns, and contentious issues that will
significantly affect operations;

2. Guarantees that the Board receives accurate, timely, relevant, insightful, concise, and clear
information to enable it to make sound decisions;

3. Facilitates discussions on key issues by fostering an environment conducive for constructive
debate and leveraging on the skills and expertise of individual Directors;

4. Ensures that the Board sufficiently challenges and inquires on reports submitted and
representations made by Management;

5. Assures the conduct of proper orientation for first-time Directors and continuing training
opportunities for all Directors; and

6. Makes sure that performance of the Board is evaluated at least once a year and discussed
or followed up on if necessary.
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C) Qualifications of Directors

In addition to the qualifications for membership in the Board provided for in the Revised
Corporation Code (“RCC”)*, the Securities Regulation Code (“SRC”), and other relevant laws, a
Director must have the following additional qualifications:

1. Holds at least PhP 5,000.00 worth of shares at cost of stock of the Fund;

2. At least twenty-five (25) years old;

3. At least a college graduate or its equivalent or adequate competence and understanding of
the fundamentals of doing business or membership in good standing in relevant industry,
and membership in business or professional organizations or sufficient experience and

competence in managing a business to substitute for such formal education;

4. Possesses integrity, probity and shall be diligent and assiduous in the performance of his
functions;

5. Has adequate physical health and mental stamina to withstand the rigors of his
responsibilities;

6. Has no potential conflict of time and attention due to competing Officerships, Directorships,
or memberships in other companies/Funds;

7. Has attended or will attend an accredited corporate governance seminar, as required by the
SEC;

8. Possesses no disqualifications as provided for in the RCC, Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
(“BSP”) Circulars, and SEC rules and regulations;

9. Has practical understanding of the business of the Fund;

10. A member in good standing in relevant industry, business, or professional organizations;
and

11. Has previous business experience.

D) Qualifications of Independent Directors

The IDs shall possess a good general understanding of the industry that the Fund engages in,
qualifications and stature that would enable them to effectively and objectively participate in the
deliberations of the Board.

An ID refers to a person who:

1. Shall not or has not been a Senior Officer or employee of the Fund unless there has been a
change in the controlling ownership therein;

2. lIs not, and has not been in the two (2) years immediately preceding the election, a director
of the Fund; a Director, Officer, employee of the Fund's subsidiaries, associates, affiliates or
related companies; or a director, Officer, employee of the Fund's substantial Shareholders
and its related companies;

4 Republic Act No. 11232 or the Revised Corporation Code of 2018

6|Page
Property of PAMI HORIZON FUND, INC.
This document and the information herein are proprietary and for the internal use of the PAMI Horizon Fund, Inc. (the “Fund”). No part of this
document shall be reproduced, published, transmitted, or distributed in any form or by any means, or stated in any information storage or
retrieval system of any nature, nor should the materials be disclosed in any manner to third parties without prior express written authorization
of the Fund.



3. Has not been appointed in the Fund, its subsidiaries, associates, affiliates or related
companies as Chairperson "Emeritus," "Ex-Officio" Director/Officer of any Advisory Board,
or otherwise appointed in a capacity to assist the Board in the performance of its duties and
responsibilities within two (2) years immediately preceding his election;

4. Is not an owner of more than two percent (2%) of the outstanding shares of the Fund, its
subsidiaries, associates, affiliates, or related companies;

5. Is not a relative of a director, Officer, or substantial Shareholder of the Fund or any of its
related companies or of any of its substantial Shareholders;

6. For this purpose, relatives include spouse, parent, child, brother, sister and the spouse of
such child, brother or sister; and

7. lIs not acting as a nominee or representative of any Director of the Fund or any of its Related
Companies.

Related companies, as used in this section, refer to:

1. The Fund's holding/parent company;

2. lIts subsidiaries; and

3. Subsidiaries of its holding/parent company.

IDs shall serve for a maximum cumulative term of nine (9) years. After which, the ID shall be
perpetually barred from reelection as such, but may continue to qualify for nomination and
election as a non-independent director.

In the instance that Fund seeks to retain an ID who has served for nine (9) years, the Board

shall provide meritorious justification and seek Shareholders approval during the annual
Shareholders' meeting.

E) Disqualification of Directors

1. Permanent Disqualification

The following shall be grounds for the permanent disqualification of a Director:

1. Any person convicted by final judgment or order by a competent judicial or
administrative body of any crime that (a) involves the purchase or sale of securities,
as defined in the SRC; (b) arises out of the person’s conduct as an underwriter,
broker, dealer, investment adviser, principal, distributor, mutual fund dealer, futures
SEC merchant, commodity trading advisor, or floor broker; or (c) arises out of his
fiduciary relationship with a bank, quasi-bank, trust company, investment house or as
an affiliated person of any of them;

2. Any person who, by reason of misconduct, after hearing, is permanently enjoined by
a final judgment or order of the SEC or any court or administrative body of competent
jurisdiction from: (a) acting as underwriter, broker, dealer, investment adviser,
principal distributor, mutual fund dealer, futures commission merchant, commodity
trading advisor, or floor broker; (b) acting as Director or Officer of a bank, quasibank,
trust company, investment house, or investment company; (c) engaging in or
continuing any conduct or practice in any of the capacities mentioned in sub-
paragraphs (a) and (b) above, or willfully violating the laws that govern securities and
banking activities. The disqualification shall also apply if such person is currently the
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subject of an order of the SEC or any court or administrative body denying, revoking
or suspending any registration, license or permit issued to him under the RCC, SRC,
or any other law administered by the SEC or BSP, or under any rule or regulation
issued by the SEC or BSP, or has otherwise been restrained to engage in any
activity involving securities and banking; or such person is currently the subject of an
effective order of a self-regulatory organization suspending or expelling him from
membership, participation or association with a member or participant of the
organization;

Any person convicted by final judgment or order by a court or competent
administrative body of an offense involving moral turpitude, fraud, embezzlement,
theft, estafa, counterfeiting, misappropriation, forgery, bribery, false affirmation,
perjury or other fraudulent acts;

Any person who has been adjudged by final judgment or order of the SEC, court, or
competent administrative body to have willfully violated, or willfully aided, abetted,
counseled, induced or procured the violation of any provision of the Fund Code,
Securities Regulation Manual or any other law administered by the SEC or BSP, or
any of its rule, regulation or order;

Any person judicially declared as insolvent;

Any person found guilty by final judgment or order of a foreign court or equivalent
financial regulatory authority of acts, violations or misconduct similar to any of the
acts, violations or misconduct similar to any of the acts, violations, or misconduct
enumerated above;

Conviction by final judgment of an offense punishable by imprisonment for more than
six (6) years, or a violation of the RCC and SRC committed within five (5) years prior
to the date of his election or appointment; and

Other grounds as the SEC may provide pursuant to the provisions of the RCC, SRC,
and other related laws.

2. Temporary Disqualification

The Board may provide for the temporary disqualification of a Director for any of the following

reasons:

1.

2.

Refusal to comply with the disclosure requirements of the SRC and its implementing
rules and regulations. The disqualification shall be in effect as long as the refusal
persists;

Absence in more than fifty percent (50%) of all regular and special meetings of the
Board during his incumbency, or any twelve (12) month period during the said
incumbency, unless the absence is due to iliness, death in the immediate family or
serious accident. The disqualification shall apply for purposes of the succeeding
election;

Dismissal or termination for cause as Director of any publicly-listed company, public
company, registered issuer of securities and holder of a secondary license from the
SEC. The disqualification shall be in effect until he has cleared himself from any
involvement in the cause that gave rise to his dismissal, termination, or removal;

If the beneficial equity ownership of an ID in the Fund or its affiliates exceeds two

percent (2%) of its subscribed capital stock. The disqualification from being elected
as an ID shall be lifted if the limit is later complied with; and
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5. If any of the judgments or orders cited in the grounds for permanent disqualification
has not yet become final.

A temporarily disqualified Director shall, within sixty (60) business days from such
disqualification, take the appropriate action to remedy or correct the disqualification. If he fails or
refuses to do so for unjustified reasons, the disqualification shall become permanent.

F) Nomination of Directors

The Board shall have a formal and transparent board nomination and election process that shall
include how it accepts nominations from its Shareholders and reviews the qualifications of
nominated candidates (“Candidates”). The process shall be assessed according to its
effectiveness in the proper nomination, election, or replacement/removal of a Director. The
process shall be aligned with the strategic direction of the Fund.

1. Process of Nomination

1. All Shareholders, regardless of their shareholdings, shall have the right to nominate,
elect, remove and replace Directors and vote on certain corporate acts in
accordance with the RCC.

2. The Nomination Committee itself may likewise identify and recommend qualified
individuals for nomination and election to the Board. For this purpose, the Committee
may make use of professional search firms or other External sources of Candidates
to search for qualified Candidates to the Board.

3. All written nominations for election of Directors by the Shareholders are to be
received by the Nominations Committee not later than the date prescribed by law,
rules, and regulations or at such earlier or later date as the Board of Directors may
fix before the date of the next annual meeting of the Shareholders. All
recommendations shall be signed by the nominating Shareholders together with the
written acceptance and conformity of the would-be nominees. No nominee shall
qualify to be elected as Director unless this requirement is complied with.

4. The Committee shall screen and shortlist qualified individuals for election as
Directors to ensure that only those that possess all the qualifications and none of the
disqualifications from Directorship as provided in the Fund’s By-Laws, this Manual
and relevant laws, rules and regulations may be elected to the Board.

5. In case of a vacancy in the Board other than removal of a Director or expiration of
term, the Committee shall determine and identify the qualified nominee and
recommend to the Board, if the remaining Directors still constitute a quorum, to elect
such qualified nominee to fill the vacancy.

6. The Committee shall prepare a final list of qualified nominees, recommend for final
approval of the Board such final list, and recommend to the Shareholders the
qualified nominees included in the final list for election in the annual meeting of
Shareholders.

7. The final list of Candidates shall contain all the information about all the nominees
and shall be made available to the SEC and to all Shareholders through the filing
and distribution of the Information Statement, or in such other reports the Fund is
required to submit to SEC. The name of the person or group of persons who
recommended the nomination of the Director shall also be identified in such report
including any relationship with the nominee.
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8. Only nominees whose names appear on the final list of Candidates shall be eligible
for election as a Director. No other nominations shall be entertained after the final list
of Candidates shall have been prepared. No further nominations shall be entertained
or allowed on the floor during the actual annual Shareholders’ meeting.

9. The aforementioned process and requirements shall also apply to nominations for
IDs.

G) Responsibilities, Duties and Functions of the Board

It shall likewise be the Board’s responsibility to foster the long-term success of the Fund and
secure its sustained competitiveness in a manner consistent with its fiduciary responsibility,
which it shall exercise in the best interests of the Fund, its Shareholders, and Stakeholders.

The Board shall formulate the Fund’s vision, mission, and strategic objectives that shall guide
the Investment Manager’'s activities, including the means to effectively monitor the latter’s
performance.

To ensure a high standard of best practices for the Fund, its Shareholders and its Stakeholders,
the Board, in close coordination with the Fund’s duly registered Investment Manager, shall
conduct itself with honesty and integrity in the performance of, among others, the following
duties and functions:

1. Act on a fully informed basis, in good faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best
interest of the Fund and all Shareholders and all other Stakeholders;

2. Oversee the development of and approve the Fund's business and strategy, and monitor its
implementation, in order to sustain the company's long-term viability and strength;

3. Ensure and adopt an effective succession planning program for Directors, key Officers, and
Management to ensure the continuous and consistent growth of the Fund. This should
include adopting a retirement policy for Directors and key Officers;

4. Align the remuneration of key Officers and Board members with the long-term interests of
the Fund. In doing so, it should formulate and adopt a policy specifying the relationship
between remuneration and performance;

5. Install a process of selection to ensure a mix of competent Directors and Officers who can
add value and contribute independent judgment to the formulation of sound corporate
strategies;

6. Appoint competent, professional, honest and highly-motivated management Officers;

7. Ensure that the Fund complies with all relevant laws, regulations and codes of best business
practices;

8. Establish and maintain an investor relations program that will keep the Shareholders
informed of important developments in the Fund. If feasible, the Fund’'s President or
Treasurer shall exercise oversight responsibility over this program;

9. Identify the Fund’s major and other Stakeholders and formulate a clear policy on
communicating or relating with them through an effective investor-relations program;

10. Ensure that the Fund has an adequate internal control system with proper checks and
balances, to be carried out by its management directly or through its duly appointed
Investment Manager;
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11. Identify key risk areas and key performance indicators and monitor these factors with due
diligence to enable its duly appointed Investment Manager to anticipate and prepare for
possible threats to its operational and financial viability;

12. Constitute an Audit Committee and such other Committees it deems necessary to assist the
Board in the performance of its duties and responsibilities;

13. Establish and maintain an alternative dispute resolution system in the Fund that can
amicably settle conflicts or differences between the Fund and its Shareholders, and the
Fund and third parties, including the regulatory authorities;

14. Properly discharge Board functions by meeting regularly. Independent views during Board
meetings shall be given due consideration and all such meetings shall be duly recorded in
the minutes;

15. Keep Board authority within the powers of the Fund as prescribed in the Articles of
Incorporation, By-Laws, and existing laws, rules and regulations;

16. Appoint a Compliance Officer who shall have the rank of at least Senior Vice President or an
equivalent position with adequate stature and authority in the Fund;

17. Conduct an annual self-assessment of its performance, including the performance of the
Chair, individual members and Committees;

18. Establish a system that provides, at the minimum, criteria and process to determine the
performance of the Board, the individual Directors, Committees and such system should
allow for a feedback mechanism from the Shareholders;

19. Adopt a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (“Code of Ethics”), which would provide
standards for professional and ethical behavior, as well as articulate acceptable and
unacceptable conduct and practices in internal and external dealings of the Board. The
Code of Ethics shall be properly disseminated to all the members of the Board and be made
available to the public through the Fund’s website;

20. Ensure the proper and efficient implementation and monitoring of compliance with the Code
of Ethics; and

21. Approve the selection and assessing the performance of the Management led by the CEO
or his equivalent, and control functions led by their respective heads of the internal audit,
compliance and risk functions, as may be applicable.

H) Specific Duties and Responsibilities of Directors

A Director’s office is one of trust and confidence. A Director shall act in the best interest of the
Fund in a manner characterized by transparency, accountability and fairness. He shall also
exercise leadership, prudence and integrity in directing the Fund towards sustained progress.

A Director shall observe the following norms of conduct:

1. To conduct fair business transactions with the Fund and to ensure that personal interest
does not bias Board decisions and does not conflict with the interest of the Fund;

2. To devote time and attention necessary to properly and effectively perform his duties and
responsibilities;

3. To act judiciously;
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4. To exercise independent judgment;

5. To have a working knowledge of the statutory and regulatory requirements affecting the
Fund, including the contents of its Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws, the rules and
regulations of the SEC, and where applicable, the requirements of other regulatory
agencies;

6. To observe confidentiality;

7. To ensure the continuing soundness, effectiveness, and adequacy of the Fund’s internal
control environment;

8. Notify the Board before accepting a directorship in another company; and

9. To fully disclose his adverse interest, abstain from taking part in the deliberations for the
same and recuse from voting on the approval of the transaction in case there is material or
potential interest in any transaction affecting the Fund.

1) Specific Duties and Responsibilities of Non-Executive Directors

The NEDs shall have separate periodic meetings with the External Auditor and heads of the
internal audit, compliance and risk functions, without any EDs present to ensure that proper
checks and balances are in place within the corporation. The meetings should be chaired by the
lead ID director, if applicable.

J) Orientation and Continuing Training Program

An orientation program and annual continuing training for first-time Directors shall be in place to
promote effective Board performance and continuing qualification of the Directors in carrying out
their duties and responsibilities. The orientation program ensures that new Directors are
appropriately apprised of their duties and responsibilities, before beginning their directorships,
and throughout their tenure. The orientation program shall cover SEC-mandated topics on
corporate governance and shall include an introduction to the Fund’s business, Articles of
Incorporation and By-Laws, and Code of Ethics. The orientation program shall be for at least
eight (8) hours.

The annual continuing training program shall ensure that Directors are continuously informed of
the developments in the business and regulatory environments, including emerging risks
relevant to the Fund. The training can be on any matter relevant to the Fund, which may include
training on audit, internal controls, risk management, sustainability, and strategy. Training for
corporate governance shall be conducted by SEC-accredited institutional training providers. The
annual continuing training shall be for at least four (4) hours.

K) Internal Control Responsibilities of the Board

The control environment of the Fund consists of:
1. The Board which ensures that the Fund is properly and effectively managed and supervised;

2. Management that actively manages and operates the Fund in a sound and prudent manner;
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3. The organizational and procedural controls supported by effective management information
and risk management reporting systems; and

4. An independent audit mechanism to monitor the adequacy and effectiveness of the Fund’s
governance, operations, and information systems, including the reliability and integrity of
financial and operational information, the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, the
safeguarding of assets, and compliance with laws, rules, regulations, and contracts.

The minimum internal control mechanisms for the performance of the Board’s oversight
responsibility includes:

1. The definition of the duties and responsibilities of the CEO/President who is ultimately
accountable for the Fund’s organizational and operational controls; and

2. The selection of the person who possesses the ability, integrity, and expertise essential for
the position of CEO/President;

L) Board Meetings and Quorum Requirement

The members of the Board shall attend and actively participate in its regular and special
meetings in person or through teleconferencing, computer conferencing, audio conferencing,
video conferencing, and other remote or electronic means of communication conducted in
accordance with the rules and regulations of the SEC®, except when justifiable causes, such as
illness, death in the immediate family and serious accidents, prevent them from doing so.

In Board and Committee meetings, the Directors shall review meeting materials and if called for,
ask the necessary questions or seek clarifications and explanations.

The IDs shall always attend Board meetings. Unless otherwise provided in the By-Laws, their
absence shall not affect the quorum requirement. However, the Board may, to promote
transparency, require the presence of at least one (1) ID in all its meetings.

To monitor the Directors’ compliance with the attendance requirements, the Fund shall submit to
the SEC, on or before January 30 of the following year, a sworn certification on the Directors’
record of attendance in Board meetings. The certification may be submitted through SEC Form
17-C or in a separate filing.

M) Remuneration of Directors and Officers

The levels of remuneration of the Fund shall be sufficient to be able to attract and retain the
services of qualified and competent Directors and Officers. The Board shall align the
remuneration of key Officers and Board members with the long-term interests of the Fund.

The Board shall have a formal and transparent procedure for the development of a policy on
executive remuneration or determination of remuneration levels for individual Directors and
Officers depending on the particular needs of the Fund.

No Director shall participate in the determination of his own per diem or compensation.

5 SEC Memorandum Circular No. 6; series of 2020 on the Guidelines on the Attendance and Patrticipation of Directors,
Trustees, Stockholders, Members, and Other Persons of Corporations in Regular and Special Meetings Through
Teleconferencing, Video Conferencing and Other Remote or Electronic Means of Communication
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The Fund’s annual reports and information and proxy statements shall include a clear, concise
and understandable disclosure of all fixed and variable compensation that may be paid, directly
or indirectly, to its Directors and top four (4) management Officers during the preceding fiscal
year.

To protect the Fund, the SEC may, in exceptional cases, e.g., when a Fund is under

receivership or rehabilitation, regulate the payment of the compensation, allowances, fees and
fringe benefits to its Directors and Officers.

ARTICLE 5: BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board may carry out its various responsibilities through Committees that shall be set up to
support the effective performance of the Board's functions.

The Committees shall be composed only of Board members.

All Committees shall have Committee Charters stating in plain terms their respective purposes,
memberships, structures, operations, reporting processes, resources and other relevant

information. The Charters should provide the standards for evaluating the performance of the
Committees and its members.

A) Nomination Committee
The Board shall create a Nomination Committee which shall consist of at least three (3)

members of the Board, one of whom must be an ID.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Nomination Committee

1. Determine the nomination and election process for the Directors and defines the general
profile of Board members that the Fund may need, and ensures that appropriate knowledge,
competencies and expertise that complement the existing skills of the Board are adopted as
standards and criteria for nomination and election;

2. Establishes a formal and transparent procedure for determining the remuneration of
Directors and Officers that is consistent with the Fund’s culture and business strategy as
well as the business environment in which it operates.

3. Assess the effectiveness of the Board’s processes and procedures in the election or
replacement of Directors;

4. In consultation with the Executive or Management Committees, re-define the role, duties
and responsibilities of the CEO/President by integrating the dynamic requirements of the
business as a going concern and future expansionary prospects within the realm of good
corporate governance at all times.

5. Consider the following guidelines in the determination of Directorship in the Board:
1. The nature of the business of the Fund;
2. Age of the Director;

3. Number of Directorships and active memberships and Officerships in other Funds or
organizations; and
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4. Possible conflict of interest.

B) Audit Committee

The Board should establish an Audit Committee to enhance its oversight capability over the
Fund's financial reporting, internal control system, internal and external audit processes, and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Committee shall be composed of at least three (3) appropriately qualified NEDs, the
majority of whom, including the Chair, shall be IDs. All of the members of the Committee must
have relevant background, knowledge, skills, and/or experience in the areas of accounting,
auditing, and finance. The Chair of the Committee shall not be the Chair of the Board or of any
other committees.

In order to ensure independence and prevent conflict of interest, the members of the Audit
Committee shall not be allowed to hold interlocking directorships in other entities involved in the
operation of the Fund such as the Fund Manager, Fund Distributor, Fund Advisor, Transfer
Agent, and Custodian.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

1. Ensure a reliable and strong internal audit control system with the duly appointed /
registered Investment Manager's own internal corporate set-up. A well-designed internal
audit control system provides a system of checks and balances in order to:

1. Safeguard the Fund's resources and ensure their effective utilization;
2. Prevent occurrence of fraud and other irregularities;

3. Protect the accuracy and reliability of the company's financial data; and
4. Ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

2. Monitor Management's responsiveness to the internal auditor's findings and
recommendations;

3. Prior to the commencement of the audit, discuss with the External Auditor the nature,
scope and expenses of the audit, and ensures the proper coordination if more than one
(1) audit firm is involved in the activity to identify proper coverage and minimize
duplication of efforts;

4. Evaluate and determine the non-audit work, if any, of the External Auditor, and
periodically reviews the non-audit fees paid to the External Auditor in relation to the total
fees paid and the corporation's overall consultancy expenses. The Audit Committee shall
disallow any non-audit work that will conflict with the duties of an External Auditor or may
pose a threat to his independence. The non-audit work, if allowed, shall be disclosed in
the Fund’s Annual Report and ACGR,;

5. Review and approve the Interim and Annual Financial Statements before their
submission to the Board, with particular focus on the following matters:

1. Any change/s in accounting policies and practices;
2. Areas where a significant amount of judgment has been exercised;

3. Significant adjustments resulting from the audit;
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4. Going concern assumptions;
5. Compliance with accounting standards; and
6. Compliance with tax, legal and regulatory requirements;

6. Review the recommendations in the External Auditor's management letter;

7. Perform oversight functions over the Fund’s Internal and External Auditors and ensures
their independence and unrestricted access to all records, properties and personnel to
enable them to perform their respective audit functions taking into consideration relevant
Philippine professional and regulatory requirements;

8. Coordinate, monitor and facilitate compliance with laws, rules and regulations;

9. Recommend to the Board the appointment, reappointment, removal and fees of the
External Auditor, duly accredited by the SEC, who undertakes an independent audit of
the corporation, and provides an objective assurance on the manner by which the
financial statements should be prepared and presented to the Shareholders;

10. Evaluate on an ongoing basis existing relations between and among businesses and
counterparties to ensure that all related parties are continuously identified, RPTs are
monitored, the Related Party Registry is updated to capture subsequent changes in
relationships with counterparties from non-related to related and vice versa;

11. Perform the functions of the IOE Committee, as provided under, in the absence thereof;

12. Perform the functions of the Corporate Governance Committee, as provided under, in
the absence thereof;

13. Perform the functions of the RPT Committee, as provided under, in the absence thereof;

14. Perform the functions of the BRO Committee, as provided under, in the absence thereof;
and

15. Meets internally and with the Board at least once every quarter without the presence of

the CEO/President or other Management team members, and periodically meets with
the head of the Independent Audit.

C) Independent Oversight Committee

The Fund shall perform oversight over its Fund Manager. Pursuant to this, the Audit Committee
shall also function as an impartial Committee or IOE, as recommended by SEC regulation®, to
monitor the transactions and functions carried out by the Fund Manager.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Independent Oversight Committee

1. Exercise care and diligence when monitoring the transactions and functions of the Fund
Manager;

2. Oversee the transactions and functions of the Fund Manager to ensure compliance with
the disclosures made in the Registration Statemen, prospectus, the ICA, SRC, and their

6 SEC Memorandum Circular No. 21; series of 2019 on the Rules on the Appointment of Independent Oversight Entity, Independent
Net Asset Value Calculation, Qualifications or Key Officers of Fund Managers, and Liquidation of Assets and Winding Up of
Investment Companies
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implementing rules and regulations. For cross-border offerings or transactions, in
addition to the abovementioned, oversee the transactions of the Fund Manager in order
to ensure that it also complies with the standards and requirements of bilateral or
multilateral agreements allowing cross-border offerings and transactions that the
Philippines is a party to;

Oversee the subscription and redemption of shares or units facilitated by the Fund
Manager and to approve the request of the Fund Manager in the case of suspension of
redemption of shares or units whenever necessary for the protection of investors subject
to the rules on Suspension of Redemption provided under Rule 10.4 of the ICA
implementing rules and regulations;

Oversee the activities of the Fund Manager in order to ensure that it complies with the
rules on investment restrictions and limitations, liquidity requirements, and other
regulations involving the operationalization of the investment objectives, investment
policy or strategy of the Fund;

Oversee the transactions of the Fund Manager to ensure that delegation will not result in
unnecessary fees to be paid by the Fund and ensure that it will not delegate its function
to the extent that it becomes a letter box such as when it no longer has the power to take
decisions in the implementation of the investment policy and strategies nor retain the
suitable process to monitor, control the activities and evaluate the performance of the
delegatee;

If, in the reasonable opinion of the IOE, the Fund Manager has not complied with any of
the laws, rules or regulations applicable to the Fund, and/or it failed to report to the SEC
the said non-compliance, notify the SEC of its opinion, including particulars of the non-
compliance, not later than five (5) business days after forming the opinion or upon
knowledge of the non-compliance. The notification shall be done by filing an SEC Form
17-C. It shall notify, without delay, the members of the Board of its opinion so that the
Board can apprise the Fund Manager of the said non-compliance and address any
resulting breach;

Report to the SEC any act of the Fund Manager, which in its opinion may be detrimental
to the interests of the shareholders even if the said act is not in violation of any law, rule
or regulation, not later than five (5) business days from knowledge thereof; and

If necessary, recommend to the Board that the Fund Manager be removed due to its
inability to fulfill its functions.

D) Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee is tasked with ensuring compliance with and proper
observance of corporate governance principles and practices.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Corporate Governance Committee

1.

Oversee the implementation of the corporate governance framework and periodically
reviews the said framework to ensure that it remains appropriate in light of material changes
to the Fund’s size, complexity of operations and business strategy, as well as its business
and regulatory environment;

Oversee the periodic performance evaluation of the Board and its Committees as well as the
executive management, and conducts an annual evaluation of the said performance;
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Ensure that the results of the Board evaluation are discussed, and that concrete action
plans are developed and implemented to address the identified areas for improvement;

Recommend the continuing education/training programs for Directors, assignment of
tasks/projects to Committees, succession plan for the Board members and Senior Officers,
and remuneration packages for and individual performance;

Adopt corporate governance policies and ensures that these are reviewed and updated
regularly, and consistently implemented in form and substance; and

Propose and plan relevant trainings for the members of the Board.

E) Related Party Transactions Committee

Duties and Responsibilities of the RPT Committee

1.

Evaluate all RPTs to ensure that these are not undertaken on more favorable economic
terms (e.g., price, commissions, interest rates, fees, tenor, collateral requirement) to such
related parties than similar transactions with non-related parties under similar circumstances
and that no corporate or business resources of the company are misappropriated or
misapplied,;

Determine any potential reputational risk issues that may arise as a result of or in
connection with RPTs. In evaluating RPTs, the Committee takes into account, among others,
the following:

1. The related party's relationship to the Fund and interest in the transaction;

2. The material facts of the proposed RPT, including the proposed aggregate value of
such transaction;

3. The benefits to the Fund of the proposed RPT,;
4. The availability of other sources of comparable products or services; and

5. An assessment of whether the proposed RPT is undertaken on terms and conditions
that are comparable to the terms generally available to an unrelated party under
similar circumstances. The Fund should have an effective price discovery system in
place and exercise due diligence in determining a fair price for RPTs.

Ensures that appropriate disclosure is made, and/or information is provided to regulating
and supervising authorities relating to the Fund’s RPT exposures, and policies on potential
and/or actual conflicts of interest. The disclosure should include information on the approach
to managing material conflicts of interest that are inconsistent with such policies, and
conflicts that could arise as a result of the company's affiliation or transactions with other
related parties;

Report to the Board on a regular basis, the status and aggregate exposures to each related
party, as well as the total amount of exposures to all related parties;

Ensure that transactions with related parties, including write-off of exposures are subject to
a periodic independent review or audit process;

Oversee the implementation of the system for identifying, monitoring, measuring, controlling,
and reporting RPTs, including a periodic review of RPT policies and procedures.
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F) Board Risk Oversight Committee

The BRO Committee shall be responsible for the oversight of the Fund's ERM System to ensure
its functionality and effectiveness. The BRO Committee should be composed of at least three
(3) directors, the majority of whom should be IDs, including the Chairperson. At least one (1)
member of the committee must have relevant thorough knowledge and experience on risk and
risk management.

The BRO Committee has the responsibility to assist the Board in ensuring that there is an
effective and integrated risk management process in place in order that the Board and Senior
Management will be in a position to make well-informed decisions, having taken into
consideration risks related to significant business activities, plans and opportunities.

Duties and Responsibilities of the BRO Committee

1. Develop a formal ERM plan which contains the following:

1. Common language or register of risks,

2. Well-defined risk management goals and objectives,

3. Uniform processes of assessing risks and developing strategies to manage
prioritized risks,

4. Designing and implementing risk management strategies, and

5. Continuing assessments to improve risk strategies, processes and measures;

2. Oversee the implementation of the ERM plan and conduct regular discussions on the Fund's
prioritized and residual risk exposures based on regular risk management reports and
assessing how these risks are addressed or managed;

3. Evaluate the risk management plan to ensure its continued relevance, comprehensiveness
and effectiveness. The Committee shall revisit defined risk management strategies, looks for
emerging or changing material exposures, and keeps abreast of significant developments
that seriously impact the likelihood of harm or loss;

4. Advise the Board on its risk appetite levels and risk tolerance limits;

5. Review at least annually the Fund's risk appetite levels and risk tolerance limits based on
changes and developments in the business, the regulatory framework, the external
economic and business environment, and major events which may have occurred affecting
the Fund;

6. Assesses the probability of each identified risk becoming a reality and estimates its possible
significant financial impact and likelihood of occurrence. Priority areas of concern are those
risks that are the most likely to occur and to impact the performance and stability of the
Funds and its Stakeholders;

7. Oversee the Management's activities in managing credit, market, liquidity, operational, legal
and other risk exposures of the Fund. This function includes regularly receiving information
on risk exposures and risk management activities from Management; and

8. Report to the Board on a regular basis, or as deemed necessary, the Fund’s material risk
exposures, the actions taken to reduce the risks, and recommends further action or plans,
as necessary.
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ARTICLE 6: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board should have the overall responsibility in ensuring that there is a policy and system
governing RPTs and other unusual or infrequently occurring transactions, particularly those
which pass certain thresholds of materiality. The policy should include the appropriate review
and approval of material RPTs, which guarantee fairness and transparency of the transactions.

Ensuring the integrity of RPTs is an important fiduciary duty of the Director. It is the Board's role
to initiate policies and measures geared towards promotion of transparency, prevention of
abuse, and protection of the interest of all Shareholders by:
1. Requiring material RPTs to be approved by at least two-thirds (2/3) of the Board, with
majority of the IDs approving the transaction, in accordance with the provisions of the
RCC, SEC issuances, and other related laws; and

2. Ensuring that transactions occur at market prices, at arm's-length basis and under
conditions that protect the rights of all shareholders.

An RPT Policy shall be in place, which shall contain:
1. ldentification of related parties;
2. Coverage of RPT policy;
3. Guidelines in ensuring arm's-length terms;

4. Identification and prevention or management of potential or actual conflicts of interest
which may arise;

5. Adoption of materiality thresholds, as well as internal limits for individual and aggregate
exposures;

6. Approval of material RPTs based on the Fund’s materiality threshold;
7. Disclosure requirement of material RPTs;

8. Self-assessment and periodic review of policy;

9. Whistle-blowing mechanisms; and

10. Restitution of losses and other remedies for abusive RPTs.

The Fund may set its materiality threshold at a level where omission or misstatement of the
transaction could pose a significant risk to the Fund and influence its economic decision.

Depending on the materiality threshold, the approval of Management, the Board, or the
Shareholders may be required. In cases where the Board and/or Shareholders' approval is
required, the interested Directors and/or Shareholders, respectively, shall abstain and let the
disinterested parties decide.

ARTICLE 7: ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is primarily accountable to the Shareholders. It shall provide them with a balanced
and comprehensible assessment of the Fund’s performance, position and prospects on a
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regular basis, including interim and other reports that could adversely affect its business, as well
as reports to regulators that are required by law.

Thus, it is essential that Management provide all members of the Board with accurate and timely
information that would enable the Board to comply with its responsibilities to the Shareholders.

A) Internal Auditor

Due to the nature of an Investment Fund set-up where the Fund does not have any employees
of its own and where all the daily business transactions are undertaken by the Fund’s
Investment Manager, the Fund does not intend to employ its own Internal Auditor but in return,
the Board shall ensure a reliable and strong internal audit control system with the duly appointed
/ registered Investment Manager’s own internal corporate set-up.

Functions of the Internal Auditor

1. Provide an independent risk-based assurance service to the Board, Audit Committee and
Management, focusing on reviewing the effectiveness of the governance and control
processes in:

1. Promoting the right values and ethics,
2. Ensuring effective performance management and accounting in the Fund,
3. Communicating risk and control information, and

4. Coordinating the activities and information among the Board, External and Internal
auditors, and Management,

2. Perform regular and special audit as contained in the annual audit plan and/or based on the
Fund’s risk assessment;

3. Perform consulting and advisory services related to governance and control as appropriate
for the organization;

4. Perform compliance audit of relevant laws, rules and regulations, contractual obligations and
other commitments, which could have a significant impact on the organization;

5. Review, audit and assess the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal control system of all
areas of the Fund;

6. Evaluate operations or programs to ascertain whether results are consistent with established
objectives and goals, and whether the operations or programs are being carried out as
planned;

7. Evaluate specific operations at the request of the Board or Management, as appropriate; and

8. Monitor and evaluate governance processes.

B) External Auditor

An External Auditor shall enable an environment of good corporate governance as reflected in
the financial records and reports of the Fund. The Board, after consultations with the Audit
Committee, shall recommend to the Shareholders an External Auditor duly accredited by the
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SEC who shall undertake an independent audit of the Fund, and shall provide an objective
assurance on the manner by which the financial statements shall be prepared and presented to
the Shareholders.

Dismissal / Resignation / Cessation from Service

If the External Auditor resigns, is dismissed or ceases to perform his services, the reason/s for
and the date of effectivity of such action shall be reported in the Fund’s annual and current
reports. The report shall include a discussion of any disagreement between him and the Fund
on accounting principles or practices, financial disclosures or audit procedures which the former
Auditor and the Fund failed to resolve satisfactorily. A preliminary copy of the said report shall
be given by the Fund to the External Auditor before its submission.

The Audit Committee should have a robust process for approving and recommending the
appointment, reappointment, removal, and fees of the external auditor. The appointment,
reappointment, removal, and fees of the External Auditor should be recommended by the Audit
Committee and approved by the Directors and the Shareholders. For the removal or change in
the External Auditor, the reasons for removal or change should be disclosed to the SEC, the
shareholders, and the public through the Fund website and other required disclosures.

Limitations of the Functions of the External Auditor

The External Auditor shall not, at the same time, provide internal audit services to the Fund.
Non-audit work may be given to the External Auditor, provided it does not conflict with his duties
as an Independent Auditor, or does not pose a threat to his independence.

The Fund should disclose the nature of non-audit services performed by its External Auditor in
the Annual Report in the interest of managing potential conflict of interest cases. The Audit
Committee should be alert for any potential conflict of interest situations, given the guidelines or
policies on non-audit services, which could be viewed as impairing the External Auditor's
objectivity.

Duration / Term of Service

The External Auditor shall be rotated or changed every five (5) years or earlier, or the signing
partner of the external auditing firm assigned to the Fund, shall be changed with the same
frequency.

Duty to Report Incorrect or Incomplete Statements on Report, etc.

If the External Auditor believes that any statement made in an annual report, information
statement or any report filed with the SEC or any regulatory body during the period of his
engagement is incorrect or incomplete, he shall give his comments or views on the matter in the
said reports.

The Audit Committee Charter should include the Audit Committee's responsibility on assessing
the integrity and independence of External Auditors and exercising effective oversight to review
and monitor the External Auditor's independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process, taking into consideration relevant Philippine professional and regulatory
requirements. The Charter should also contain the Audit Committee's responsibility on reviewing
and monitoring the External Auditor's suitability and effectiveness on an annual basis.
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C) INDEPENDENT NET ASSET VALUE CALCULATION

The Fund shall engage an independent entity, as required by SEC regulation’, to calculate or
cross-check its Net Asset Value every dealing day. The entity shall be duly licensed by the BSP,
provided that it does not hold directly or indirectly ten percent (10%) or more of the total number
of issued shares in the Fund, Fund Manager, or vice versa, nor have a common shareholder
that holds directly or indirectly ten percent (10%) or more of the total number of issued share
capital of the Fund or Fund Manager; and the entity shall not be the same as the one auditing
the Fund and Fund Manager.

ARTICLE 8: CORPORATE SECRETARY

The Board should ensure that it is assisted in its duties by a Corporate Secretary, who should
be a separate individual from the Compliance Officer. The Corporate Secretary should not be a
member of the Board of Directors and should annually attend a training on corporate
governance.

Qualifications of the Corporate Secretary

1. The Corporate Secretary shall be a Filipino citizen and a resident of the Philippines;

2. Considering his varied functions and duties, he must possess administrative and
interpersonal skills, and if he is not the general counsel, then he must have adequate legal
skills; and

3. He must also have a working knowledge of the operations of the Fund.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Corporate Secretary

1. Assists the Board and the Committees in the conduct of their meetings (i.e. agenda setting,
preparation of annual schedule of meetings and board calendar);

2. Safekeeps and preserves the integrity of the minutes of the meetings of the Board,
Committees and Shareholders, as well as other official records of the Fund;

3. Keeps abreast of relevant laws, regulations, all governance issuances, industry
developments and operations of the Fund, and advises the Board and the Chairperson on
all relevant issues as they arise;

4. Works fairly and objectively with the Board, Management and Shareholders and contributes
to the flow of information between the Board and Management, the Board and its
Committees, and the Board and its Shareholders as well as other Stakeholders;

5. Advises on the establishment of Committees and their terms of reference;

6. Informs members of the Board, in accordance with the By-Laws, of the agenda of their
meetings at least five (5) working days before the date of the meeting, and ensures that the
members have before them accurate information that will enable them to arrive at intelligent
decisions on matters that require their approval;

7 SEC Memorandum Circular No. 21; series of 2019 on the Rules on the Appointment of Independent Oversight Entity,
Independent Net Asset Value Calculation, Qualifications or Key Officers of Fund Managers, and Liquidation of Assets
and Winding Up of Investment Companies
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7. Attends all Board meetings, except when justifiable causes, such as illness, death in the
immediate family and serious accidents, prevent him from doing so;

8. Performs all required administrative functions;

9. Oversees the drafting of the By-laws and ensures that they conform with regulatory
requirements; and

10. Performs such other duties and responsibilities as may be provided by the Board and the
SEC.

ARTICLE 9: COMPLIANCE OFFICER

The Compliance Officer is a member of the Fund’s Management team in charge of the
compliance function. Similar to the Corporate Secretary, he is primarily liable to the Fund and its
shareholders and not to the Chair or President.

The appointment of the Compliance Officer shall be immediately disclosed to the SEC on SEC
Form 17-C. All correspondence relative to his functions as such shall be addressed to said
Officer.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Compliance Officer

1. Ensures proper onboarding of new Directors (i.e., orientation on the Fund’s business,
charter, Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws, among others);

2. Monitors, reviews, evaluates and ensures the compliance by the Fund, its Officers and
Directors the relevant laws, this Manual, rules and regulations and all governance issuances
of regulatory agencies;

3. Reports to the Board if violations are found and recommends the imposition of appropriate
disciplinary action;

4. Ensures the integrity and accuracy of all documentary and electronic submissions as may
be allowed under SEC rules and regulations;

5. Appears before the SEC when summoned in relation to compliance with this Manual and
other relevant rules and regulations;

6. Collaborates with other departments within the Fund to properly address compliance issues,
which may be subject to investigation;

7. ldentifies possible areas of compliance issues and works towards the resolution of the
same; and

8. Ensures the attendance of Directors and key Officers to relevant trainings;

ARTICLE 10: ADEQUATE AND TIMELY INFORMATION

To enable the members of the Board to properly fulfill their duties and responsibilities, the
Investment Manager shall provide them with complete, adequate and timely information about
the matters to be taken in their meetings.
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Reliance on information furnished by Investment Manager may not be sufficient in all
circumstances and further inquiries may be made by a member of the Board to enable him to
properly perform his duties and responsibilities. Hence, the Directors shall be given
independent access to Investment Manager and the Corporate Secretary.

The information may include the background or explanation on matters brought before the
Board, disclosures, budgets, forecasts, and internal financial documents.

The Directors, either individually or as a Board, and in furtherance of their duties and
responsibilities, shall have access to independent professional advice at the Fund’s expense.

ARTICLE 11: DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY

The essence of corporate governance is transparency. The more transparent the internal
workings of the Fund are, the more difficult it will be for Management and dominant
Shareholders to mismanage the Fund or misappropriate its assets.

It is therefore essential that all material information about the Fund which could adversely affect
its viability or the interests of its Shareholders and other Stakeholders shall be publicly and
timely disclosed. Such information shall include, among others, earnings results, acquisition or
disposition of assets, off-balance sheet transactions, RPTs, and direct and indirect remuneration
of members of the Board and Management. All such information shall be disclosed through the
appropriate Exchange mechanisms and submissions to the SEC.

The Board shall therefore commit at all times to full disclosure of material information dealings.
It shall cause the filing of all required information and submissions to the SEC for the interest of
its Shareholders and other Stakeholders.

The Board shall establish corporate disclosure policies and procedures to ensure a
comprehensive, accurate, reliable and timely report to Shareholders and other Stakeholders
that gives a fair and complete picture of a Fund’s financial condition, results, and business
operations.

The Fund should have a policy requiring all Directors and Officers to disclose/report to the Fund
any dealings in the Fund’s shares by the said Directors and Officers within five (5) business
days.

The Fund should disclose all relevant information on its corporate governance policies and
practices in the ACGR, which shall be submitted to the SEC, and continuously updated and
posted on the Fund’s website.

Contents of the ACGR

1. A policy on disclosure of all relevant and material information on Directors and key Officers
to evaluate their experience and qualifications, and assess any potential and/or actual
conflicts of interest that might affect their judgment.®

2. Board and Executive remuneration, as well as the level and mix of the same;

3. Accurate disclosure to the public of every material fact or event that occurs in the Fund,
particularly on the acquisition or disposal of significant assets, which could adversely affect
the viability or the interest of its Shareholders and other Stakeholders, which includes policy
on the appointment of an independent party to evaluate the fairness of the transaction price
on the acquisition or disposal of assets;

8 “Annex C”, as amended, SRC Rule 12 on Non-Financial Disclosure Requirements
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4. The non-audit work, if any, of the External Auditor, the non-audit fees paid to the External
Auditor in relation to the total fees paid to him and to the Fund’s overall consultancy
expenses;

5. The attendance record of the Fund'’s directors for the previous year; and
6. Other information that the SEC or other regulatory agencies, may, from time to time require

disclosure of.

This Manual shall be submitted to and made available at the SEC. It shall also be available for
inspection by any Shareholder of the Fund at its principal office during reasonable hours on a
business day. The Manual shall, likewise, be posted on the Fund’s website.

Reportorial or Disclosure System of the Fund’s Corporate Governance Policies

1. The reports or disclosures required under this Manual shall be prepared and submitted to
the SEC by the responsible Committee or Officer through the Fund’s Compliance Officer.

2. All material information, i.e., anything that could potentially affect share price, shall be
publicly disclosed. Such information shall include earnings results, acquisition or disposal of
assets, Board changes, related party transactions, shareholdings of Directors, and changes
to ownership.

3. Other information that shall always be disclosed includes remuneration (including stock
options) of all Directors and Senior Management, corporate strategy, and off-balance sheet
transactions.

4. All disclosed information shall be released through announcements and annual reports.

5. The Board shall commit at all times to fully disclose material information dealings. It shall
cause the filing of all required information for the interest of the Stakeholders.

ARTICLE 12: SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND PROTECTION

The Fund recognizes that the most cogent proof of good corporate governance is that which is
visible to the eyes of its investors. Therefore, the following provisions are issued for the
guidance of all internal and External parties concerned, as governance covenant between the
Fund and all its investors:

Rights of Shareholders

The Board shall be committed to respect the rights of the Shareholders, namely:

1. Voting Rights

1. Shareholders shall have the right to elect, remove and replace Directors and vote on
certain corporate acts in accordance with the RCC.

2. Cumulative voting shall be used in the election of Directors.

3. A Director shall not be removed without cause if it will deny minority Shareholders
representation in the Board.
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4. Right to vote on all matters that require Shareholders’ consent or approval

2. Pre-emptive Rights

All Shareholders shall have pre-emptive rights, unless the same is denied in the Articles of
Incorporation or amendments thereto. They shall have the right to subscribe to the capital
stock of the Fund. The Articles of Incorporation shall lay down the specific rights and
powers of Shareholders with respect to the particular shares they hold, all of which shall be
protected by law so long as they shall not be in conflict with the RCC.

3. Power of Inspection

All Shareholders shall be allowed to inspect corporate books and records including minutes
of Board meetings and stock registries in accordance with the Manual and shall be
furnished with annual reports, including financial statements, without costs or restrictions.

4. Right to Information

1. The Shareholders shall be provided, upon request, with periodic reports which disclose
personal and professional information about the Directors and Officers and certain other
matters such as their holdings of the Fund’'s shares, dealings with the Fund,
relationships among Directors and key Officers, and the aggregate compensation of
Directors and Officers.

2. The minority Shareholders shall be granted the right to propose the holding of a meeting,
and the right to propose items in the agenda of the meeting, provided the items are for
legitimate business purposes.

3. The minority Shareholders shall have access to any and all information relating to
matters for which Management is accountable for and to those relating to matters for
which Management shall include such information and, if not included, then the minority
Shareholders shall be allowed to propose to include such matters in the agenda of
Shareholders’ meetings, being within the definition of “legitimate purposes.”

5. Right to Dividends

The Fund shall be compelled to declare dividends when its retained earnings shall be in
excess of 100% of its paid-in capital stock, except when:

1. Justified by definite corporate expansion projects or programs approved by the Board;

2. The Fund is prohibited under any loan agreement with any financial institution or
creditor, whether local or foreign, from declaring dividends without its consent, and such
consent has not been secured; or

3. When it can be clearly shown that such retention is necessary under special
circumstances obtaining in the Fund, such as when there is a need for special reserves
for probable contingencies.

6. Appraisal Right

The Shareholders’ shall have appraisal right or the right to dissent and demand payment of
the fair value of their shares in the manner provided for under Section 81 of the RCC, under
any of the following circumstances:

1. In case of any amendment to the Articles of Incorporation which has the effect of
changing or restricting the rights of any Shareholders or class of shares, or of
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authorizing preferences in any respect superior to those of outstanding shares of any
class, or of extending or shortening the term of corporate existence;

2. In case of sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all
or substantially all of the Fund’s property and assets as provided in the RCC;

3. In case of merger or consolidation; and

4. In case of investment of corporate Funds for any purpose other than the primary
purpose of the Fund.

The Board shall be transparent and fair in the conduct of the Annual and Special Shareholders’
Meetings. The Shareholders shall be encouraged to personally attend such meetings. If they
cannot attend, they shall be apprised ahead of time of their right to appoint a proxy. Subject to
the requirements of the By-Laws, the exercise of that right shall not be unduly restricted and any
doubt about the validity of a proxy shall be resolved in the Shareholder’s favor.

It is the duty of the Board to promote the rights of the Shareholders, remove impediments to the
exercise of those rights and provide an adequate avenue for them to seek timely redress for
breach of their rights.

Remedies For Infringement of Shareholders’ Rights

The Board shall encourage the exercise of Shareholders’ voting rights and the solution of
collective action problems through appropriate mechanisms or alternative dispute mechanism to
resolve intra-corporate disputes in an amicable and effective manner.

Management shall ensure constant engagement and communication with Shareholders through
a designated investor or customer relations officer. The Officer shall be present in Annual or
Special Shareholders’ Meetings and have a designated email address and telephone number to
receive feedback, complaints, and queries.

Meetings of Shareholders

The Board shall take the appropriate steps to remove excessive or unnecessary costs and other
administrative impediments to the Shareholders’ meaningful participation in meetings, whether
in person or by proxy. In furtherance thereof, poll voting shall be highly encouraged as opposed
to the show of hands. Proxy voting may be considered, including the electronic distribution of
proxy materials. The right to vote may also be exercised through remote communication or in
absentia®.

In cases where the Shareholders cannot physically attend Shareholders’ meetings, they may do
so through remote communications or other alternative modes of communication. If the
Shareholder intends to participate in a meeting through remote communication, he shall notify
the Corporate Secretary

Although all Shareholders shall be treated equally or without discrimination, the Board shall give
minority Shareholders the right to propose the holding of meetings and the items for discussion
in the agenda that relate directly to the business of the Fund. However, to prevent the abuse of
this right, the Fund may require that the proposal be made by Shareholders holding a specified
percentage of shares or voting rights. To ensure that minority Shareholders are not effectively
prevented from exercising this right the degree of ownership concentration shall be considered
in determining the threshold.

9 SEC Memorandum Circular No. 6; series of 2020 on the Guidelines on the Attendance and Participation of Directors,
Trustees, Stockholders, Members, and Other Persons of Corporations in Regular and Special Meetings Through
Teleconferencing, Video Conferencing and Other Remote or Electronic Means of Communication
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All Shareholders shall be given the opportunity to nominate candidates to the Board, and/or
cause the removal of any member thereof in accordance with the existing laws. The procedures
of the nomination and removal process shall be discussed clearly by the Board. The Fund shall
fully and promptly disclose all information regarding the expertise, experience and background
of the candidates to enable the shareholders to study and conduct their own background check
as to the candidates' qualification and credibility.

The result of the votes on matters taken during the most recent Annual or Special Shareholders’
Meeting shall be made publicly available on the next working day. In addition, the Minutes of the
Annual and Special Shareholders' Meeting shall be available on the website.

Notice to Shareholders

Accurate and timely information shall be made available to the Shareholders to enable them to
make a sound judgment on all matters brought to their attention for consideration or approval at
least 21 days before the meeting. The Directors shall pave the way for the electronic filing and
distribution of Shareholder information necessary to make informed decisions subject to legal
constraints. In order for the Shareholders to plan their participation in the meeting, the notice
shall also be posted on the Fund’s website.

ARTICLE 13: STAKEHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND PROTECTION

The Board shall identify the Fund’s various Stakeholders and promote cooperation in creating
wealth, growth and sustainability. These Stakeholders shall include, among others, the Fund’s
customers, resource providers, creditors, holders of proprietary and non-proprietary rights. and
the community in which it operates.

The Board shall ensure that fair, professional, and objective dealings, as well as clear, timely
and regular communication with the Stakeholders ensure fair treatment and protection of their
rights.

Clear policies and programs shall be in place to provide a mechanism on the fair treatment,
protection, and enforcement of the rights of Stakeholders.

ARTICLE 14: COMPREHENSIVE AND COST-EFFICIENT ACCESS TO INFORMATION

The Fund shall maintain a comprehensive and cost-efficient communication channel for
disseminating relevant information. This channel is crucial for an informed decision-making by
investors, Stakeholders and other interested users.

Contents of the Website:

1. Manual on Corporate Governance;

2. Annual Corporate Governance Report;
3. Board Charter,;

4. Committee Charters, and

5. The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.
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ARTICLE 15: LIQUIDATION OF ASSETS AND WINDING UP OF THE FUND

The Fund Manager shall carry out the liquidation of assets on behalf of the Fund. In all cases of
revocation of the Registration Statement and Certificate of Permit to Offer Securities for Sale,
the Fund Manager must liquidate the assets within a period of six (6) months from the receipt of
the Fund of the Order revoking the Registration Statement or Certificate. The Fund shall wind
up or amend its business purposes within one (1) year from receipt of the same.

The Fund or the Fund Manager shall inform the SEC of the status of the redemption of
securities every 30" of January until all the shares have been fully redeemed".

ARTICLE 16: ADMINISTRATIVE SANCTIONS

1. To strictly observe and implement the provisions of this Manual, the following penalties shall
be imposed, after notice and hearing, on the Fund’s Directors, Officers, staff, and affiliates
and their respective Directors, Officers and staff in case of violation of any of the provisions
of this Manual:

1. In case of first violation, the subject person shall be reprimanded.

2. Suspension from office shall be imposed in case of second violation. The duration of
the suspension shall depend on the gravity of the violation.

3. For the third violation, the maximum penalty of removal from office shall be imposed.
2. The Compliance Officer shall be responsible for determining violation/s through notice and

hearing and shall recommend to the Chairman the imposable penalty for such violation, for
further review and approval of the Board.

ARTICLE 17: ADOPTION AND EFFECTIVITY OF REVISED MANUAL

Pursuant to the requirement of the SEC under Memorandum Circular No. 24; s. 2019, this
amended Manual on Corporate Governance is signed on behalf of the registrant by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

- Signature Page Follows -

10 SEC Memorandum Circular No. 21; series of 2019 on the Rules on the Appointment of Independent Oversight
Entity, Independent Net Asset Value Calculation, Qualifications or Key Officers of Fund Managers, and Liquidation of
Assets and Winding Up of Investment Companies

" Rule 13.1.8 of the ICA IRR on the Residual Obligation of the Investment Company with a Revoked Registration
Statement.
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SIGNATURES

ROBERTO F. DE OCAMPO
Chairman

ATTY. PAOLO JOHN D. PURGANAN
Compliance Officer
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CONFIDENTIAL

Board Self-Assessment Form
Rating Scale: 1. Needs Improvement 2. Satisfactory 3. Good 4. Very Good 5. Excellent
(Director to check (v') the box that corresponds to the selected rating and provide comments, if any)

RATINGS COMMENTS

EVALUATION FACTOR

A. Strategic Foresight

1. The Board evaluates the financial results
periodically vis-a-vis its investment objectives to
assess the PAMI Mutual Funds as well as
Management’s performance, considers new,
opportunities and responds promptly to
industry trends and external developments.

2. The Board reviews and evaluates changes in
fund features, major investment movements,
significant expenses, including key assumptions,
major risks and critical issues before approval
and monitors outcomes.

B. Board Structure and Committee Effectiveness

Each PAMI Mutual Fund has an appropriate
board size and structure that promotes
efficiency, allows critical discussion of issues
and thorough review of matters, and proper
discharge of its functions, taking into account
the nature and complexity of operations, and
size and types of risks to which PAMI Mutual
Funds are exposed.

2. The Board is guided by a Manual of Corporate
Governance.

3. The composition of the Board has the right mix
of expertise, diversity and independence,
allowing it to add value, critical thinking and
judgment to effectively govern PAMI Mutual
Funds’ formulation and implementation of
sound corporate strategies and policies.

4. The Board has appropriately constituted the
committees necessary to heighten efficiency of
board operations and assist in exercising its
authority for oversight of internal control, risk
management and performance monitoring of
PAMI Mutual Funds, with well-defined charters
and board reporting requirements.

C. Board Meetings and Procedures

1. The number of board meetings during the year
is adequate. The schedule of matters is up to
date and regularly reviewed.

PAMI Mutual Funds BOD Self-Assessment Template Series of 2024



EVALUATION FACTOR

RATINGS

COMMENTS

Board members receive accurate minutes and
board packs; written agendas and meeting
notices; and relevant material to prepare in
advance of meetings and enable full and proper
consideration to be given to important issues.

Board meetings are conducted with sufficient
time and management presence, as well as in a
manner that encourages open communication
and meaningful participation.

All board decisions, other than those that have
been properly delegated are made in the board
room.

The level of support from the Corporate
Secretary that is placed at the Board’s disposal
is satisfactory.

There is a proper level of follow-up on
outstanding actions arising from board
meetings.

D. Board and Management Relations

The relationship between the Board and the
Fund Manager and Principal Distributor strikes
the right balance between challenge and
mutuality.

The Board’s discussions enhance the quality of
Fund Manager’s decision making (e.g., engaging
them in dialogue that stimulates and enhances
their thinking and performance).

The Board sets the overall tone and direction of
PAMI Mutual Funds and establishes guidelines
on the nature and amount of risk that the Funds
may take.

The Board has approved comprehensive policies
and procedures for all material activities and
risks in the organization. The Board is kept fully
informed on all material matters between
meetings (e.g., appropriate external
information on emerging risks, regulatory
changes, etc).

E. Induction and Continuing Education

1.

The continuing education program, special
briefings by external advisors, formal courses
and conferences and focused seminars
received by the Board and new members are
timely and appropriate (e.g., regulatory

matters, cyber risks, industry developments)

PAMI Mutual Funds BOD Self-Assessment Template

Series of 2024



RATINGS COMMENTS
EVALUATION FACTOR

and assist Board members in the execution of
their duties.

F. Performance Evaluation

1. The Board has in place an appropriate process
for regular board, committee and individual
board member evaluation.

2. The Board’s performance assessment process
enhances Board effectiveness.

G. Value Creation

1. The Board has good key relationships with PAMI
Mutual Funds’ major stakeholders and there is
respect for what the Board does.

2. The Board makes well-informed and high
quality decisions based on a clear line of sight
into the business that creates stakeholder
value.

3. The Board creates a performance culture that
drives value creation without exposing PAMI
Mutual Funds to excessive risk of value
destruction.

4. The Board holds executive or private sessions as

often as needed to discuss sensitive matters.

Excellent Very Good Good Satisfactory Needs
OVERALL RATING OF BOARD Improvement
PERFORMANCE
OTHER COMMENTS/ | 1ottt ettt et a et et e na s s s et et ettt sees e se s e st st sesebs s ebssassnbs e snt st sebebabeneranas
SUGGESTIONS
Name of Director: Signature: Date:

PAMI Mutual Funds BOD Self-Assessment Template Series of 2024



GENERAL INFORMATION SHEET (GIS)
FORTHE YEAR 2023
STOCH CORPORATI0N

LY
S

GENERAL INSTRUCT [{NS:

FOR USER CORFORATION: THIS GIS SHOULD BE SURMITTED WITHIN THIRTY (30] CALEMDAR DAYS PROM THE DATE OF THE AKNUAL STOCKROLIMAS
MEETING D) NOT LEAVE ANY TTEN RLAKK. WEITH “MA" IF THE INFORMATION REQUIRED IS NOT APPLICABLE TO THE CORPORATION Gl “RONE" IF
THE INFORMATICH 15 MON-EXISTENT. IF THE ANNUAL STOCKHO LOERS' MEITING 15 HELD 08 A DATE OTHER THAN THAT STATED IH THE BV-LA
THE GIS SILALL BE SUHMITTED WITHIN THIETY {30) CALENDAR DAYS AFTER THE ELECTHIN OF THE DIRECTORS, TRUSTEES AND DFFICERS OF TII
CORPEATION AT THE ANHUAL MEMIERE MEETING.

IF R0 MEETIMG 15 HELD, THE CORPORATION SHALL SURMIT THE GE RIT LATER THAH |ANUARY 30 OF THE FOLASWING YEAR.  IRIWEVER, SHOU
AH ANKUAL STOCKNOLDERS MEETING BE HELD THEREAFTER, A NEW G5 SHALL EE SUBMITTED fFILEDL

THES (5 SHALL BE ADCOMPLISHED BN ENGLISH A KD CERTIFIED ANDSWOKN TO BY THE CORPORATE SECEETARY OF THE CORPORATION,

THE SEL SIHALD BE TIMELY APPRISED OF RELEVANT CHARGES BN THE SIFRMITTED INFORMATION AS THEY ARISE, POR CHARNGES RESULTIMNG FROM
ACTHIMNE THAT ARCEE EETWEEN THE ANMUAL MEETINGE, THE CORPORATION EHALL SUIBHIT AMENDED GES DONTAINIRG THE MEW INFOLMATION
TOCETHER WITH A COVER LETTER SICHED THE CORMIEATE SECRETARY OF THE CORPOZATION. THE AMENDED GIS AND COVER LETTER SHALL BE
SUBMITTED WITHIN SEVEM (7 ) IAYS AFTER SUCH CHANGE ODDURED OR HECAME FFFECTIVE.

SUBMIT FOUR, (4] COPIES OF THE G5 T0 THE RECEIVING SECTHIN AT THE SEC MAIN OFFICE, R T3 SEC SATELLITE OFFICES OR EXTREMSION GRRICES.
ALL COPIES SHALL URIFORMLY BE O &4 OF LETTER-SIZED PAPER. THE PAGES OF ALL COPIES SHALL USE ONLY DNE SIDE

(LY THE GIS ACCOMPLISIRT 1N ACCORDANCE WITH THESE ISSTRUCTIORS SHALL BE COMEINERED A% HAVING HEEN FILET,

THIS GIS MAY BE USED AS EVIDERCE AGAINST THE CORPORATHIN ARD ITS RESPORSIHLE IMEECTORE O PFFICHRS FOR ANY VIOLATION OF EXISTING
LAWS, RILES AND REGULATIONS

PLLASE PRINT LECSILK e
CORPRATE NAMES [DATE REGISTELE,
PAMI IOHEION FUMTE IMC.
Af8/1997
WISINESS  TRADE NAME:
PART BORITON FUNDE NG |FEcaL VEAR Bxp:
SEC REGISTRATION SUMEER:
AT LT fhecember 01
DATH OF ARNUAL MEETING PER BY-LAWS: CORFOEATE TAT [CANTIFICATION
| wusmEn (rv
Fearth Thuriday of jely DO B 1 L300
ACTIAL DATE OF ARMUKLL MEETIMG: |wWEEAEEL dsaRrEss:
o mesiing held I_ A
T AL ADDRERS
17/F Nei Lisma Nuiiding, Gth Avenue corner Bith St Banblacks Glabal Ogy, Tagulg, Metro Manils MfA
COMPLETE BUSINES ADDRES: TR AUMEIR.
T9SF NP1 Bmandia Center, Sen. Gil Puyat Ave., Makati Cley Mietrs Manls, Phllippines HiA
[ OFFICIALE-MAILADURESS | ALTENMATE EMAILADORES | OFFIGIALMOBILENUMBER | AUSARATE WomiE wesiis
angatdulaigloatidemom *RP1_Wealth Operationgihpl.oeom ph LETLE FPTa B T-T0H G- Dell
RAME OF EXTERMAL AUDITOR & 1T5 SIGNING PARTMER: ¥EC ACCHETHT ATION SRRIEEN [ L I LT E—
appitabin]:
Isla Lipama & o,/ Amelda Tels Vega-Slangundags
d QOSR-FH-5 (6332] ESEG-0500
[GEOGRAPHICAL CODE -~ |
M

INTERCOMPANY AFFILIATIONS ssssnsssmsssmsssmsasdssssmnerrrrrreereny

 PAWEWT COMPANY SR NECETRATTEN W, ARG
WA M/A A

 SUNSIDIARY/AFFILIATE SR RECETHATION ¥, AT
WA M/A H/A




GEMENAL INFOHMATION SHEET

ETOCKE CORPORATION
prsaEmsesersreeepnanneeennnasss  FLEASE PHINT LEGIBLY =s=======zsooess=ez=zszsocszz==o==
{CoTparan: Name: FAMI HORIZON FUND INL
A. Is the Corporation a covered person under the Anti Money Laundering Act Yos & No
;_M.IL.I]-, as amended? LF.I‘.'E. Acts, E-I-EDI.I'IJ:I E‘-f!ﬂi-ﬁ?f!ﬂ]ﬁEj
[Please check the appropriate hox:
1.
L] a Ranks
Iy disalirs i Foud iwelads, who, &% a
[ b Offshore Banbdng Units s.[] AR TN DR S

[] e Quasi-Banks
[ & Trust Entities

business, irade in precioes metals

D o, Man-5Stock Savings snd Lean Astociationsg

|:| f. Pasnshaops

] i Foreign Exclage Deabers

L—_l h. Money Changers

L1 4 Remittance Agems

|:| | Eleciromic Money bsSuers

L] k Finarcial Institutions which Under Spedial Lawes are subject 1o

Rargko Sentral ag Pilipinas” (B5P) supervision and far peguletsan,
micluding tholr subsidiaries and alfiliztes.

'il:l Jewelry deabers in precious stones, who, 2% a
: Deasiness, trade in precious stope

.

D i Insurance Companies

[ & Insurance Agenis

. Insurance Brakers

d. Frolessional Reinsarers

., Reinsurance Brokers

[. Holding Conypanies

g- Holding Company Systems
h Pré-peed Companies

L Mutual Benelit Azssaciation

b Al Otler Persons and entities supervised and far negulated by the
Insurance Commission [1£]

O00OO00o0on

Company service providers which, as a husiness,
G, provide any of the [ollewing services to third
parties;

i

& Securilbes Deslers
b Secorities Brokers
c. Securities Salesman

d. |mvesiment Hoases

e, Investment Agenis and Consuliants

f. Trading Advisors
& Ocher entities managing Securities ar rendering similar services
h. Mutual Funds or Open-end [nvestment Companies

I, Close-end levestmant Companbes

| Comman Trust Funds or [ssoers and other sienilar entities

k. Transfer Companies ard other similar entitics

I, Dther entities administering or otherwise dealing in currency,

commadities or fnancial derivatives hased there on

L] e, Entities sdeministering of otherwize dealing in valuable objects
|:| . Entities sdministering or atherwize dealing bn cash Substiguies and

ciber similar monetary instraments or property sapervised and for
regulated by the Sscarities and Exchange Commission [SEC]

000000000 Doy

D A peting a8 a formation agent of juridical persans

|:| b, acting as [or arranging for another person toact as)j
a director or corporate secretary of a company, a
parinor of a partnership, or a similar position in
refation to other juridical persons

|:| ¢, providing a registered office; business address or
accommadation, correspondende or sdminisirative
address for 8 coimpany, a D'Hﬂﬂllﬂihm arany oiher
legal persomn ar arrangensent

[[] d. acting as {or arranging for anather person to act as]
a nomines shareholder far anather person

7. Persors who provide any of the lollowing services:

—
d a. managing ol dlienl money, securities or other st
|:| b management al kank, savings or securithes steoants

D C. arpansiestion af comributions for the creation,
operation or management af companies

El i creation, operation or management of juridical
persons o arrangemeris, and buying and selling
Erusimess entities

@ LI Moneof the above

rescribe
nature af
busimeis:

B. Has the Carporation mmpﬂaﬂ with the requirements on Dustomer Do Dillgence
(C1HD] or Know ¥our Customaer (KYC], record-keeping, and submission of reports

onder the AMLA, as amended, since the last ﬂllnlul' its GIST

™ Yos " Mo

GIS_STOCK[w.2020)



GENERAL INFORMATION SHEET

STOCK CORPORATION

PLEASE FRINT LEGIHLY ==

CORMIRATE MAME;

FAMI HORFZON FUND ING,

CAPITALSTRUCTURE

AUTHORIEED CAFITAL STOLCH

TYFE OF SHARES *

MUMEER OF
SHARES

FAR/STATED VALUE

AMOUNT [PhP)

(Mo of shares X Par/Stated Value)

Cosaiiif

EamEEEE e EE e
EEESEEEEEE EEEEW

ErEEEEEEEE mm s

AH0CL0E0 |

mmEmEE .

mErE .-

e s e s

EEEEErrrETE T E s

150}

TOTAL

2, DD, (O, (00

TOTAL F

|SUBSCEIHED CAPITAL

FILIPING

N OF
STOCK-
HOLOERS

TYPE OF SHARES *

NUMEER DF
SHARES

NUMBER OF
SHARES IN THE
HANDS OF THE

PRUBLIC **

PARSTATED
VALUE

AMOUNT [FhF)

% OF
OWHERSHIP

141,340,609

141,340,609

TOTAL

TOTAL F

FOREIGN
[INMCATE BY
HATIONALITY)

WO, OF
STOCH-
HOLERS

TYPE OF SHARES *

NUMAER OF
SHARES

MUMBER OF
SHARES [N THE
HANDG OF THE

FUBLIC =*

PAR/STATED
VALLE

rEEEEEEEEE EWEEw

FEEErEEEEsEr EEEE

o

FEmsETEEREEw

5
rrrrssaaa®
mmmmm -
= i e e

L.0g

Percemtage of Forelgn Equity 1 0.0 2%

TATAL

LSAT | TOTAL

TOTAL

2,547,08

L0

TOTAL SUBSCHIBED P

141, 343,196.00

1000, D

FAID-UPF CAFITAL

FILIFINGQ

N, OF
STOCKH-
HOLDERS

TYFE OF SHARES *

NUMBER OF
SHARES

FAR/STATED VALUE

AMOUNT (PhP)

% 0¥
WRERSHIP

______ [ FrTTS
_________ T T
TT T TSN R FT

1413440 603
SRSy e

.

.

] PR R L

Ersassasssmsaemeasssanna=

.

ST i

e

141,340,605

141 340,560%.00

L0 O o

FOREIGHN
{INDLCATE BY
NATIONALITY)

TYPE OF SHARES *

HUMEER OF
SHARES

FAR/STATED VALKUE

AMOUNT [PhP}

% OF
WWRERSHITP

Caminom

EEmEEmEEEE EmEm=

EEEEEEE e w

B L

mrmEmEE e

L A L

FEEEEErETETrEEEEEEETE Y

o

o

EEEEEETETTrTS S R T

O R S e O

SRR T

syl ] i e

O L e

Parcenitage of Poreligs Bquity : 0.002%

TOTAL

2,507

TOTAL

L5AT.00

LD

TOTAL PAID-UF P

141.347.1 96.00

1 (I

NOTE: USE ADDITIONAL SHEET IF NECESSARY

* Coammon, Preferred or ether chusilication

** (ither than Directors, (fMcers, Shancholders ownlng 10% of outstanding shares

GIS_STOC [w2020]
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GENERAL INFORMATION SHEET

STOCK CORPORATION

[CORPORATE NAME:

FAMI HORIZON FUND NG,

RIRECTORS f OFFICERS

NAMEJCURRENT EESINTIAL ADDRESS

RATIORALITY

INCR

ATICK
1HELIER

i3

TAX IDENTIFICA TR
NUSIER

L HIBHERTCE F, INE (AR PO
Hugensa Lopez Foundation #dg, Col
Joseph Momiching Campus, 123

FILIFING

L]

Chakrman

HiCE

120-115-028

L REYHALDO (. GERAOS | M
W, 5 Tinia 5L, Valle Verde Z, Pasig
City

FILIFING

President

123-102-933

3 TOMAS S CHUIDIAN
3% Tamarind Rd Forbes Park Makati
City

FiLIFING

WA

22E-E0R-B42

4. LEE LONGA

1 Carhine Loop Alabang 400 ¥illage,
Muntinlupa City

FILIFING

HiA

MIA

188-675-421

5, PRAMON PALILD L TAYAG
I8k & Lot 14 Salvador Flace Brazilia

Helghts Susama Heights Mustinlupa
City

FELIFINGE

HiA

WA

F14-4%1-906

& FERMAMNDIO | S4H0H 11
3 |z Sr, Havierville 1, Loyels
Huighas, Quirzon City

FILIFING

WA

135-565-275

7. BIMON K FATERNO
i MeRinley Road, Forbes Fark.
Makati City

FILIPIB)

WA

AJC B
/M

203010473

B MA, ADELIMA 5 GATIDUILA
Pentiouse, Liberty Certer, 104 HY
Dhtls Costa S, Saleedn Village Makati

FILIPIR

Corporate
Secretary

HiA

107-043-114

City

% MA FLOEILIZ L. PEDERMAL
&7 Chestnuk 5t, Falrdew Park,
Cuezon City

FILIPI0

Treasurer

H/A

149-792-248

L8

1L

2.

i,

18,

NS TRUCTION;

GIE_STCK [w.2023]

FOR SEL DR, FUT F" FOR FEWALE, "W FOR MALE.
FOH BOs COLLIV, PUT T FOR CHATRMAM, W FOR MR, T 1O INDEPTROEMT DIRECTOR,
FOR INETR COLUKK, PUT =7 IF AN INGORPORATOHR, 5" IF HOT.
FOR ETOCKHOLDER DOLUMH, PUT =¥ IF A STOCHHOLDER, "W" IF ROT.
FOR DFFICER COLUME, INDICATE PARTIGULAH POEITION IF AN (HFICER. FROK VP LI IRCLUDING THE POSITION OF THE TREAFURER,

EECRETARY. COMPLIANCE DFFICER ANDVOR ABBOCIATED PERSOHN.
FOR EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE, INDHCATE "C" IF MEMBER OF THE COMPERSATION COVBATTEE, "A" FIOR ALDIT COMRET TEE, "I FOR FaDLEMATION
AR ELECTION COMMTTEE., ADCHTIOHALLY WIITE “C° AF TER SILASH IF CHATTMAK ARD "W IF WESER,

Page 4



GEMERAL INFORMATION SHEET

STOCK CORPORATION
snEscEasssksEssnsesnessnssassess PLEASE PRINT LEGIBLY ssssssrss=so
CORPORATE NAME: PAMI HORIZON FUND INC.
TOTAL NUMIER OF STOCKHLDERS: 3,899 |9!E' ] E;:; E EETEHE! WIRTTRORTIRE oy
TOTAL ASSETS BASED 8 LATEST AURITED FINARCIAL ¥ TATEMENTS: S0, 314, MDD
STOCKHOLDER'S INFORMATION
SHARES SUBSCRIBED
AMOUNT .
NAME, NATIONALITY AND CURRENT T paip | TAX IDENTIFICATION
RESIDENTIAL ADDRESS VPR NUMBER AMOUNT OWNER- b NUMBER
(FhP) sup | 1)
1 STAMFILCO MANAGERIAL EMPOLYEES | Commaon 2,275,664 2,275,66400
PROVIDENT
i 232% 327566400  ODO-428-573
STANFILEO  BELISARIO  HEIGHTS|—Spmar '
LANANG DAVAD CITY DAVAD DEL SUR 3275.664|  3.275.664.00]
FHILIPPINES BO00
2. UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN PHILIPPINES
ety Commaon 3,172,909 3,172,90%,00
iy 5 W labil
. 9 i
SALINAS DRIVE LANUG CEBU CITY CEBU L lll L ot avaflable
PHILIPPINES 6000 —T3
3172909  3,172,909.00
3. SALES, JOSE Common 2,780,937 2.780,937.00
Filiping 157 |z780927.00]  Notavallable
UNIT 2103 N. DOMINGD COR BROADWAY
STREET, TOWER C VALENCIA HILLS[ TOTAL] 2780837 278093700
4 MARGAROLL ARNABELLE A. Comman 2366515 236651500
Pigie 167% |2.36651500]  Notavailabl
366,515, ava e
21 SINEGUELAS ST. VALLE VERDE 1
PASIG METED MANILA PHILIPINES T T R YT TTYT
5 ACOSTA, ASER 5. Comman 1731263 1,731, 2E.00)
Filipi
T L22% [1,731,283.00 107-132-509
14 MACTAN ST. MAGALLANES VILLAGE
MAKEATI METED MAMILA PHILIPMNES TOTAL I,?!'I.?ﬂ! 1,730, 208,00
& TIU, ROSITA CHUA o 16687 1,664, 726.00)
Filipina
N0, 9 UNIT A 6 5T. NEW MANILA QUEZON| RN || e
o I
CITY METRO MANILA TOTALl  {ge0,736]  1,669,736.00|
7. FERRER, ROWENA e 159,660 1,599,660.00
Filipino
e ———— 113% [159966000) Mot available
CONCERCIIN DOS MARIKINA METRO T —— T
MANILA PHILIPPINES 1811 599
TOTAL AMOUNT OF SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL
Lin, 5946, 704.00] 11.93% 16,596,704.00
TOTAL AMOUNT OF PAID-UPF CAPITAL
[ INSTRUCTION: SPECIFY THE TOP 20 STOCKHOLDERS AND INDICATE THE REST AS OTHERS

Mate: For FOTC Nowsoee incleded i the FH..HIIIH indicmie further the fenefichal swnerd ousaing more than 595 af eay cfdas of Lhe commpeas varing

securiliss. Atfoach seprnare sherd, if mecessary.

GIE_ATOCK [v.2D20)

Page 5




GENERAL INFORMATION SHEET

STOCK CORPORATION
EnmamonEmasnmn sammzrasas PLEASE PRENT LEGIBLY =zoamnseasessesssessssssssssssasssss
CORPORATE MAME: PARE HIKRIEON FIIND INC
TOTAL NUMBER OF STOCHHOLDERS: 589 4. OF STOCKHOLOERS WITH 100 OF MORESHARES EACH 9879
TOTAL ASSETY BASED ON LATEST AUBITED P LEL 1400002
STOCHHOLDER'S INFORMATION
SHARES SUBSCRIBED i
NAME, SATIONALITY AND CURRENT Pr— AMOUNT PAID IDENTIFCATION
HESIDENTIAL ADDRESS % OF OWNER- PhP
TYPE NUMRER Pt S (PRF) NUMBER
H. PHILIPPINE SOCIETY OF WYPERTENSION INCY Common 1,593 0E4 1,593 684,00
Filipira
UMIT 209 JULIA VARGAS 5T, AMBERLAND 1135 150 BN4.00 (03455770
PLAZA BLDG, ORTIGAS COMPLEX PASIG] TOTAL
METRO MAKILA PHILIPPINES 1605 1,593,804 iz |
9. SALES EDWIN C Comimos LA4D0,5520 1440 500.00)
Filipima
42 CARILIN 5T, URDANETA VILLAGE Laz% LA440.530.00 1041-50H4- 620
TOTAL 1,440,590 1.440,590.00(
18, SAGIP BUHAY MEDICAL FOUNDATION, INC. | Commos 1. Z40A3 1,240,835.00|
Filipéno
RM. 507, 2Z76 PASOMG TAMOD EXT. EDSA, CLRH 1,240, H35.00 20656371
HARRA BLDG, MAEATI CITY METRO MANILA| TOTAL
PHILIPPINES N ARSI LRS00
11, TRAVEL MANAGERS INTERMNATIOMNAL, ML Coum macin 1, 216477 1,206 4 77.00
Filiginm
524 UNITED HATIONS AVE ERMITA MANILA (A6 1,2 V647700 Kot availshle
METRO  MANILA  PHILIPPAHES  1008] TOTAL
PHILIPPINES 1045 LZ16ATT L216A73,M)
1L PALARAK, ANITAS Commean 1213544 1,213.944.00
Filiging
2709 RIZAL AVE STA CRUT MANILA METRO A6 1,213,944.00 Kot avallable
MANILA PHILEPPINES 1008 TOTAL
1LI13,0944 1,213, 944,00
LE HEALTI MAINTENANCE, [N, Common I, 10E20E 1,003, 206,00
Filiping
CHINO ROCES AVE, TOWER GROUMND, 0, 78%: 1103, 20000 W3-523-208
MAKAT] CINEMA SOUARE CONDD MAKATI[ TOTAL
METRO MAMNILA PHILIPPINES 1,103,208 1,003, 2 0. 00
T JLOILO [ ELECTEIC CODPERATIVE, INL. Comamon 1,101,584 1000, 564,00
Filiping
CAL-AYAN POTOTAN ILOILD 5008 0, 7E, 1,101 58400 DO0-954.942
TOTAL
1,101,504 1,000, 584,00
TOTAL AMOUNT OF SURSCRIBED CAPITAL 6.31%
8,910,526.00 0,910,526.00
TOTAL AMOUNT OF PAID-UT CAPITAL

INSTRIMCTION: SPECIFY THE TOP 20 STOCKHOLDERS AND INIMCATE THE REST AS OTHERS

Note: Fer PTT Namines inrduded bs B UaL, plese fdicnte Jurther dhe Broe/Ieil 001ers o1 ing more Dhas 55 of day ekt of Dhe campaing s voling securities, Alioch
separgdy sheel, §f neceseary,

GE_STOCK [w2020)
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GENERAL INFORMATION SHEET

STOCK CORPORATION
i EEEERLAEIsEEEErTasansnniaasannens  PLEASE FRINT LEGIFLY s sEsos i EIISEE R TEEEn
CORPORATE NAME: AN FIDARIZEDN FUND NG,
| TOTAL Nk HER &F STOCKHOLDERS: L W0, OF STOCHIROLDERS WITH 180 08 MORE SHARES EACID 5270

AL ASSETE BAZED O LATEST ARDITED F

SR, 1 14,5060 1

STOCEILINER'S INFORMATION

TOTAL AMOMUINT OF PARI-UP CAPITAL

SHARES SUBSCRIEED =
AR MATICMALITY AND CURNENT LESIENTIAL wor AMOUNT PAID |
ADIFRESS TYFE | NUMBER AR WNER: (Phi) NIEER
(FhP) sHiP
L% ANG, MARGARET CAEANG 1058174 1,068,174
Alipdna
TAFT, YECRAL BLDG 1T FARE, KECLAWATION 0LTE% 1,068,174.00 Hut awailaliie
MAMIAE GITY CEHU PHELIPPINES (014 TOTAL
1,068,174 1,006, | 7400
B, 0 & B PHARMA CORP, e— 1044415 LOMALEDS| o7t 1441550 Hen awadlabla
Fiipina
71 5T, BISEPH ST, WMINDAMAD AVE CHARREL
MM TV MPTEERMARIL L PE PRI
TOTAL L4 A 15 1,044,415 00
I7 RODRIGIZER, RICARDD Cnmmen 1,000 041 LODER.00]| 071% 1,080 040,80 Hal awvsilabils
Fifpiea
168 FELIX MAHALD 5T, CUBAD QGUEROH CITY|
METRE MAKILA PHILIFFINES 1109
| TOTAL [T T 1,00
1. FARTMERSHHP FOR DEVELOPMENT
s i Tt T B T S a74, 1859 apd,18000| ns 4, 189.00 Rt availabile
Filipiraz
700 DR LAZCANG ST. HRGY. LAGING HAHDA
QUELIH CITY METEO MAMILY FRILIPPINES
11
TOTAL AT, L] 574,183.00
1L G, GERRY S0 St 100,041
g . 4000 00059444 2-000
418 MASIKAP STREET, HBRGY. FINYAHAN
QUEZON CITY METRO MANILA  PRILIPRINES | Torar m@ F64, 30,00
20, ORGEERD, VERDNICA 5 Fe— ST TEA CTRRTIT
Filpine DETH 947,764.00 DA 4 2 00
15024 AVALA AWE, RITE TOWER MAKATI
METHMANILA FHILIFFSED & -—r “EI TR
75, OTHERS (lsdicate the sumbier of (hel. e
b i aiira Momman| 169,031,653 DOUAEA A5 0
W
TITI% | IATIASLOE
TOTAL| o ossvisss|  sesmsassine
THTAL AMOUNT 0F SURSCRIBED CAFITAL ape.00] BLETH

IHSTROCTION: SFECIFY THE TOP 30 STOUKNOLEIRS AND INDHATE TIE REST AS OTHERS

GIE_STOCK {w20310)

Fole: dor FETE ¥omiaee inciaded 1a e INE Sfessr (el Te U er (7o bern il auvier s o vovyg masre £ s §55 of iivy 4 Pats o (49 rempaigy § raling comurities, Aitech
|weparare shar, f Rereisay
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GENERAL INFORMATION SHEET

STOCK CORPORATION
RS FLEASE PRINT LEGIELY e e e e e e
CORPORATE NAME:  PAMI HORIZON FUND INC.
1. INVESTMENT OF CORPORATE AMOUNT (PhP) DATE OF BOARD RESOLUTION
FUNDNS IN ANOTHER CORPORATION
L1 STOCKS /A NJA
12 BONDS/COMMERCIAL PAPER (lssued
iy Privata Carporations]) 56,174,357.00 NfA
1.3 LOANS/ CREDITS/ ADVANCES MjA NJA
1.4 GOVERNMENT TREASURY BILLS 167,529, 238,00 NA
il 12,530,000.00 NfA
2, INVESTMENT OF CORPORATE FUNDS IN ACTIVITIES UNDER ITS DATE OF BOARD DATE OF
SECONDARY PURPOSES [FLEASE SPECIFY:) RESOLUTION STOCKHOLDERS
I SR A SN ek T L SR T, DRI T ... RATIFICATION
NjA N/A N/
3. TREASURY SHARES
% AS TO THE TOTAL
ol N, OF SHARES 1SSUED
N/A NjA
4 UNRESTRICTED/UNAFPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS AS OF END OF LAST FISCAL YEAR: Php371,955,000,00
[5. DIVIDENDS DECLARED DURING THE IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING YEAR: /A
TYFE OF MVIDEND AMOUNT (PRI} BATE DECLARED
5.1 CASH
52 STOCK
53 PROPERTY
TOTAL | P
6. ADDITIONAL SHARES ISSUED DURING THE PERIOD:
DATE WO, OF SHARES AMOUNT
ECONDARY LICENSE/REGISTRATION WITH SEC AND OTHER GOV'T AGENCY:
NAME OF AGENCY: SELC BSP 1c
PE OF Certificate of Permit to Dffer
LICENSE [REGN. Securities for Sale ik s
Imm ISSUED: B/1/2008 NfA N/A
DATE STARTED
OPERATIONS: e WA wa
TOTAL ANNUAL COMPENSATION OF
TOTALNO. OF RANK & | TOTAL MANPOWER
DIRECTORS DURING THE PRECEDING FISCAL | TOTAL NO. OF OFFICERS e el dglin
YEAR (in PhF)
176,000.00 4 o 4
L UTE: Uk AN TR AL SHEET TF NECEAZARY

GI5 STOCK (w2020)

Pagee




[, MA: ADELINA 5. GATDULA, Corporate Secretary of PAMI HORIZON FUND INC. declare under penalty of
perjury that all matters sek forth in this GIS have been made in good faith, duly verified by me and to the best
of my knowledge and bellef are true and correct.

I herehy attest that all the information in this GIS are being submitted in comphance with the rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission [SEC) the collection, processing, storage and sharing
of sald information being necessary to carry out the functions of public authority for the performance of the
constitutionally and statutorily mandated functions of the SEC as a regulatory agency.

[ further attest that | have been authorized by the Board of Directors/ Trustecs to file this GI5 with the SEC
[ understand that the Commission may place the corporation under delinguent status for failure to submit

the reportorial requirements three (3] times, consecutively or intermittently, within a period of five (5) years
[Section 177, BA No. 11232,

Done this d.a}“‘ 29 204 .20 in_ MAKATICITY

;‘HM?‘K

MA. ADELINA S. GATDULA

Corporate Secretary

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me in Malkati Cityl Ad| 218 mﬂ by affiant who personally
appeared before me and exhibited to me her competent evidence of identity consisting of Driver's License
MNi. MO4-85-005T14 issued by LTO and expiring on 10 May 2032,

Al PUBLIC
DOC NO, B SAMA? NICOLE M. WARREN
PAGE NO, intmeni MNo. M-318
BOOK MO, Notary Public for Makati City
SERIES OF 2024, Until December 31, 2024

Liberty Center-Picazo Law
104 H.V, Dela Costa Street, Makati City
Roll of Anorney's No. 81932
PTR Mo, 10081 156Makati City/01-09-20724
[BP Mo, 300891 MakatiO1-05-2024
Admitted (o the bar in 2022

GiE STOCKY. 230
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BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP DECLARATION

FOR THE YEAHR: 023
SEC HEGISTHATION NUMBER: A199713137
CORPORATE NAME: PAMI HORIZON FURD, INC,
Instructinns:

1. Identify the Beneficial Owner/s of the corporation as described in the Categories of Beneficial Ownarship bn itenes A
to B belew, List down a5 many as you can dentify. You may wse an additional shest Ifnecessary.
L Fill inthe required information on the beneficial awser i the elds pravided for,
3. I the “Category of Besellcial Swnership™ column, indicate the keater(s) corresponding thereto, n the event that
the person (dentified as beneficial owner fafls under several categories, indicate all the letters corresponding 1o
such categories.
4, If the category s wnder letber *1°, indicate the pasibon held (Le. DirectoryTrastee, President, Chiel Execulive
Qfficer, Chief Operating Officer, Chiel Financkal Officer, #1c,),
5. Do not beave any ftem blank. Wirite “N /A" if the information required ks not applicabile ar "NONE” if non-existent,

“Henellcial thamee * relens uwuwm-tm eltirstely pam|n] or contrek{n] or anercroe o] el dfiective costrol aves the mmhﬂ_
cowern Lher natarsl prowas(a} whe snidly s o rarirel the corperstion s dintingeiend [rom e begal aveeres, Sioh beisfboal awmrhip may

A Falural prrasni ) awering, Srecty of indinegy ar thirciggh @ cuain of swrarthip ol leak twenly-Mhee peroes] [ 2159 ol U watiag rights, woliag shares ar

ol ik Telbwing

Calegary
vl i T poepea B e i WS,
Faitral perasriy] wh

intermantiary ortered pelity.
Pl paiaon 5] bawing b ahility da obert 2 majoriy al I.Irh-'ld-.rm'l.l'lm or gy el baiady, of thed v praratiar.

mn
c
B Batueral g asis ] busrin g et shaliy 19, ewert 3 dcerie
E

The repaling i prod i bah, heae of Ligethes with sibenn, Shrough any conbrcl, usdmilrdding, relitonship,

ol or pobicir of B orpew dtae,

Madutal prracn]] shess oo, Ut or wivh in condueciimg U afsin of e oo poretion dne daried iU by i ity of the mamisery al Lk
B ol o vty ool ey o peradinn b 31w soconbomed or usder an oblgalize f gl in prcoidanie with dack pv e s rectlon, i ruciion or wabes

F Mamaral o 1] scting 3¢ viswards of e properie of sorporstons, idere such properibe ans wsds e care o sdminisration of wid neburl prrsenia).

[H Hatural prowas]a] wha siuslly sem or

el al peiidiv,
I Katars parsan]i| uksmairky cwning ar il of cocrdideg uitiisate fllecties rasiral guer

iha foregzing calrgarirs

- =

kartheskiers or noetines direins. sotng For ar oo hehudf of wech

reeany red Daflmg wrabes divy ml

i mmm“mmm““lmh reponnibhe bor slralegh: diclibeid Lhat lerslamamally sllictthe

el

POl el a7 e

I they o porration wach an e membary of T baied of dieedlon s &f Bester i giriler budy within Tha corparsbian; or

enerchibng saerutive coartrol awr the daily or regulir affaien af et corporstion Lheeugh d sk mapdgesil [aiton|. Thia cawegory i eoly sppitosbie in
e bl e whane s ol peroon b e tfiatin wh aitimilely swns o eotels ool veT T CEIpaTatian, the reperiing corparticn havimg

sxbaaitied 81 resszrable cowsn af ideniifeation ard Thsivn i i for
COMPLETE MAME b
% OF HENEFECIAL
[Swrmame, Given SPECIFIC . TAX ﬂ'lu'HlI.iHlP"f W CATEGRY {F
Nanue, Middbe Namo, | RESIDENTIAL | KATIONALITY [ "o | mimmmschmion | on s HENEFICIAL
Ho P
Mame Extension [Le., ADDRESS RIGHTS® Direct {1 o OWHNERSH
I S, 1NE) Indirect {1]
Fagesn Loprs Pramdwioe
BOBERTOF.BEOCAMP | e Collmeph Momtiny Fapiao - fanbts 110115 20 Kl I [
ks g
RETHALDO G GERONiMg | e ST T el Fibpiess §E-ful-44 123502973 HE A I [ Presikbest fTrscisr]
TEBLAS 5 CHI AN """":::"""" Fiiparm Do pae BT il it I [Thravize]
Warkees Looy Alibamg 450
LEE LOHIA e e Pa— 24-Feb 73 {BE-ETE-4T1 i oA B {Barvcier]
Wil i L i Sakvedor Flaea
FLAMIOR AU L TAYAL | Bl Meighvn S Hekghin | Pl 10 Der- 80 BE1505 wal B B Dieerie]
Menmsra Ciy
1 i 2, Drvimrills i,
FIERHAR D | S04 0 Lapels Helglen, Sovicrnm Oy Fllpinn A-dgr-52 EI5RE5-T75 Ll B 1Mrestar}
suonLpaTEg  [WIESEEE R g, e L Wi B 1 {Prwcsar
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